
 

 

Democratic Services ◦ Chief Executive’s Department ◦ Leicestershire County Council ◦ County Hall  

Glenfield ◦ Leicestershire ◦ LE3 8RA ◦ Tel: 0116 232 3232 ◦ Email: democracy@leics.gov.uk 
 

 

www.twitter.com/leicsdemocracy    www.facebook.com/leicsdemocracy  

  
www.leics.gov.uk/local_democracy  

 

 

 

 
  

 

Meeting: Local Pension Committee  
 
 

 

Date/Time: Friday, 5 July 2019 at 9.30 am 

Location: Sparkenhoe Committee Room, County Hall, Glenfield. 

Contact: Miss C Tuohy (0116 305 5483). 

Email: cat.tuohy@leics.gov.uk 

 

AGENDA 
 
Item  Report By  Marked 

 
1.  

  
Appointment of Chairman.  
 

 
 

 

2.  
  

Election of Vice-Chairman  
 

 
 

 

3.  
  

Minutes of the meeting held on 15 February 
2019.  
 

 
 

(Pages 5 - 12) 

4.  
  

Question Time.  
 

 
 

 

5.  
  

Questions asked by members under Standing 
Order 7(3) and 7(5).  
 

 
 

 

6.  
  

To advise of any other items which the 
Chairman has decided to take as urgent 
elsewhere on the agenda.  
 

 
 

 

7.  
  

Declarations of interest in respect of items on 
the agenda.  
 

 
 

 

8.  
  

Summary Valuation of Pension Fund 
Investments and Performance of Individual 
Managers.  
 

Director of 
Corporate 
Resources 
 

(Pages 13 - 54) 

9.  
  

LGPS Central Update - Pension Fund Pooling  
 

Director of 
Corporate 
Resources 
 

(Pages 55 - 58) 

10.  LGPS Central Update - Company Matters  Director of (Pages 59 - 62) 

mailto:democracy@leics.gov.uk
http://www.twitter.com/leicsdemocracy
http://www.facebook.com/LeicsDemocracy
http://www.leics.gov.uk/local_democracy
http://www.leics.gov.uk/local_democracy


 

 

   Corporate 
Resources 
 

11.  
  

Risk Management and Internal Controls.  
 

Director of 
Corporate 
Resources 
 

(Pages 63 - 90) 

12.  
  

Investment Subcommittee Membership  
 

Director of 
Corporate 
Resources 
 

(Pages 91 - 92) 

13.  
  

Pension Fund Valuation  
 

Director of 
Corporate 
Resources 
 

(Pages 93 - 122) 

14.  
  

Consultation - Local Valuation Cycle and 
Management of Employer Risk  
 

Director of 
Corporate 
Resources 
 

(Pages 123 - 
134) 

15.  
  

Pension Fund Training Policy  
 

Director of 
Corporate 
Resources, 
Independent 
Investment 
Consultant 
 

(Pages 135 - 
144) 

16.  
  

Exclusion of the Press and Public  
 

 
 

 

 The public are likely to be excluded during consideration of the 
remaining items in accordance with Section 100(A)(4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 (Exempt Information).  

 
 

 

17.  
  

LGPS Central Limited - Global Equity Active 
Multi Manager Fund Monthly Report  
 

LGPS Central 
 

(Pages 145 - 
150) 

18.  
  

Ashmore Quarterly Report  
 

Fund Manager 
 

(Pages 151 - 
184) 

19.  
  

Aspect Capital Quarterly Report  
 

Fund Manager 
 

(Pages 185 - 
190) 

20.  
  

IFM Investors Quarterly Report  
 

Fund Manager 
 

(Pages 191 - 
204) 

21.  
  

Kames Capital Quarterly Report  
 

Fund Manager 
 

(Pages 205 - 
218) 

22.  
  

KKR Quarterly Report  
 

Fund Manager 
 

(Pages 219 - 
244) 

23.  
  

LaSalle Quarterly Report  
 

Fund Manager 
 

(Pages 245 - 
260) 

24.  
  

JP Morgan Quarterly Report  
 

Fund Manager 
 

(Pages 261 - 
266) 

25.  
  

Legal and General Investment Manager 
Quarterly Report  
 

Fund Manager 
 

(Pages 267 - 
298) 

26.  
  

Delaware Investments Quarterly Report  
 

Fund Manager 
 

(Pages 299 - 
304) 

27.  
  

Millennium Global Quarterly Report  
 

Fund Manager 
 

(Pages 305 - 
328) 
 



 

 

28.  
  

Pictet Quarterly Report  
 

Fund Manager 
 

(Pages 329 - 
340) 

29.  
  

Ruffer Quarterly Report  
 

Fund Manager 
 

(Pages 341 - 
346) 

30.  
  

Stafford Timberland Quarterly Report  
 

Fund Manager 
 

(Pages 347 - 
448) 

31.  
  

Any other items which the Chairman has 
decided to take as urgent.  
 

 
 

 

TO: 
   

Leicestershire County Council 
 

 

Mr. P. C. Osborne CC (Chairman) 
Mr. T. Barkley CC 
Mr. P. Bedford CC 
 
 
Leicester City Council 
 

Dr. S. Hill CC 
Mr. Max Hunt CC 
 

Cllr Deepak Bajaj and Cllr. Ratilal Govind 
 

 

District Council Representatives 
 
Cllr Chris Frost and Cllr. Malise Graham MBE 
 
University Representative   
  
Dr Pete Cross 
 

 

 

Staff Representatives  
  
Mr. R. Bone 
Mr. N. Booth 
 

Ms. J. Dean 
 

 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

  

 
 
Minutes of a meeting of the Local Pension Committee held at County Hall, 
Glenfield on Friday, 15 February 2019.  
   

PRESENT: 
Leicestershire County Council 
 

 

Mr. P. C. Osborne CC (Chairman) 
Mr. T. Barkley CC 
Mrs. H. J. Fryer CC 
 
 

Dr. S. Hill CC 
Mr. Max Hunt CC 
 

Leicester City Council 
 
Cllr Dr Lynn Moore 

 

  
District Council Representative 
 
Cllr Chris Frost 
 
Staff Representatives  
  
Mr. N. Booth 
Ms. J. Dean 
 

  
 

Independent Advisers and Managers 
 

 

Clare Scott                   Independent Investment Advisor 
  
 

240. Minutes.  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 25 January 2019 were taken as read, confirmed and 
signed.  
 

241. Question Time.  
 
The Chief Executive reported that no questions had been received under Standing Order 
35. 
 

242. Questions asked by members.  
 
The Chief Executive reported that no questions had been received under Standing Order 
7(3) and 7(5). 
 

243. Urgent Items.  
 
There were no urgent items for consideration. 
 
 
 

5 Agenda Item 3



 
 

 

 
244. Declarations of interest.  

 
The Chairman invited members who wished to do so to declare any interest in respect of 
items on the agenda for the meeting. 
 
No declarations were made. 
 

245. Protecting Shareholder Value - The Role of the Local Authority Pension Fund Forum.  
 
The Committee considered a presentation produced by the Local Authority Pension Fund 
Forum (LAPFF) which detailed the Forum’s role in supporting Local Government Pension 
Fund’s shareholdings by way of shareholder engagement, taking action on corporate 
governance issues and by seeking to promote the highest standards of corporate social 
responsibility at the companies in which LAPFF members invest.  A copy of the 
presentation is filed with these minutes 
 
Members recognised that by representing multiple funds, the LAPFF had more influence 
than individual funds when encouraging companies to address potential operation and 
governance concerns. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the presentation be noted. 
 

246. Summary Valuation of Pension Fund Investments and Performance of Individual 
Managers.  
 
The Committee considered a report of the Director of Corporate Resources the purpose 
of which was to present a summary valuation of the Fund’s investments as at 31 
December 2018. A copy of the report is filed with these minutes, marked ‘7’. 
 
The Director reported that the funding level of the fund had fallen from 82% to 77% due 
to the fall in asset values and an increase in liabilities; however, the funding level was 
broadly in line with expectations. 
 
Members noted that Aspect Capital’s performance had fallen significantly over the past 
three years. The Investment Subcommittee would be asked to consider its Targeted 
Return allocation and the potential of a sub fund offering in the asset class by LGPS 
Central at a future meeting. 
 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the report and that the Hymans Funding Update be provided to the Committee twice 
per year be noted. 
 

247. Draft Funding Strategy Statement.  
 
The Committee considered a report of the Director of Corporate Resources which sought 
approval for a revised Funding Strategy Statement. A copy of the report marked ‘8’ is 
filed with these minutes. 
 

6



 
 

 

The Director reported that the document had been revised to incorporate pass-through 
arrangements for new admission bodies and changes to the way in which data was used 
when assessing Academy employer rates.  
 
It was noted that as part of the 2019 valuation exercise, it was anticipated that member 
benefits would be linked to the annual consumer price index (CPI) level of inflation rather 
than the current Retail Price Index (RPI).  
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the Funding Strategy Statement be approved. 
 

248. Ministry for Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) Consultation - Asset 
Pooling  
 
The Committee considered a report of the Director of Corporate Resources which 
provided an update on the impact of the Ministry for Housing, Communities and Local 
Government consultation concerning the draft statutory guidance on asset pooling. A 
copy of the report marked ‘9’ is filed with these minutes. 
 
The Director reported that whilst the Fund was broadly in line with the MHCLG guidance, 
the ability for the Fund to direct all its new investments through the pool by 2020 as per 
the expected requirements could only be achieved if LGPS Central had the appropriate 
sub fund products available.  Whilst it was noted that the pool had been slow to establish 
its initial sub funds since its inception in 2017, it was expected that process would 
improve moving forward.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the report be noted. 
 

249. LGPS Central Pooling Update.  
 
The Committee considered a report of the Director of Corporate Resources updating the 
Committee on progress towards pooling of the Pension Fund assets into LGPS Central. 
A copy of the report marked ‘10’ is filed with these minutes. 
 
Members noted that further information on LGPS Central sub-funds of which the Fund 
could invest in would be brought to the Committee and Investment Subcommittee once 
they had been established by LGPS Central. 
 
The Chairman updated the Committee on the LGPS Central Shareholders Forum and 
reported that the Pool were in the process of appointing a new Chief Executive.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the report be noted. 
 

250. Risk Management and Internal Controls.  
 
The Director of Corporate Resources presented a report which detailed the requirement 
of the Committee to consider identified risks/concerns associated with the Leicestershire 
Pension Fund, a stipulation set out within the Pension Regulator’s Code of Practice. A 
copy of the report is filed with these minutes, marked ‘11’. 

7



 
 

 

 
The Director reported that since the Committee’s last meeting no additional risks had 
been identified.  Members noted the Fund’s ongoing work to develop an assurance 
framework for LGPS Central. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

a) That the revised risk register of the Pension Fund be approved. 
 

b) That the work being done to develop an assurance framework for LGPS Central 
be noted. 

 
251. Market Report - For Information  

 
The Committee received a report considering global market conditions from the Fund’s 
Independent Investment Advisor Kames Capital. A copy of this report marked ‘12’ is filed 
with these minutes. 
 
RESOLVED: 
That the report be noted. 
 

252. Investment Subcommittee Meeting Dates.  
 
The Committee received a report from the Director of Corporate Resources on the 
Investment Subcommittee Meeting dates for 2019. A copy of the report marked ‘13’, a 
copy of the report is filed with these minutes. 
 
RESOLVED: 
That the report be noted. 
 

253. Exclusion of the Press and Public.  
 
RESOLVED: 
  
That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972 the public be excluded 
from the meeting for the remaining items of business on the grounds that they involved 
the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraphs 3 and 10 of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12(A) of the Act. 
 

254. Kempen Capital Management Quarterly Report  
 
The Committee considered an exempt report by Kempen, a copy of which marked '16' is 
filed with these minutes. The report was not for publication by virtue of paragraphs 3 and 
10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12(A) of the Local Government Act 1972.  
  
RESOLVED: 
  
That the report be noted. 
 

255. Pictet Quarterly Report  
 
The Committee considered an exempt report by Pictet, a copy of which marked '17' is 
filed with these minutes. The report was not for publication by virtue of paragraphs 3 and 
10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12(A) of the Local Government Act 1972.  

8



 
 

 

  
RESOLVED: 
  
That the report be noted. 
 

256. Ruffer Quarterly Report  
 
The Committee considered an exempt report by Ruffer, a copy of which marked '18' is 
filed with these minutes. The report was not for publication by virtue of paragraphs 3 and 
10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12(A) of the Local Government Act 1972.  
  
RESOLVED: 
  
That the report be noted. 
 

257. IFM Investors Quarterly Report  
 
The Committee considered an exempt report by Delaware Investments, a copy of which 
marked '19' is filed with these minutes. The report was not for publication by virtue of 
paragraphs 3 and 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12(A) of the Local Government Act 1972.  
  
RESOLVED: 
  
That the report be noted. 
 

258. JP Morgan Quarterly Report  
 
The Committee considered an exempt report by JP Morgan, a copy of which marked '20' 
is filed with these minutes. The report was not for publication by virtue of paragraphs 3 
and 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12(A) of the Local Government Act 1972.  
  
RESOLVED: 
  
That the report be noted. 
  
 

259. Kleinwort Quarterly Report  
 
The Committee considered an exempt report by Kleinwort Benson, a copy of which 
marked '21' is filed with these minutes. The report was not for publication by virtue of 
paragraphs 3 and 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12(A) of the Local Government Act 1972.  
  
RESOLVED: 
  
That the report be noted. 
  
 

260. Delaware Investments Quarterly Report  
 
The Committee considered an exempt report by Delaware Investments, a copy of which 
marked '22' is filed with these minutes. The report was not for publication by virtue of 
paragraphs 3 and 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12(A) of the Local Government Act 1972.  
  
RESOLVED: 

9



 
 

 

  
That the report be noted. 
  
 

261. Kames Capital Quarterly Report  
 
The Committee considered an exempt report by Kames Capital, a copy of which marked 
'23' is filed with these minutes. The report was not for publication by virtue of paragraphs 
3 and 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12(A) of the Local Government Act 1972.  
  
RESOLVED: 
  
That the report be noted. 
 

262. Millennium Global Quarterly Report  
 
The Committee considered an exempt report by Millennium, a copy of which marked '24' 
is filed with these minutes. The report was not for publication by virtue of paragraphs 3 
and 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12(A) of the Local Government Act 1972.  
  
RESOLVED: 
  
That the report be noted. 
  
 

263. Ashmore Quarterly Report  
 
The Committee considered an exempt report by Ashmore, a copy of which marked '25' is 
filed with these minutes. The report was not for publication by virtue of paragraphs 3 and 
10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12(A) of the Local Government Act 1972.  
  
RESOLVED: 
  
That the report be noted. 
 

264. Legal and General Investment Manager Quarterly Report  
 
The Committee considered an exempt report by Legal and General, a copy of which 
marked '26' is filed with these minutes. The report was not for publication by virtue of 
paragraphs 3 and 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12(A) of the Local Government Act 1972.  
  
RESOLVED: 
  
That the report be noted. 
 

265. Stafford Timberland Quarterly Report  
 
The Committee considered an exempt report by Stafford Timberland, a copy of which 
marked '27' is filed with these minutes. The report was not for publication by virtue of 
paragraphs 3 and 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12(A) of the Local Government Act 1972.  
  
RESOLVED: 
  
That the report be noted. 

10



 
 

 

 
266. Aspect Capital Quarterly Report  

 
The Committee considered an exempt report by Aspect Capital, a copy of which marked 
'28' is filed with these minutes. The report was not for publication by virtue of paragraphs 
3 and 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12(A) of the Local Government Act 1972.  
  
RESOLVED: 
  
That the report be noted. 
 

267. LaSalle (Formerly Aviva) - Quarterly Report.  
 
The Committee considered an exempt report by LaSalle (formerly Aviva Investors), a 
copy of which marked '29' is filed with these minutes. The report was not for publication 
by virtue of paragraphs 3 and 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12(A) of the Local Government 
Act 1972.  
  
RESOLVED: 
  
That the report be noted. 
 
 

 CHAIRMAN 
15 February 2019 

 

11



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

LOCAL PENSION COMMITTEE – 5th JULY 2019 

 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES 

 
SUMMARY VALUATION OF PENSION FUND INVESTMENTS AND 

INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE OF INDIVIDUAL MANAGERS 
 
 
 
Purpose of Report 
 
1.   The purpose of this report is to present to the Committee, an update on the 

investment markets and how individual asset classes are performing, a summary 
valuation of the Fund's investments at 31st March 2019 (attached as an appendix 
to this report), together with figures showing the performance of individual 
managers and a funding position from the funds actuary.   

 
Market Outlook and Performance  
 
2.   An update on asset classes and market performance is provided by LGPS Central 

in appendix B.  The view is that the outlook for growth assets is cautious as the 
probability of a recession and market correction rise.  The likelihood of a recession 
over the next 12 months is medium. A view is also presented on how the market 
outlook impacts strategic asset allocations. The first quarter of 2019 showed a 
very positive picture across the globe in equities, balancing out the losses of the 
previous quarter. 

 
Overall Investment Performance 
 
3. A comprehensive performance analysis over the quarter, year and 3 year period to 

31st March 2019 is provided in Appendix A.  This is a new report produced by 
Portfolio Evaluation Limited (PE).  PE collate information directly from managers 
and calculate performance, which will provide an independent check of valuations 
and allow greater reporting flexibility. Introduction of this reporting will enhance the 
control and assurance for the Fund. Current performance reporting is limited to 3 
years but work is ongoing to provide a longer term history. 

 
4. It is important to note that the valuations produced can be different to those 

provided by managers or included in the Statement of Accounts. For example 
timing differences of use of different accounting methodologies.  The differences 
are not expected to be material in the context of the messages being conveyed by 
the report. 

 
5. Portfolio Evaluation Limited will be at the Pension Committee meeting to present 

the report and provide some additional training for members. 
 

6. For the period ending 31st March 2019 the Fund delivered an investment return of 
5.0% for the quarter, 5.2% over the year and 10.6% over the 3 year period. 
 

13 Agenda Item 8



7. The Fund’s asset allocation compared to the investment strategy is shown in the 
table below: 

  

  Weighting Benchmark Difference 

Equities 50.0% 48.0% 2.0% 

Real Income Fund 24.8% 26.5% -1.7% 

Alternatives 25.3% 25.5% -0.2% 

  100.0% 100.0% 0.0% 

 
The Fund’s actual allocation varies over time due to differential market movements. 
However, the allocation remains broadly in-line with the strategy. At the end of the 
quarter, marginal overweight positions in equities (+1.9%) are offset by underweight 
positions in real Income fund assets (-1.7%) and Alternatives (-0.2%). Equity 
allocations can be adjusted quickly, but the underweight positions in property and 
infrastructure can take much longer. At the end of March the Fund had 
approximately £100m of commitments with managers that are waiting to be called. 
Managers have to source opportunities rather than being able to buy from liquid 
markets. A detailed breakdown of the asset allocation is available in Appendix A. 
 

8. The most significant changes during the quarter was the transfer of £333.2m of 
global active equities to the LGPS Central Pool.   

 
9. The following table provides the performance of the Fund and the asset classes 

over short and longer-term periods, compared to their respective benchmarks.  
 
 

  3 Months % 1 Year %p.a. 3 Years %p.a. 
  

Fund Benchmark Fund Benchmark Fund Benchmark 

Equities 8.8 9.6 6.9 7.2 13.6 12.5 
Income Assets 1.9 2.3 6.6 5.4 10.3 

 
 
 

7.3 
Alternative 3.1 1.3 0.5 4.9 5.0 4.9 
TOTAL FUND 5.0 5.8 5.2 6.6 10.6 9.6 

 

10. The investment performance of the individual managers for the year to 31st 
March 2019 is set out in appendix A.  It is worth noting the following 
performance of certain managers: 

 Adams Street – Private Equity, 9.1% excess return over benchmark. The 
benchmark of listed markets can be misleading, in the short-tem, due to the 
less frequent valuations of private equity assets. As a riskier asset class they 
have greater potential volatility.  The 3-year return is more representative and 
exceeds benchmark by 0.6%. 

 
 IFM and KKR - global infrastructure, both managers show 10%+ return over 

benchmark. Similarly to private equity a long term view needs to be taken, 
potentially incorporating the initial investment period.  

 
 Aspect Capital Partners – Targeted Return, (12.7%) below benchmark. The 

nature of the product is highly volatile and some reassurance can be gained from 
the long term performance of the manager (exceeds benchmark over 5-years). In 

14



the January strategy review the fit of the product in the portfolio was considered and 
the diversification from equity stressed as a key benefit. LGPS Central’s 
development of a Target Return product will provide a good opportunity to consider 
the fund’s approach to this class. 

 
 Christofferson Robb & Company –Other Opportunities - 13.4% excess return 

over benchmark. The other opportunities allocation targets a higher return, at a 
higher level of risk. The investments in the opportunities area should be looked at 
as a collective, as not all will perform to target.  

 
 
Funding Update 

11. The funding level is the ratio of the Fund’s assets compared to the liabilities. At the 
last formal actuarial valuation in March 2016, the funding level on an ongoing basis 
was 76%. Based on market movements up to 31st March 2019, the Actuary 
estimates that the funding level has increased marginally to 77%. Although there 
was a significant improvement in stock market values during the first quarter of 
2019 this was more than offset by the worsening outlook for future investment 
returns. The report by the Actuary is attached as an Appendix C. 

 
Recommendation 

12. The Local Pension Committee is asked to note the report. 
 

 
 

Appendices 
 
Appendix A - Summary Valuation of Funds performance 
 
Appendix B - Report of LGPS Central Limited – Strategic Asset Allocation (Market outlook 
and Performance).  
 
Appendix C - Funding Update from the Fund Actuary Hymans Robertson 
 
Equality and Human Rights Implications 
 
None. 
 
 
Officers to Contact 
 
Mr C Tambini, Director of Corporate Resources 
Tel: 0116 305 6199 Email: Chris.Tambini@leics.gov.uk  
 
Mr D Keegan, Assistant Director Strategic Finance and Property 
Tel: 0116 305 7668 Email: Declan.Keegan@leics.gov.uk  
 
 

15



This page is intentionally left blank



Quarterly Risk and Return Analysis  

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund  Period ending 31st March 2019

Specialists in Investment Risk and Return Evaluation 

17



 

 

 

 
                                                                                     

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                Specialists in Investment Risk and Return Evaluation  
 

 

Portfolio Evaluation Ltd Market Commentary Q1 2019 (Sterling) 

 
After a disappointing quarter and year ended December 2018 most markets bounced back in the quarter ended March 31 2019 to an extent that left the losses posted 
in 2018 largely recovered. 
 
The last quarter of 2018 saw markets fall due largely to increase uncertainty caused by a number of factors including central banks discussing raising rates and / or easing 
quantitative easing, slower global economic growth (of particular note was China) which some saw as being a precursor to a potential recession, trade war issues (US 
and China), increased market volatility, and some geopolitical concerns. The first quarter of 2019 saw many of these concerns reduce as the US authorities reduced the 
likelihood of short term interest rate hikes, the Chinese have undertaken measures to reduce the decline in economic growth due to monetary tightening, there have 
been positive steps gained in global trade discussions and inflation seems muted in developed markets. The response to this has been a rise global markets.  
 
Looking forwards market commentators continue to expect lower global economic growth and corporate earnings growth with the Eurozone looking particularly 
vulnerable. Many investors seem to expect growth to continue into 2020 and potentially to 2021 as the outlook for a recession gets moved back due partly positive 
central bank actions and benign inflation. However despite this quarter many market commentators are discussing more defensive strategies going forwards, and many 
are also viewing emerging markets positively. 
 
 

 

1

18



 

 

 

 
                                                                                     

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                Specialists in Investment Risk and Return Evaluation  
 

 

Within the UK the obsession and lack of resolution with Brexit has continued through the quarter. This continues to lower the economic growth outlook and reduce the 
willingness of both companies and investment managers to invest in the UK. The ‘high street’ sector continues to struggle with high costs and lower revenues whilst 
business is still reviewing how to proceed in the future. Despite posting significant equity market gains the concerns about the future outlook helps to explain the 
relatively lack lustre performance of UK stockmarkets when compared to many others. The more positive global outlook this quarter saw growth outperform value 
however the market return was very sector specific led by Technology, Basic Materials and Consumer Goods (except for Autos). Given market events over the last 12 
months UK equities have shown mixed results over time, however Technology Healthcare, Basic Materials and Oil & Gas sectors have been strong performers whilst 
Financials, Industrials, Consumer Goods and Consumer Services have dragged. 
 

 
 
Market volatility has continued to increase as a result of the outlook and in particular the risk levels between asset classes has also increased as diversification benefits 
reduce. Many commentators expect this to continue throughout 2019. 
 
For further information 
If you would like further information about the topics contained in this newsletter or would like to discuss your investment performance requirements please contact Nick Kent or 
Deborah Barlow    Tel: +44 (0)1937 841434 (e-mail: nick.kent@portfolioevaluation.net) or visit our website at www.portfolioevaluation.net.   Please note that all numbers, comments and ideas 

contained in this document are for information purposes only and as such are not investment advice in any form. Please remember that past performance is not a guide to future performance. 

2

19

mailto:nick.kent@portfolioevaluation.net
http://www.portfolioevaluation.net/


Client: Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

Manager: Multi-manager

Mandate: Total Fund

Asset Class: Combined Assets

Benchmark: LCC - Total Fund Index

Inception: 31-Mar-2016

Mkt Val: £4.3bn

All returns for periods in excess of 1 year are annualised. The portfolio return is net.  

Benchmark Risk 5.5 5.3 5.3

Portfolio Risk 5.5 5.6 5.6

Excess Return -0.6 -1.2

Active Risk 1.8 1.7 1.7

-1.2 0.9

1 Yr 3 Yr 5 Yr 10 Yr Mar 16

Portfolio Return 5.0 5.2 5.2 10.4

Benchmark Return 5.7 6.4 6.4 9.5

Excess Return Analysis (%)

9.5

QTR

10.4

Total Fund Overview

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

Report Period: Quarter Ending March 2019

0.9

5 Yr Since Mar 16 (p.a.)YTD 1 Yr 3 Yr 10Yr

-2.0

-1.5

-1.0

-0.5

0.0

0.5

1.0

% % 

%%
Aggressive

Active Plus

Active

Core

Indexed

Active Risk

0.0

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

Ex-Post Active Risk Analysis (%)

Expected Active 
Risk Ranges

Ex-Post Active Risk measures the volatility of the actual excess returns achieved by the Portfolio/Fund.
Excess Return Consistency Analysis measures the frequency of the Portfolio/Fund’s outperformance (Blue) and underperformance (Red) versus its benchmark, calcula ted using monthly (or quarterly if indicated) returns since inception.

2.8%

5.6%

16.7%

13.9%

38.9%

5.6% 5.6%

11.1%

0.0%

5.0%

10.0%

15.0%

20.0%

25.0%

30.0%

35.0%

40.0%

< -0.75 -0.75 to -0.51 -0.50 to -0.26 -0.25 to -0.01 0.00 to 0.25 0.26 to 0.50 0.51 to 0.75 > 0.75

F
re

q
u
e
n
c
y
 %

Range of Excess Returns - Since inception

Excess Return Consistency Analysis

3

20



Market Value: 4.3bn

#

0.0

Total Equity 

ex Hedge

Total Inflation 

Linked

0.0

0.0

1.5

-0.1

3.4

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1 -0.5

Total Credit 

and EMM 

Debt

-0.6

0.0

Total Private 

Equity

Total 

Property

-0.1

0.0

Returns 

Summary 

(%)

Asset 

Allocation 

Summary 

(%)

100.0

100.0 11.4

Stock Selection

100.0

100.0

4.6

-0.30.0 0.0

-0.2

3.2

3.3

15.9

0.4

9.6

-9.3

1.9

-0.6

-0.1

0.5

9.8

0.0

0.0

10.0

26.5

-0.2

Portfolio Return

Benchmark Start

Benchmark End 100.0

Portfolio Start

100.0Portfolio End

5.7

100.0

Total Real 

Income

-0.5 0.0

2.3

100.0 25.7

-0.5

-0.4

-0.3

8.0

Total Fund 

(Net)
Total Equity

-0.8

Benchmark Return 5.2

-0.6

Total Fund ex 

Hedge (Net)

-0.6

Total Fund 

(Gross)

9.6

Excess Return

100.0

5.0 8.85.1

5.7

44.0 10.0

0.0

-0.9

44.1100.0

99.3

-0.4

4.0

43.7

98.9 98.9

8.9

Asset Allocation 0.0

Attribution to 

Excess Return 

(%)

-0.1

44.0

Excess Return -0.6

99.3

-0.1

43.0

46.0

45.1

46.0

-0.1

-0.3

0.0

0.5

16.5

14.5

5.0

9.3

24.5

24.8 15.64.7

4.0

0.4

0.1

0.0

25.5

0.1

10.0

10.0

0.5

0.0

13.0

2.3

1.4

3.1

11.8

0.9

0.1

25.5

0.4

24.5

24.7

0.0

12.4

0.0

3.4

Total Other 

Opportunities

1.3

9.3

Total 

Targeted 

Return

4.3

1.2

2.5

0.0

Total 

Alternatives

3.1

1.3

1.8

8.9

Millennium 

Currency

-0.4

-0.4

Cash

0.0

0.2

0.2

1.2

0.0

0.7

-0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

-0.10.0

0.0

4.1

Attribution to Total Fund Excess Return Analysis

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

for Quarter Ended 31st March 2019

100.0

100.0

-0.5

-0.1

-0.4

Total Fund ex 

Hedge 

(Gross)

-0.5

4.7

5.2

-1.0

-0.5

0.0

0.5

1.0

-1.0

-0.5

0.0

0.5

1.0

-10.0

-5.0

0.0

5.0

-4.0

-2.0

0.0

2.0

Net Exposure Start

The Returns Summary details the Portfolio, Benchmark and Excess Returns. The Excess Returns are plotted. The Asset Allocation Summary details the weights held by the portfolio and benchmark in each asset class/manager. The green plots are the over/underweight exposures of the Fund (v Fund benchmark) at the beginning and end of the period.  The Attribution to Excess Return, identifies how each asset 
class/manager has contributed to the overall excess return of the Total Fund.  It is broken down into Asset Allocation (how successful the decision to over/underweight each asset class was) and then into Stock Selection (how well each manager/s decisions have performed).  The Asset Allocation plus the Stock Selection excess returns are all additive and equal the Total Excess Return of the Fund.

Net Exposure End

-1.0

-0.5

0.0

0.5

1.0

4

21



Market Value: 4.3bn

#

-0.7

0.0

0.0

Total Fund 

ex Hedge 

(Net)

-1.4

5.2

6.6

99.0

100.0

100.0

-1.4

98.9

9.1 1.3

Total Fund 

(Net)

Total Fund 

(Gross)
Total Equity

Total Equity 

ex Hedge

Benchmark Return

Total 

Inflation 

Linked

Total Private 

Equity

Total Real 

Income

Total 

Property

Total 

Alternatives

Total 

Targeted 

Return

Total Credit 

and EMM 

Debt

Total Other 

Opportunitie

s

Millennium 

Currency
Cash

Returns 

Summary 

(%)

Excess Return -1.2 -0.8 -0.3 -0.9 2.7 -4.4 -7.4 -2.0 -0.1 -0.4 0.1

Portfolio Return 5.2 5.6 6.9 6.8 19.9 6.6 4.9 7.6 0.5 -2.7 3.2 5.7 -0.4 0.8

6.4 6.4 7.2 7.7 10.7 5.3 5.6 4.9 4.9 4.7 5.2 5.9 0.0 0.7

Asset 

Allocation 

Summary 

(%)

Portfolio Start 100.0 100.0 47.1 46.1 3.7 23.5 9.1 14.4 24.0 12.7 8.1 3.1

8.9 3.4 0.0

0.0 1.7

Portfolio End 100.0 100.0 45.1 44.1

24.5 10.0

15.6 24.7 12.44.7 24.8 9.3

25.5 13.0

16.5 25.5

0.0

0.7

Benchmark Start 100.0 100.0 46.0 46.0 4.0 10.0 2.5 0.014.5

Benchmark End 100.0 100.0 44.0 44.0 4.0 0.0 0.0

Attribution to 

Excess Return 

(%)

Excess Return -1.2 -0.8 -0.4 -0.4 0.3

26.5

-1.0

0.0

-0.2

4.1

0.1

11.4 10.0

-0.1

10.0

0.0 -0.1

Asset Allocation 0.0 -0.2 -0.2 -0.1

0.4 -0.1 0.4

0.3

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00.0

-1.1

0.0

0.1 0.0 -0.1

Stock Selection 0.0 -0.6 -0.3 -0.4

99.0

98.9

0.3 0.0 0.00.0 0.4 -1.1 -0.9 -0.2

Attribution to Total Fund Excess Return Analysis

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

for Year Ended 31st March 2019

100.0

100.0

-1.0

-0.2

-0.8

Total Fund 

ex Hedge 

(Gross)

-1.0

5.6

6.6

-1.6

-0.8

0.0

0.8

-1.6

-0.8

0.0

0.8

-10.0

-5.0

0.0

5.0

10.0

%%

-3.0

-1.5

0.0

1.5

3.0

Net Exposure Start

Net Exposure End

-1.6

-0.8

0.0

0.8

%%%% %%

5

22



Market Value: 4.3bn

1,937.4

1,892.2

1,377.1

313.6

532.5

108.1

229.2

113.0

80.7

333.2

0.0

0.0

181.9

45.2

203.4

1,066.2

398.0

30.2

99.8

204.3

27.6

36.2

668.2

317.1

73.9

45.9

92.9

138.3

1,059.3

531.2

129.4

253.7

147.7

0.4

383.4

110.7

27.4

245.4

144.7

74.4

48.9

13.6

7.8

-0.4

27.9

4,248.7

4,293.9

4,248.7

4,293.9

6.50% FTSE AW North America 70% GBP Hedged 

6.50% FTSE RAFI AW 3000 North America 70% GBP Hedged

2.50% FTSE Developed Europe Ex UK 70% GBP Hedged

2.50% FTSE RAFI 3000 Developed Europe Ex UK 70% GBP Hedged

2.50% FTSE AW Japan 70% GBP Hedged

10.00% IPD UK Monthly Property Index 
7.50% FTSE All Stocks Index Linked 
6.00% MSCI EMM 50% GBP Hedged 
8.00% FTSE All World 70% GBP Hedged 
4.00% FTSE All World

32.00% Libor 1 Month +4%

2.50% FTSE Developed Asia Pacific Ex Japan 50% GBP Hedged

0.610.4 9.8-1.4 10.4 9.8 0.6-0.6 5.2 6.6 -1.4 5.2 6.6Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund ex Hedge (Net) Client Weighted Index Mar-16 98.9 4.6 5.2

13.3 13.6 -0.36.8 7.7 -0.9 6.8 7.7 -0.9Client Weighted Index Mar-16 44.1 8.0 8.9 -0.9

10.4 9.5 0.90.9-1.2 5.2 6.4 -1.2 10.4 9.5

1.3

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund (Net) Client Weighted Index Mar-16 100.0 5.0 5.7 -0.6 5.2 6.4

10.8 9.5-0.8 10.8 9.5 1.3-0.5 5.6 6.4 -0.8 5.6 6.4Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund (Gross) Client Weighted Index Mar-16 100.0 5.1 5.7

7.4 4.7 2.7 5.14.5 0.6LIBOR 1 Month + 4% Mar-16 3.2 1.7 1.2 0.6 7.4 4.7 2.7

17.0 4.7 12.3 19.2

8.6 8.2 0.4

1.1 -0.4 17.0 4.7 12.3

6.9 0.65.6 1.5 7.1 5.6 1.5 7.5

7.8 8.7 -0.9

Kames Capital Property Fund IPD UK Monthly Property Index (GBP) Mar-16 0.6 -0.1 7.1

0.1 5.6 5.6 0.1

11.7 7.8 3.9

IPD UK Monthly Property Index (GBP) Nov-16 0.8 0.8 0.3 5.6 5.6

7.6 4.9 2.7 11.7 7.8 3.9

8.7

15.6 3.2 3.3 -0.2 7.6 4.9 2.7

0.4 0.5 0.00.8 0.7 0.1 0.4 0.5 0.00.2 0.2 0.0 0.8 0.7 0.1Mar-16

LIBOR 1 Month + 4% Mar-16

Apr-18

None

0.7

5.7

3.4

Dec-13 0.0

LIBOR 1 MonthCash Fund

Partners Group Private Debt Fund

Client Weighted Index

Millennium Currency Fund

Client Weighted Index

JPMorgan Global Credit Fund

Christofferson Robb & Company Fund

Total Credit and EMM Debt Fund

Total Inflation-Linked Fund

KKR Global Infrastructure Fund

Aspect Capital Partners Fund

Ruffer Fund

Pictet Fund

EnTrustPermal Fund

Stafford Timberland Fund

JPMorgan Infrastructure Fund

Total Alternatives Fund

Kames Currency Hedge Fund

Total Private Equity Fund

Total Real Income Fund

Colliers Pooled Property

Total Other Opportunities Fund

M&G DOF Fund

Kames Capital II Property Fund

Colliers Direct Property Fund

Aviva Property Fund

Total Property Fund

L&G Pacific Ex Japan Equity Fund

L&G Emerging Markets Equity Fund

Kleinwort Benson Global Equity Fund

Kempen Global Equity Fund

Delaware Emerging Markets Equity Fund

4.5

1.0 -0.1 0.8

Total Equity Fund

L&G UK Equity Fund

L&G North American Equity Fund

L&G Japanese Equity Fund

L&G Total Passive Equity Fund

L&G European Equity Fund

Total Equity Fund ex Hedge

-0.8

1.8

5.3 7.1 7.1 0.0 0.8

1.9 18.4

6.9

-0.3

9.6 8.5

6.9

13.3

10.2

0.0

9.59.4 -0.1

15.9 -0.1

Client Weighted Index Mar-16 0.2

13.6

13.1 0.013.2

13.7Client Weighted Index Mar-16 45.1 8.8 9.6 6.9 7.2 13.66.9

8.1

13.3 13.6 -0.3

7.2 -0.3 12.5

7.932.1 8.9 8.9 0.1

1.91.90.1

4.5 4.8 -0.4

7.9

6.8 5.4 9.4

-2.2

-1.5

9.4

0.4

1.8

3.5

3.1

6.5

1.8

6.0

-0.60.5

0.0

-0.1

4.5

-0.1

Apr-07

1.2 2.4

1.2Mar-16

2.2 -2.3

-8.3

0.3

0.0

1.2 -9.4

FTSE Developed Asia Pacific Ex. Japan Index

0.0

Mar-13 7.7 7.7

4.5

ERBMPF

5.4

6.5

0.1

7.9 0.2

-0.3

-0.9

15.8

6.5

-0.9

-0.1

-0.4

0.11.6

1.0

6.4 0.2

9.4

6.4

-0.1 -0.9

-4.0

0.1

-4.0

0.2

MSCI Emerging Markets Index Dec-13 4.2

PF

1.1

-1.9

BM

FTSE All World Index

Client Specific Index

Dec-13

12.4Dec-13

MSCI Emerging Markets Index Dec-13

14.8

8.1

FTSE All World Index

0.0 8.3

7.3

Dec-13

1.9

2.6

0.0

Dec-13

Client Specific Index

7.5 7.5

2.3 -1.7 0.5

0.4 9.64.7

9.3 0.5

1.2

1.9

1.3

2.3

0.5

0.0 0.5

1.2

1.2

1.2

LIBOR 1 Month + 4%

LIBOR 1 Month + 4%

LIBOR 1 Month + 4%

Dec-13

Mar-16

0.8

7.6

-1.2

3.0

Mar-16

IPD UK Monthly Property Index (GBP)

IPD UK Monthly Property Index (GBP) Mar-16

IPD UK Monthly Property Index (GBP)

IPD UK Monthly Property Index (GBP) Mar-16

LIBOR 1 Month

4.8

Client Weighted Index

LIBOR 1 Month + 4%

Dec-13

Mar-16

0.7

Jun-16

Dec-13

24.8

-0.6

15.5 0.1

-9.3

6.66.0

15.7

1.9

7.5

1.6

0.4

-0.3

4.9 5.6 -0.7

5.6

6.4

5.3

11.9-0.5

9.1 19.910.719.9

Dec-13

0.4

1.2

5.8

6.6

-5.1 5.6

11.9 5.6 6.4

4.9

6.6

-5.1

-0.7

-12.3

6.9

14.9 0.9

QTR

BM ERPF

Year To Date

ER

1 Year 3 Year

-0.8

Benchmark
Incep

Date

Weight 

%

Market 

Value 

(£m)

PF BM ER

Dec-13FTSE All World Index

10.7

FTSE All Share Index

7.5

8.3

10.7

FTSE All World Japan Index 2.5

Dec-13

0.1

10.7

0.7

9.1 15.8

9.7 9.4

7.5 9.4 -1.9

6.0

13.3

14.8

14.2

12.3

11.0

12.2

1.6

12.3

-2.6

3.7

15.7 15.5

4.8

0.8

1.6 -0.614.8

6.9 1.8

-0.9 -0.1

-1.5

0.0

3.0

0.9

8.7

7.8 6.9

6.0

5.6

1.3

-0.8

10.35.3

1.3 -3.0

0.5 -12.8

14.8

8.7

ER

11.9 -1.8

-0.1

0.0

1.1

8.5

9.7 -0.1

-0.2

7.2 6.9

8.7

PF BM

5.6

14.6

13.2

9.9

12.6

5.7

0.915.8

1.1

0.5 -12.8-12.3

0.3

8.6

0.0

Since Inception

7.8 6.9 0.9

9.9 11.7 -1.7

14.5

13.1

14.9

7.3 3.0

12.0

6.1

6.6 0.7

Total Fund Benchmark

2.50% Ashmore Specific Index

Mar-16 0.2 59.059.2

CLIENT SPECIFIC:

5.6

7.00% FTSE All Share

LIBOR 1 Month + 4%

Sep-15

LIBOR 1 Month + 4%

1.7

LIBOR 1 Month + 4%

3.0

5.9

3.4

0.0

Apr-15 0.6

Client Weighted Index

1.1

0.2

FTSE All Stocks Index Linked Index Dec-13 7.4

Mar-18

0.5 0.0

-2.2

0.5 6.90.2 3.0

7.31.3

11.2

3.90.25.6 5.6

12.510.0

5.8

10.3

8.1

10.2

5.9 0.00.0

9.9

-3.0

Kames Capital Index-Linked Fund 0.51.15.9

IFM Global Infrastructure Fund 18.5 4.7 13.8 17.8LIBOR 1 Month + 4% 18.5 4.7 13.8

5.5 0.05.5 5.5 5.5

13.34.5

4.5 14.8

4.9

8.915.7 6.8

12.0

4.9

-3.7

-12.7

-4.4

-7.4 -2.7 -7.4

-3.7

-4.4 0.5

4.7 -4.7

-2.0 4.7 -6.6

1.0 4.7

-8.1 4.7 -12.7

-16.2-11.5 4.7 -16.2

1.0 4.7

-8.1 4.7

0.0

4.7

5.0

4.6

0.0 4.7 -4.7

-2.0 4.7 -6.6

-11.5 4.7

-4.3 4.5 -8.8

4.9 4.5 0.4

-2.1

5.1

-12.5 4.5 -16.9

4.5 -0.93.6

11.2

5.6

8.4 2.7

14.8

4.4 4.5 -0.1

19.2

-2.1

4.5

4.5 0.6

4.5 0.3

4.6

5.0 4.9 0.0

2.4 4.5

Manager Summary-Total Fund

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

for Period Ended 31st March 2019

-0.1 3.0 -3.1

4.5 0.2

4.5 -0.3

4.8

4.2

4.0 1.2 2.9 1.9 4.7 -2.8 1.9 4.7 -2.8 2.6 4.5 -1.8

1.7 1.2 0.6 2.0 4.7 -2.7 2.0 4.44.7 -2.7 4.5 4.5 0.04.5 0.0

1.3 1.5 -0.1 5.7 5.9 -0.1 5.7 5.9 -0.1 11.7 5.0 6.7 11.7 5.0 6.7

LIBOR 1 Month + 4% Mar-16 1.7 2.3 1.2 1.2 -2.6 4.7 -7.3 -2.6 4.7 -7.3 9.0 4.5 4.5 9.0 4.5 4.5

Absolute Return +7.5% Dec-17 1.1 0.5 1.8 -1.3 20.8 7.5 13.4 20.8 7.5 13.4 15.7 7.6 8.1

Infracapital Infrastructure Fund Absolute Return +7.5% Nov-17 0.3 -0.8 1.8 -2.7 12.1 7.5 4.6 12.1 7.5 16.1 7.5 8.6

Aberdeen Standard Private Equity Fund Absolute Return +7.5% Dec-17 0.2 1.2 1.8 -0.6 7.0 7.5 -0.4 7.0 7.5 -0.4 6.8 7.5 -0.7

-0.4 0.0 -0.4 -0.4 0.0 -0.4 0.0 0.0-0.4 -0.6 0.0 -0.6 0.50.5

6.6

-0.4

Client Weighted Index Mar-16 24.7 3.1 1.3 0.5 5.0 4.9 0.0

2.4

Apr-16 8.9 2.3 1.4 1.5

-2.7 4.7 4.5

4.5 0.5

Total Targeted Return Fund LIBOR 1 Month + 4% Apr-16 12.4 4.3

0.9 3.2 5.2 -2.0 3.2 5.2

1.0

1.57.1 5.6-2.0 7.1

Ashmore Emerging Markets Debt Fund LCC - Ashmore EMM Debt Jan-14 2.6 3.2 2.2 6.2 6.6 -0.4 6.2 6.6 -0.4

LGPS Global Active Equity Fund FTSE All World Index Feb-19 7.8 -1.8 1.3 -1.8

Adams Street: Data is on a 4 month lag. We have received the Q4 2018 data, as we have not yet 

received the Q1 2019 data this is lagged.

9.8

9.6 5.0 4.5

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund ex Hedge (Gross) Client Weighted Index Mar-16 98.9 4.7 5.2 -0.5 5.6 -1.0 5.6 6.6 -1.0 10.9

Q2 2019: Kleinwort Benson Global Equity Fund & Kempen Global Equity Fund transferred to the 

LGPS Global Active Equity Fund as at 15th February 2019. Therefore the returns quoted within this 

report for these funds are in effect 'partial period returns'.

Notes:

Net & Gross - Currently we have not received all the necessary manager data to complete this, 

therefore please use with caution. If you require additional information please contact us.

10.9 9.8 1.11.1

PF = Portfolio Return     BM = Benchmark Return     ER = Excess Return  

6

23



Total Equity Fund

Total Equity Fund ex Hedge

L&G Total Passive Equity Fund

L&G UK Equity Fund

L&G North American Equity Fund

L&G Japanese Equity Fund

L&G European Equity Fund

L&G Pacific Ex Japan Equity Fund

L&G Emerging Markets Equity Fund

LGPS Global Active Equity Fund

Kleinwort Benson Global Equity Fund

Kempen Global Equity Fund

Delaware Emerging Markets Equity Fund

Kames Currency Hedge Fund

Total Private Equity Fund

Total Real Income Fund

Total Property Fund

Colliers Pooled Property

Colliers Direct Property Fund

Aviva Property Fund

Kames Capital Property Fund

Kames Capital II Property Fund

Total Inflation-Linked Fund

Kames Capital Index-Linked Fund

IFM Global Infrastructure Fund

KKR Global Infrastructure Fund

JPMorgan Infrastructure Fund

Stafford Timberland Fund

Total Alternatives Fund

Total Targeted Return Fund

Aspect Capital Partners Fund

Ruffer Fund

Pictet Fund

EnTrustPermal Fund

Total Credit and EMM Debt Fund

Ashmore Emerging Markets Debt Fund

JPMorgan Global Credit Fund

Partners Group Private Debt Fund

Total Other Opportunities Fund

M&G DOF Fund

Christofferson Robb & Company Fund

Infracapital Infrastructure Fund

Aberdeen Standard Private Equity Fund

Millennium Currency Fund

Cash Fund

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund ex Hedge

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

4,248,653 98.9 100.04,043,219 99.3 -0.7

0.0

31st Dec 2018

0.9

0.5

0.3

0.1

0.0

0.0

-0.3

0.0

0.1

-0.1

-0.7

0.1

1.2

-1.0

-1.2

-0.3

-0.6

0.0

1.4

-0.1

0.1

0.1

-0.7

1.2

-0.2

0.0

-0.1

-0.1

0.0

-0.5

-0.2

0.0

-0.1

-0.1

0.0

0.0

100.0

31st Mar 2019

Net Exp

(%)

-2.3

-3.0

-2.8

-0.5

-1.4

-0.3

-0.4

0.1

-0.2

-0.3

0.0

0.7

0.0

-1.1

0.1

0.1

-1.3

-0.7

0.2

-0.8

1.0

-0.4

1.9

-0.6

0.0

-0.9

-0.1

0.2

-0.4

-0.8

-1.7

-0.7

-0.1

-0.4

-0.2

0.0

-0.1

0.0

0.0

0.2

1.1

0.7

0.1

0.3

-0.6

0.0

0.3

0.1

1,892,238

Net Exp

(%)

1.1

0.1

(%)

0.7

44.11,749,958 43.0

1.1

13,410 0.3 13,552 0.3

48,639 1.2 48,878

245,396

144,698

246,459 6.1 5.7

72,774 1.8 74,425 1.7

0.7

-1,247 0.0

3.4

3,781 0.1

138,603 3.4

47,221 1.2 27,9411.2

-426

7,842 0.2

0.0

0.626,271 0.6 27,355

8.9

107,319 2.6 110,684 2.6

380,050 9.3

113,532 2.8

6.0244,912

383,436

531,163 12.4

253,704

359 0.0

120,469 3.0

392 0.0

15.6

130,138 3.2

73,944 1.7

1,059,296

647,413 15.9 668,205

317,139

997,957

0.6

36,411 0.9 36,205 0.8

27,837 0.7 27,593

203,403

229,201

45,208

0.0

4.2

Total Fund Reconciliation

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

for Quarter Ended 31st March 2019
Market Value: 4.3bn

Market Val Exposure

1,263,920 31.0

(£000s)

1,377,120

286,255 7.0

4.5

1.9

105,392 2.6

532,467

113,030

0

80,730

5.3

4.7

2.5108,134

1.1

2.6

7.3313,559

1,937,446 45.1

32.1

11.8

Market Val

(£000s)

Exposure

(%)

1,778,358 43.7

480,382

5.2

169,014

212,984

102,951 2.5

75,956

0 0.0

132,405 3.3

100.04,293,861

1,066,200

181,932

0

24.8

12.4

4,071,619 100.0

5.0

0.7

1.0

184,618

1,046,325 25.7

4.2

203,004

28,400

0.0

1.9

99,755

397,995

202,973 5.0

30,177

9.3

30,171 0.7

398,913 9.8

1.8

0.7

4.8

101,520 2.5 2.3

95,692 2.4

7.4

204,266

73,424

302,100 7.4

46,060 1.1

24.5

147,662 3.4

479,304 11.8

1.1

138,309 3.2

24.7

5.9

92,937 2.2

3.0129,437

45,876

333,186 7.8 -0.2

7

24



23 
 

 

 

LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION 

ISSUE 5        March 2019 

FOR PROFESSIONAL 
CLIENTS ONLY 

Cover photo https://unsplash.com/photos/ir5MHI6rPg0 

25



LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION: ISSUE 5 
 

  2 
Please read important information at the end of the report                                         For professional clients only 

 

Introduction 

Welcome to the 5th Edition of our renamed “Tactical Asset Allocation Report” 

We have renamed this report the Tactical Asset Allocation Report to respond to feedback regarding the time scale 
we are working to with this report. We see this being used for short to medium term overlays over your strategic 
asset allocation to take advantage of current market conditions by refining your asset weights within your long-
term allocation bands.  

The 4th quarter of LGPS Central Limited (“LGPSC”) going live has seen the successful transition of £2.1bn of assets 
into the Global Equity Active Multi Manager Fund using Macquarie and Inalytics. We also launched the first Private 
Equity fund 2018/19 vintage. This fund has seen its first investment into a PE Fund and is considering further fund 
and co-investments. The Global Emerging Markets (“GEMs”) Equity Multi-manager fund has received approval 
from the FCA and is now considering options for transition. The application for FCA approval for the Corporate 
Bond (“CB”) fund will be sent in the next week.  

As we embark on our second year, we are seeking to make transitions into the GEMs and CB funds when Partner 
Funds are comfortable with the manager selections and set up arrangements.  We are also working on the 
Infrastructure and two Factor based funds (one with climate change as a factor, the other without). In the next 
three months, we will look to start preparations for the UK Equities, Target Return, Multi Asset Credit, Emerging 
Market Debt and Property funds targeted to launch over the next 12 months.  These will be pooled vehicles 
available to all Partner Funds.  

We will also be working with individual Partner Funds on various segregated mandates including sustainable 
equities, G10 Bonds and other advisory services.  

In this edition of the report we have added “Special Feature” papers on FX Hedging by Vania Clayton and Risk 
Adjusted Return After Costs (RARAC) by Jason Fletcher. 

As always, we welcome any feedback on this report. 

Summary of Strategy thoughts 

As this current economic expansion extends and as more indicators point downwards (the inverted US yield curve 
being the most recent) LGPSC is growing more cautious on the outlook for returns in growth assets as the 
probability of a recession and market correction rise. Valuations are more reasonable now and growth assets still 
offer superior yields to bonds (UK equities dividend yield is currently 4.5% versus UK 10-year gilt yield of 1%). We 
are neutral on growth assets. However, the stabilising assets (Government Bonds and Index Linked securities) are 
priced as though the world was already in recession making LGPSC question the value in this area. Expected returns 
on gilts and bonds will not beat inflation let alone the liabilities of pension funds, leaving LGPSC very cautious in 
this area. LGPSC therefore continue to prefer income assets which offer better returns than government bonds 
and lower risk than growth assets. In the current market conditions LGPSC’s view is that those assets are most 
likely to generate the returns required to meet future liabilities and will offer protection in a recession. However, 
allocation decisions should also consider the funding level of the Partner Fund. The biggest risks LGPSC sees on 
the horizon are a Hard Brexit fall out, global recession and trade wars. Favouring Income assets in this environment 
is supportive though LGPSC would caution Partner Funds about leaving overseas assets exposed to Sterling 
exchange rate fluctuations un-hedged, LGPSC still believes that Sterling may rise in the future in the balance of 
possible Brexit outcomes. Hedging foreign currency assets back to Sterling is something LGPSC is supportive of in 
the current market environment.   

Jason Fletcher, Chief Investment Officer 

CIO SUMMARY  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

26



LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION: ISSUE 5 
 

  3 
Please read important information at the end of the report                                         For professional clients only 

 

LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED’S VIEW ON WEIGHTINGS  
 
The following table gives a summary of our view on the 6-18 months tactical positioning against your customised benchmark. 
 
Table1: Weightings 

 Significant Underweight Underweight Neutral Overweight Significant Overweight 

BROAD ASSET CLASS  Stabilising Growth Income  

GROWTH ASSET CLASS 
 

   Private Equity  
 

 
 GEM Equities 

 

North America, 
Equities, 

Asia Pac Equities 

EU Equities, 
UK Equities, 

Commodities 
Japan Equities 

INCOME ASSETS  Insurance-Linked Property 
Credit , 

Infrastructure , 
EM Debt 

 

STABILISING ASSETS UK Bonds, 
JP Bonds 

Index-Linked, 
EU Bonds IG Bonds  US Bonds Gold 

INVESTMENT STYLES Size Low Volatility Growth Quality/ESG ,  
Momentum  

Value  

CURRENCIES 
 

 US dollar Euro, 
 Yen  

GBP   

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

LGPS Central Limited’s view on “Weightings”: 
 LGPS Central Limited remains “Underweight” in Stabilising Assets and “Overweight” in Income Assets.  Growth Assets remain “Neutral”. Cheap valued Growth 

Assets with good economic outlook and valuation remain attractive.  
 Equities are the most favoured of the Growth Assets but have seen some changes in terms of regional favourites. Our favoured equities remain UK, but now 

also include Europe as well as Japan, and GEMs change from strong “Overweight” to “Underweight”, mainly due to sentiment change and worsening economic 
outlook. 

 There are only small changes to observe within our preferences in Stabilising and Income Assets. 

 

      Upgraded,      Downgraded compared to previous quarter 

27



LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION: ISSUE 5 
 

  4 
Please read important information at the end of the report                                         For professional clients only 

 

Source: Bloomberg Note: listed proxies have been used for Infrastructure, Property and Private Equity 

Source: Bloomberg (NB: assumes dividends were reinvested),  Note: listed proxies have been used for Infrastructure, Property and Private Equity. 

BROAD ASSET CLASSES 
Table 2: Growth/Income/Stabilising Assets  

 
Model Score1 View Investment Notes 

GROWTH 0 Neutral 
Neutral valuations last quarter, and some increased market risk, 

e.g. inflation and recession concerns 

INCOME 1 Overweight Safe Income in economic downturn , neutral valuation and 
downside protection 

STABILISING -1 Underweight 
Low/Negative expected return, recession priced in and at risk if 

economic indicators turn up 
 
Table 3: Historical Annualised Returns (* except for the 3 months, where total return is used) 

 
3 months* One year Three years Five years Ten years 

Twenty 
years Bloomberg Ticker 

GLOBAL EQUITIES 13.91% 1.67% 11.68% 7.64% 12.99% 5.11% FTAW01 Index 

PRIVATE EQUITY 14.11% 9.14% 16.24% 11.17% 19.45% n/a IPRV LN Index 

PROPERTY 17.90% 17.81% 7.62% 9.88% 19.30% 11.13% REIT INDEX 

INFRASTRUCTURE 14.17% 8.48% 9.05% 5.98% 10.96% n/a SPGTIND Index 

HIGH YIELD 5.08% 2.49% 6.70% 5.73% 16.96% 9.78% HL00 Index 

UK GILTS 3.72% 2.87% 3.21% 5.42% 4.92% 5.25% G0L0 Index 

UK INDEX-LINKED 6.85% 4.96% 7.53% 8.88% 8.44% 6.63% G0LI Index 

GOLD 0.21% 1.68% 4.41% 6.90% 4.51% 9.12% XAUGBP Index 
 
 
Table 4: Correlation Matrix (5 year historical correlation) 

 FTSE All 
World AW 

TR GBP 

iShares 
Listed 

Private 
DJ REIT 

S&P 
Global 
Infra 

Sterling 
High-Yield 

UK Gilt UK Inf-Link 
Gilt 

XAUGBP 
Index 

GLOBAL EQUITIES 1 0.652 0.554 0.774 0.487 -0.237 -0.149 -0.268 

PRIVATE EQUITY   1 0.359 0.482 0.388 -0.171 -0.104 0.015 

PROPERTY   0.815 1 0.666 0.224 0.251 0.200 0.049 

INFRASTRUCTURE   0.033 0.029 1 0.418 0.037 0.074 -0.030 

HIGH YIELD 0.778 0.058 0.082 0.418 1 -0.017 -0.012 -0.187 

UK GILTS 0.617 -0.16 -0.09 0.353 0.455 1 0.827 0.422 

UK INDEX-LINKED 0.525 0.267 0.203 0.218 0.657 0.31 1 0.375 

GOLD -0.231 0.407 0.349 -0.11 0.004 0.05 0.085 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

                                                             
1 Refers to LGPS Central Limited model as described on page 6 

LGPS Central Limited’s view on “Broad Asset Classes”: 
 LGPS Central Limited currently favours Income over Stabilising Assets over the next 12 months due to their 

relative value, and stable cash flows with low correlation to Growth Assets. 
 The sharp equity market fall in Q4 2018 has seen a full recovery in Q1 pushing valuations up again, together 

with the concerns on economic outlook. Most asset classes have seen good returns above inflation over the 
last three, five, ten and twenty years.  

 Commodities and Gold provide good diversification against equity markets and could be added as a 
diversifier to the portfolio.  

 Fixed Income can be allocated to the portfolio for the same reason, but we remain underweight, given its 
poor valuation, low expected returns and the unsupportive economic environment. 

 

28



LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION: ISSUE 5 
 

  5 
Please read important information at the end of the report                                         For professional clients only 

 

GROWTH ASSET VIEW 
Table 5: Growth Assets 

 
Model Score1 View Investment Notes 

UK 2 Overweight 
Positive sentiment and neutral valuation, but economic and political 

risks leave an environment of uncertainty 

NORTH AMERICA 0 Neutral 
Expensive valuations are back and economic risk is higher 

compared to other geographies. Neutral sentiment  

EUROPE 2 Overweight 
Good dividend yields, attractive valuations, and positive sentiment, 

but economic outlook remains unstable 

JAPAN 4 Overweight 
Attractive valuation and economics have turned positive, but trade 

war consequences remain 

ASIA PAC 0 Neutral 
Economic growth potential, valuations have become more 

expensive and fears of trade war may overshadow the potential 

GEMs -2 Underweight 
Mixed picture, new negative sentiment and economic growth 

concerns, neutral valuation 

PRIVATE EQUITY -4 Underweight 
High investment cost, sentiment negative, long-term economic 

outlook uncertain, we recommend selective positioning in quality 
and stable companies 

COMMODITIES 2 Overweight 
Positive given sentiment and exposure to weakening dollar but 

provides no yield 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 
INCOME ASSET VIEW 
Table 6: Income Assets 

 
Model Score1 View Investment Notes 

CREDIT 1 Overweight 
Economic play, valuations slightly expensive, but supported 

by positive sentiment and spreads 

EMERGING MARKET 
DEBT 1 Overweight Economic play has strengthened and valuation remains 

good, but sentiment is negative 

PROPERTY 0 Neutral Relative value, inflation protection, sentiment remains 
negative and high investment costs 

INFRASTRUCTURE 2 Overweight 
Relative value, inflation protection, positive sentiment but 
high investment costs, renewables & sustainable exposure 

INSURANCE-LINKED -1 Underweight 
Two bad years and positive sentiment but high investment 

costs and structural concerns 

 

 

 

 

 

LGPS Central Limited’s view on “Growth Assets”: 
 General recession concerns could have an impact on Growth Assets, with Private Equity suffering the most 

due to more expensive valuations.  
 GEMs have changed from “Overweight” to “Underweight” due to valuations looking less attractive and 

change in sentiment to negative. 
 Japan and Europe are the most attractive regions in terms of cheap valuations, but earnings have reached a 

high reducing the general potential for growth assets. 
 UK remains “Overweight” and is supported by positive sentiment. 

LGPS Central Limited’s view on “Income Assets”: 
 LGPS Central Limited has a favourable view on Income Assets. 
 Emerging market debt is gradually being downgraded, but our “Overweight” view remains mainly based on 

economic outlook.  
 Property is downgraded by one notch based on recession outlook to “Neutral”, and Infrastructure remains 

“Overweight”. 

29



LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION: ISSUE 5 
 

  6 
Please read important information at the end of the report                                         For professional clients only 

 

STABILISING ASSET VIEW 
Table 7: Stabilising Assets 

 
Model Score1 View Investment Notes 

UK BONDS -4 Underweight 
Negative expected return, inflation risk, economic growth 

faltering and political risk 

INDEX-LINKED -2 Underweight 
Negative expected return and concern about long 

duration/interest rates 

US BONDS 1 Overweight 
Fair value but increasing deficit and quantitative tightening, 
inflation risk and economic growth potentially overheating 

JP BONDS -5 Underweight 
Poor valuation and Central Bank policy supportive market, 

in addition to currency risk 

EU BONDS -2 Underweight 
Negative expected return, economic growth vulnerable due 

to political uncertainty and EU bank debt issue 

IG CORPORATE BONDS 0 Neutral 
Corp spreads neutral and anchored to government bond 

yields, but general good credit outlook 

GOLD 3 Overweight Favoured Stabilising Asset, when we do not like other 
Stabilising Assets 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
INVESTMENT FACTORS (EQUITIES) 
Factor based investing provides a way of potentially adding outperformance relative to a market cap-based 
approach at a much lower cost than active investing. It recognises that the market cap-based index does not provide 
the best risk adjusted return for a portfolio given its natural overweight in momentum, large cap and expensive 
stocks. In the following factor model, we have taken the seven factors of value, growth, income growth, size (small 
cap), ESG, low volatility and momentum and then applied the same criteria we use to consider other asset classes in 
our model assessing each factor for valuation, sentiment, economic suitability, risk suitability, investment cost and 
currency. Investment cost in factor-based investing is low relative to the other asset classes, though momentum 
factors (given their higher turnover) and ESG factors (given their higher index costs) are both scored neutral. Given 
all strategies are global the currency scores are all neutral. Note that ESG and quality share similar characteristics. 
Climate change as a factor is little correlated to specific economic cycles given its long-term investment impact 
horizon of 10-20 years. The graph below summarises the preferred overweight factor(s) depending on the various 
stages of the economic cycle. 
Economic Cycle and Investment Factors: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LGPS Central Limited’s view on “Stabilising Assets”: 
 LGPS Central Limited remains “Underweight” for most Stabilising Assets mainly based on the low/negative 

yields but recognises that they should represent a proportion of the portfolio given the downside protection 
they can offer. 

 “Underweight” view has further worsened due to more expensive looking valuations, in particular for Japan 
and UK. Only US bonds have become “Overweight” due to improved valuations and the US economic 
outlook. 

 Gold offers good diversification and a safe haven in turbulent markets and protects against political and 
economic risks.  

Boom Slowdown Recession Recovery 

Positive 
economic 
growth 

Negative 
economic 
growth 

Growth 
Value 
Momentum 
Low Size 

Quality/ESG 
Low Volatility 

Growth 
Value 
Momentum 
Low Size 

Quality/ESG 
Low Volatility 

 
Now 

30



LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION: ISSUE 5 
 

  7 
Please read important information at the end of the report                                         For professional clients only 

 

Table 8: Investment Factors 

FACTOR ASSET VIEW 
Table 7: Investment Factors 

 
Model Score1 View Investment Notes 

Value 3 Overweight Very attractive valuations, strong sentiment and most favourite 
factor 

Growth 0 Neutral Poor sentiment and increased risks 

Size -3 Underweight Concern with slowing economy, negative sentiment and market 
risk 

Momentum 2 Overweight Overweight based on current attractive valuation and sentiment 

Low Volatility -1 Underweight Poor long-term performance but has become more attractive due 
to possible change in economic cycle  

Quality/ESG 1 Overweight Positioning in light of potential economic slowdown and protection 
against market declines 

 

 
LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED SCORING MODEL 
LGPS Central Limited’s model scores each asset class against its valuation, sentiment, economic outlook, market 
risk, currency and investment cost (scored between -2 and +2). Positive scores suggest (strong) overweight and 
negative scores, (strong) underweight positions. Where a zero is assigned our view is neutral. The scores for the 
different assessment areas, e.g. valuation, sentiment etc. are then added to derive the final score for that asset class. 
We are constantly developing this scoring to include other variables such as ESG measures and technical factors, as 
well as currencies.  
 
RECESSION WATCH 
Key indicators for a recession have worsened over the last quarter with 1) a flat yield curve, 2) a stable employment 
and 3) the changing monetary environment. Corporate debt is a worry in certain markets alongside EU banks’ non-
performing loans. Chinese corporate leverage is of concern and some areas of high yield could pose problems 
especially if rates were to rise more sharply than expected. Auto finance is also showing some signs of stress. The US 
growth cycle has been rather long; this, combined with rising interest rates and increased asset volatility may 
indicate the first signs of a recession in the medium term.   
 
LPGS Central Limited View –We see the likelihood of a recession as medium over the next 12 months. 2020 could mark 
the start of the next recession. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LGPS Central Limited’s view on “Investment Factors”: 
 LGPS Central Limited’s view on Investment Factors has slightly changed in light of increased recession 

concerns, meaning Growth and Value have suffered loss of model points. 
 In light of the current economic cycle, market risk and sentiment, the favoured factors are a combination of 

“Value” and “Quality/ESG”. 
 “Momentum” scores well but LGPSC remain conservative due to lack of volatility. 

 

31



LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION: ISSUE 5 
 

  8 
Please read important information at the end of the report                                         For professional clients only 

 

LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED Q1 MARKET UPDATE2  
The first quarter of 2019 showed a very positive picture across the globe in equities, balancing out the losses of the 
previous quarter. The strongest increase was observed from the S&P 500 with 13.07%, closely followed by a 
performance of 12.40% by the Hang Seng (all in local currencies). The FTSE 100 and Eurostoxx 50 also enjoyed good 
performance during the quarter (8.19% and 11.67% respectively). Asia Pacific performed in line with all other 
markets, rising by 10.93%.   

* 
The US Michigan Consumer Sentiment is nearly unchanged from its highs in April 2018 and is still well above its ten-
year average indicating that positive momentum continues. After the negative equity performance in Q4 2018, the 
US Michigan Consumer Sentiment took a dive, but has since recovered. Jobless claims and a small business survey 
(the Small Business Optimism Index), remain positive suggesting a good economic mood, although overshadowed 
by an increased recession risk. The VIX has calmed down from its recent high levels in Q4 18, and is now back to more 
normal levels, indicating that the market is less uncertain and worried. 

* 
In Q1 2019, the UK was dominated by Brexit, with a series of indicative votes on alternative Brexit solutions after 
Theresa May’s deal was rejected three times. None of those indicative votes brought any consensus in parliament, 
leaving the UK with limited options at the quarter end, bringing the possibility of a no-deal Brexit back on the table. 
However, no Brexit is now a possible outcome. 

* 
The Oil price rallied over the course of the first quarter by 27.12%, reversing the Q4 2018 losses. The Oil rally was 
fuelled by OPEC’s optimism due to production declines. Gold prices closed flat over Q1 with 0.7%. Sterling has 
strengthened by 2.2% against the USD over Q1 but the direction of travel remains uncertain with Brexit.  

* 
The US Federal Reserve is expected to maintain the current interest rate level. However, with looming recession 
risks, some market participants do expect rate cuts going forward. Benchmark US yields therefore fell by 27bps amid 
concern over the economic outlook. In the UK 10-year yields have dropped from 1.277% to 1.0% driven by the 
ongoing Brexit uncertainty, recession risks and stronger equity markets.   

* 
In Q2 we expect news to be dominated by Brexit, slowing Chinese growth and more talks about recession risks. Trade 
war tensions seem to be easing, and inflation pressure is ceasing but uncertainty about the economic outlook is high. 

* 
LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED Q1 RESPONSIBLE INVESTMENT UPDATE  
 
In January a tailings dam at an iron ore mine, owned by Brazil’s Vale SA, collapsed causing at least 200 fatalities, and 
the release of over 10 million cubic metres of tailings waste into the environment downstream of the dam. Vale has 
had a significant amount of its mining activity halted by the Brazilian state on safety grounds. The decrease in global 
supply has led to a 6% increase in iron ore prices, and Citigroup has increased its 2019 price expectation for the 
commodity by 40%. Rival miners’ valuations - including Rio Tinto, Anglo American and BHP Billiton - increased by 
more than 2% in response to the supply shock. Investors and the public have called for changes in the way tailings 
dams are classified, managed, and reported on to the public. This could lead to increased costs (which will fall 
disproportionately on different miners depending on the quality of their assets) not all of which can be passed onto 
customers. Over the long-term additional safety measures should reduce the likelihood of tail-risk events like 
Brumadinho.  

* 

The ‘proxy season’ – the time of year when the majority of listed companies put issues to shareholder vote at AGMs 
– is nearly upon us. Four topics appear to loom large. Executive pay will continue to attract attention, and this year 
executive pensions contributions – a top up to base and variable pay worth up to £500k – are set to draw the ire of 
shareholders. Of all the AGM items drawing ‘significant dissent’ last year, 50% were due to remuneration. In the US, 

                                                             
2 Performance for the quarter measured over period of 30/09/18 to 31/12/18 

32



LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION: ISSUE 5 
 

  9 
Please read important information at the end of the report                                         For professional clients only 

 

proxy campaigners have long requested transparency over corporate donations to political parties and lobbying 
organisations, and 2019 appears to be a breakthrough year with companies including Ameriprise Financial Inc, 
Mondelez International Inc and MSCI Inc, signalling willingness to disclose their payments. Some investors have 
announced plans to expand rule-based voting on diversity matters (e.g. voting against a company’s Nominations 
Committee chair where the proportion of female directors falls below a certain threshold) beyond the UK to include 
US, European and Australasian markets. Finally, investors in certain fossil fuels companies will need, similarly to the 
2018 proxy season, to determine whether to back climate-related shareholder resolutions, some of which have been 
filed by institutional investors, and others by NGOs.  

* 

The EU appears determined to cement its leadership as a market for sustainable finance. The European Parliament 
and Council have agreed on a new regulation that will require investors and investment advisors to disclose 
information on how they integrate sustainability risks in decision-making processes, and on how they measure and 
mitigate the adverse impacts of their investments on sustainability factors. The European Parliament has also 
formally agreed on a framework for establishing a taxonomy describing which economic activities substantially 
contribute to environmental objectives such as climate change mitigation and adaptation. This could shape financial 
products describing themselves as ‘sustainable’ or ‘impact’. Finally, the EU Joint Research Centre has released a draft 
technical report on the development of EU Ecolabel criteria for retail financial products, which again could come to 
shape certain types of financial products.  

* 

Google’s parent company Alphabet Inc. has incurred another anti-trust fine from EU regulators. The latest fine of 
€1.5bn (Alphabet’s annual net income is over $30bn) brings the total levied to date to €6.5bn. Anti-trust has long 
been listed as a risk for so-called FAANG stocks3, whose size and growth has made them important parts of 
institutional portfolios. Were the risk to crystallise, the cash-generating business models of these technology majors 
could bring a downside event greater than the regulator’s penalties. Amazon and Apple have also been investigated 
for anti-trust. Apple vs Pepper is a case in the US where a group of consumers allege Apple has behaved 
monopolistically by controlling which apps are distributed through Apple platforms.  

* 

A significant change is underway in emerging market (EM) index construction, and this could introduce new ESG 
risks and opportunities for investors. MSCI has announced that it will increase the proportion of China A shares – 
shares of Chinese companies listed and traded in China – within its flagship EM index at a faster than expected rate. 
Having been rejected repeatedly up to and including 2017, A shares will now represent c3.3% of the index by the end 
of 2019. Approximately $1.9tn tracks the index and, while estimates vary, up to $125bn could be added to China A 
shares as a result of the re-weighting, which could rise to 16% of the index over time. FTSERussell announced that 
inclusion of China A shares will be phased in from June 2019, reaching c5.5% at the end of ‘phase 1’.  

* 

Previously China A shares have been rejected by the index constructors for reasons of inadequate corporate 
governance standards (including low levels of board independence), and poor shareholder protections (including 
regular stock suspensions). Some improvements have been made including an easing of foreign investment 
restrictions, a doubling of limits for investments in overseas funds, and a decline in the number of suspended stocks. 
Rather than a categorical governance risk, the introduction of A shares to institutional portfolios – passive equity 
investors will be forced buyers of A shares, in increasing volumes – could be a governance opportunity for investors 
with sophisticated stewardship programmes.  

 

                                                             
3 FAANG stands for Facebook, Amazon, Apple, Netflix and Google 

33



LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION: ISSUE 5 
 

  10 
Please read important information at the end of the report                                         For professional clients only 

 

RISK ANALYSIS 

Table 8: Risk in order of probability 

RISK LGPSCL 
Possibility 

LGPSCL 
Impact Change Comment LGPSC favoured assets to protect 

against the risk 

EQUITY 
DOWNTURN High Moderate  

Exaggerated growth expectations, profit 
taking in the equity market, increased 

recession risk and limited monetary policy 
stimulus available could see equity markets 

fall. 

Safe haven assets such as 
government bonds and gold, 
increased demand for equity 
downside protection makes 

volatility rise, buy volatility early, 
as short-term measure protect 

through selling futures 

BREXIT High High  

 Brexit could still hit the UK economy due 
to lost trade revenue from the EU and 

continue having a weakening impact on 
Sterling which could cause rising exports 

outside the EU in the medium term. 
Increasing uncertainty, the EU’s 

unwillingness to re-negotiate a deal and the 
UK parliament not achieving decision-

making progress still make a hard Brexit an 
option. 

A hard Brexit would have a 
negative impact, but there is also 

the possibility of no Brexit too 
which is why LGPS has a balanced 

view on UK equities 

GLOBAL RECESSION  Moderate Moderate NEW 

Recession watch factors are pointing 
towards a possible global recession in 2020 
fuelled by US growth stagnating, Chinese 

debt leverage and elevated interest rates in 
the US. 

Factors such as Quality/ESG and 
low volatility perform relatively 

well in a recession.  
Stabilising and income assets will 

outperform if economy enters 
recession 

MONETARY POLICY 
SURPRISES  Moderate Moderate NEW 

The inflation outlook is mixed, with some 
forecasters believing that it will rise and 
require higher interest rates, and some 

believing that slowing economic growth 
will keep it contained. The possibility of a 

global recession adds further doubt into the 
mix.  Low levels of interest rates in most 

countries mean that there is limited 
monetary policy action available in the 

event of low inflation levels. Markets could 
be surprised by monetary policy in either 

direction. 

Underweight Fixed Income, 
Overweight Infrastructure, 

Overweight Growth Assets and 
high-quality credit 

 

POLITICAL RISKS Moderate Moderate NEW 

Euro break up risks are reduced due to 
negative Brexit example (the UK). 

However, there is a considerable amount of 
other political risks arounds the globe, such 

as North Korea, tensions in India and 
domestic US political risks. 

Overweight protective assets such 
as Gold, non-Euro assets, buy 

Sterling, buy US Dollar 

FAANG RISK Medium Medium NEW 

Technology companies could be impacted 
by new taxes or other pressures as a result 
of increased regulatory focus. Recent fines 

issued over technology companies could hit 
further companies. In addition, technology 
companies are exposed to increased Cyber 

Risk as well as the technology market 
reaching a saturation point. 

Underweight technology 

ISOLATION & 
PROTECTION/CHINA Medium High NEW 

General trade war concerns from 2018 carry 
on their trend in 2019 with increased 

negative sentiment and worries about the 
consequences. Negative consequence for 
China could be expected from potential 
boondoggle projects designed to target 

employment levels alongside the general 
overleveraged China concerns. 

Slowdown of economic growth 
and de-stabilising effect, 

overweight Gold and insurance 
linked, overweight US equities, 

underweight GEMs 

CREDIT RISK/DEBT 
ISSUES 

Medium Moderate 
 

UK political risks are increasing, EU banks 
have not taken enough non-performing 

loan action, China and Automotive debt are 
concerns at present. 

Underweight EU and China, 
underweight selective credit, such 

as Automotive 

34



LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION: ISSUE 5 
 

  11 
Please read important information at the end of the report                                         For professional clients only 

 

RISK LGPSCL 
Possibility 

LGPSCL 
Impact Change Comment LGPSC favoured assets to protect 

against the risk 

CLIMATE-RELATED 
TRANSITION RISK  Medium  Moderate  

 
- Generic Carbon price at 10-year high 
- UNPRI is highlighting risk 
- Investment gap in transitioning the 
energy system equal to 2.4% of GDP 

Underweight Energy & GEMs, 
overweight Renewables and 

sustainable investment themes 
such as Infrastructure  

CLIMATE-RELATED 
PHYSICAL RISK  

Medium  Moderate  
 

- US Billon Dollar Disaster Event Frequency: 
Average based on last 5 years, modestly 
above average based on last 38 years.  
- Catastrophic Economic losses for EMEA 
for 2018 well under 10-year average. 
- Catastrophic Economic losses for US for 
2018 at record low compared to 10-year 
average. 

Hold a well-diversified portfolio  

 

 

 

 

 

LGPS Central Limited’s view on “Scenario Risks”:  
 LGPS Central Limited’s view is that with a well-diversified portfolio, the majority of key risks from these 

scenarios should balance out any strong negative impacts. Alternatively, short term asset adjustments can 
be made to the portfolio to seek protection or a derivative overlay can hedge out undesired negative 
impacts and provide protection. 

 It is our view that the next 12 months should produce a positive return for Income Assets and will probably 
see low to negative returns for Stabilising Assets. Our opinion is that fixed income does not offer good risk 
adjusted returns for pension fund money at this time and should remain underweight. Growth Assets may 
in the short-term see negative returns if a bear market manifests itself. 

 Given that we have started a new year, LGPSC has undertaken a major refresh on its emerging risks 
through a brain storming session with the Investment Directors and CIO. The main new risk introduced is 
the FAANG risk.  

 
 

35



LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION: ISSUE 5 
 

  12 
Please read important information at the end of the report                                         For professional clients only 

 

Vania Clayton 
Senior Portfolio Manager 
 
 
Vania.clayton@lgpscentral.co.uk 

Phone: 01902 916 206 

 
 

SPECIAL FEATURE 1: CURRENCY RISK 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

To hedge or not to hedge ….? 

Local Government Pension Funds (“The Fund”) invest in a wide range of asset 

classes which are geographically diversified, meaning the Fund acquires exposure 
to non-Sterling currencies. However, the Fund’s offsetting liability exposure is 
denominated in Sterling, thus the Fund exposes itself to currency risk, by investing 
in these non-Sterling currencies.  

 

 

 

When invested in a non-Sterling asset not only is the asset performance relevant but also how the 
currency pair performs over time during the investment period. As a result, the currency pair exchange 
rate can either enhance the asset return or reduce the overall performance. 

 
In general, it can be observed that currency risk is a major risk after equity risk for Pension Funds. If 

currency risk belongs to the universe of investable asset classes (e.g. are part of the strategic asset 
allocation) or their exposure in a portfolio is desirable for diversification purpose, then such non-Sterling 
currency exposure may be part of the wider asset allocation strategy with the decision to retain the risk, 
hedge it or somewhere in between. This investment decision should be reviewed on a regular basis as 
part of the asset allocation review taking the current market environment into consideration. 

 
 

 

For example, on a quarterly basis we 
publish the LGPSC view on the main 
currencies in our Strategic Asset 
Allocation Report. Given the background 
of USD/GBP nearing its historical low, a 
volatile market environment and the 
ongoing Brexit uncertainty. LGPSC 
believes there is higher likelihood for 
GBP appreciating then depreciating 
against the USD. 

Source: Q4 18 Strategic Asset Allocation report 

If the Fund does not wish to have exposure to non-Sterling currencies, then it has the option to hedge 

this currency risk. It is important to note that when the Fund invests in non-Sterling assets, that the 
Fund is only exposed to Sterling appreciation against the non-domestic currency. If Sterling 
depreciates, this will have a positive impact on the total asset’s returns, when valuing in Sterling.  

36



LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION: ISSUE 5 
 

  13 
Please read important information at the end of the report                                         For professional clients only 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Source: LGPSC 

When exploring hedging strategies to eliminate/reduce the risk of the asset returns to GBP 

appreciation, it is best to think about “insuring” this risk. A hedge is similar to an insurance which will 
provide a certain risk off-setting pay-off should a certain event occur. It will provide a stabilising impact 
on the asset return. Like car insurance, if an accident happens, this will trigger an off-setting payment 
towards repairing the car. Currency hedging works in a similar manner: If the “accident” happens (GBP 
appreciates) the value of the hedge instrument will increase, off-setting the currency loss on the 
underlying asset in a non-Sterling currency. In the same manner as car insurance it can be terminated 
if it is no longer needed or modified to adjust the cover, a hedge can be wound down at any time, for 
example should the outlook for the currency pair change or the hedge having already fulfilled its 
“insurance” purpose after a strong GBP appreciation.  

But as with any insurance, a currency hedge is associated with certain costs as “insurance” against risks 

is not free, which means the return of the asset is reduced from the outset by those costs. When 
comparing the un-hedged Investment return and the Investment return with a currency hedge overlay, 
the Investor needs to make an Investment decision. Would the Investor prefer an un-stable asset return 
(which could either rise or fall), or would the Investor be prepared to reduce the asset return from the 
outset by a certain percentage but gaining certainty over the future currency related asset return. Once 
hedged, the asset returns will no longer be exposed to currency exchange rate fluctuations. The exact 
cost of hedging the currency risk will depend on market environment conditions (such as interest rate 
differentials) and the choice of hedging instrument.  

Hedging Instruments: The choice of hedging instruments will be mainly determined by costs and 

whether the Fund would like to retain the upside benefit of Sterling depreciations, or if the Fund is 
prepared to give up currency risk and reward in both directions, e.g. Sterling appreciating and 
depreciating. When looking at the possible Sterling movements against other non-Sterling currencies 
it is relevant to form a view on the likelihood which direction the currency pair might move and with 
what magnitude. The two most popular FX hedging instruments are FX Forwards and FX Options, FX 
Futures in general do not have enough liquidity. FX Forwards hedge Sterling appreciation and 
depreciation, incur ongoing “maintenance” costs, and require eligible collateral to be available. FX 
Option (Calls) only hedge GBP appreciation and retain additional return potential if GBP depreciates, 
but require in slightly larger upfront (insurance) premium, but the positive being no collateral posting 
requirements. Which hedging instrument is more suitable needs to be assessed on a case by case basis 
considering the current market environment and outlook.  

 

37



LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION: ISSUE 5 
 

  14 
Please read important information at the end of the report                                         For professional clients only 

 

 Source: LGPSC 

Source: Bloomberg 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

It is important to define the currency hedging strategy individually for different asset classes, for 

example bonds tend to have a 100% correlation with currency and hence are often fully hedged. This is 
called the hedge ratio: It indicates how much percentage of the total market value in the non-domestic 
currency is hedged back to the base currency, in this case Sterling. Equities are not considered 100% 
correlated to currency moves, as equities often have exposure to overseas business and hence a lower 
hedge ratio is most commonly applied. For example, based on 5-year historical data GBPCHF (0.538) 
and GBPJPY (0.564) have a higher correlation (with their local equity index) compared to GBPUSD 
(0.128), which would indicate a higher hedge ratio requirement for CHF and JPY based on correlation, 
(see correlation matrix below): 

But the hedge ratio will not only be defined by the correlation, other factors such as the interest rate 

outlook and monetary policy of the specific country are included in those considerations. 

Lastly, we want to introduce the two common forms of currency hedging: Passive vs. Active. In 

general, Passive currency hedging refers to setting the hedge ratio for equities at 50% and for Bonds at 
100%, based on statistical evidence that this minimises currency related portfolio volatility, which we 
call it a neutral hedge ratio. 
 

38



LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION: ISSUE 5 
 

  15 
Please read important information at the end of the report                                         For professional clients only 

 

Investment Costs: This is simply the difference between the gross return and the net return the 
Pension Fund gets as an investor. 

Jason Fletcher 
CIO 
 
Jason.Fletcher@lgpscentral.co.uk 

Phone: 01902 916 170 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SPECIAL FEATURE 2: RISK ADJUSTED RETURN AFTER COSTS (RARAC)  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

In contrast active currency hedging activities review the hedge ratio on a regular basis incorporating a 

view on the currency outlook, amongst other factors, and then set the ratio closer to 0% or 100%. Over 
time as market environment changes, the ratio is reviewed and revised. A simplified example can be  

the USDGBP, where Sterling 
currently is trading near 
historically low levels (in the 
last 20 years). This would give a 
strong argument to have a 
USDGBP ratio > 50%, as it 
appears more likely for Sterling 
to appreciate than depreciate 
against the USD.  

While active (dynamic) 

currency hedging normally 
refers to managing a non-fixed 
hedge ratio, LGPSC believes 
that not only should the hedge 
ratio be managed dynamically 
but also the instruments used.  

We believe that furthermore the choice of currencies to hedge and instruments should also be 

dynamically managed and reviewed regularly, as for example hedging costs of different instruments 
can change over time. This is why we have developed a dynamic phased FX hedging model. To 
determine if a currency should be hedged or not, the notional exposure is required, but together with 
additional information such as hedging costs and the output of the LGPSC Currency Model. The 
dynamic model itself can be customized in any manner to the Portfolios needs by the Fund, (for 
example) the decision on how frequently model inputs are reviewed. Depending on the market 
environment, ad hoc reviews of hedge ratios, suitable currencies and hedge instruments maybe 
required.  

LGPSC LIMITED has been asked to explain what is meant by RARAC. This 

document aims to explain starting with some definitions, breaking the RARAC 
concept into parts (Risk Return and Cost) and then to provide some examples of 
how it can be helpful. We hope this makes things clearer and demonstrates the 
importance of RARAC to the investment process. 

Defining the Parts 

39



LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION: ISSUE 5 
 

  16 
Please read important information at the end of the report                                         For professional clients only 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Full transparency is critical, to ensure that investors have a full understanding of the net returns they 
are receiving and how much is being paid in fees, commissions and any other additional charges 
managers may include. Once the true investment costs are established, it can then be managed. All 
other things being equal a reduction in cost equals an improved net investment return. 

Gross Return:  This is the return the Pension Fund would receive if the investment managers and third 
parties hadn’t extracted their fees, dealing commissions and other costs and the Government had 
not extracted taxes. Historically this number has not always been available but full cost transparency 
(using the CTI Templates) is seeking to reveal this in full.  

Net Investment Return:  This is the return the Pension Fund receives after all the costs have been 
removed. This historically was what investment managers reported back to Investors. The 
investment return is then compared with the benchmark or outperformance target.  

Gross Return = Net Return + Investment Costs 

Risk: Financial risk has many definitions that get increasingly complex and conceptual. The most 

common financial measures of risk are Volatility, Active Share, Tracking Error, Beta and Value at Risk 
(VaR). Risk is measured at two different levels: 

1. Risk versus the benchmark described as relative risk and  

2. Absolute risk (portfolio versus a zero benchmark).  

This document will focus on Volatility/standard deviation of returns as it best explains the “risk 
adjusted” concept in absolute risk measurements and then use Tracking error and Active Share to 
explain the relative risk concept.  

Absolute Risk 
Volatility: In finance volatility is the degree of variation of a trading price series over time as measured 
by the standard deviation of returns. Historic volatility is derived from time series of past market 
prices. It shows the range of likely outcomes. Historic volatility measures the volatility of prices in the 
past, whereas “implied” volatility measures the volatility that is built into the expected price of the 
asset. Low historical or implied volatility provides more stable returns which is a desired outcome for 
most pension funds. Volatility is an Absolute risk measure. Volatility of above 20% would be 
considered high risk and below 10% would be considered low risk. 

Relative Risk 
Tracking Error: The tracking error of a portfolio measures the standard deviation of portfolio returns 
relative to the benchmark.   A tracking error of below 1% is considered low risk and above 4% as high 
risk. 

Active Share: The active share of a portfolio measures the % of the portfolio that is outside of the 
benchmark. Essentially it tells the Pension Fund how much of its portfolio is not replicating the index. 
On a scale of 0-100, zero active share is a portfolio that exactly replicates an Index and 100 represents 
a portfolio that doesn’t hold anything in the index.  

Use of risk in Investment management 

Risk-adjusted return describes an investment's return by measuring how much risk is involved in 
producing that return, which is generally expressed as a number or rating. Risk-adjusted returns can 
be applied to individual securities, investment funds and portfolios. Typically, this means taking the 
return and dividing it by the measure of volatility. One of the more widely quoted measures is the 
Sharpe ratio which takes the absolute return and divides it by the implied or historical Volatility 
(standard deviation of returns.)  

40



LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION: ISSUE 5 
 

  17 
Please read important information at the end of the report                                         For professional clients only 

 

 

. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

In a relative world Risk adjusted return is measured as Excess return divided by the relative risk 

measure. Examples of this are the Treynor ratio and the Information ratio.  

         Treynor Ratio = excess return/beta 

            Information Ratio = excess return/tracking error 

LGPS Central Limited prefers to think about risk in terms of trying to maximise returns with a set 

target for risk (Risk Budget). This can be helpful in manager selection in terms of telling the Pension 
Fund how much risk a manager is taking on the Pension Fund’s behalf. It would appear that the FCA 
has used risk measures as a way of spotting “active managers” that are really just index managers 
trying to earn outsized fees. It is important that we recognise that risk needs to be taken to get excess 
returns. If a Pension Fund is paying for risks taking the manager should be taking risks and earning 
the excess return! Below are some examples of how this can be used in practice 

Case study 1: RARAC in Asset Allocation 

Consultants will often produce tables showing the volatility of returns alongside an expected return.  
They then conduct very complex calculations (using the Capital Asset Pricing Model efficient 
frontiers) to provide an asset mix that maximises returns and minimises risk. Remember that these 
calculations rely on estimates for returns and historic data for measuring risk, and hence have limited 
viability to predict future returns and volatility 

Illustrative Risk return matrix: 

 Expected return (1) Annual Volatility (1) 

Global Equities 5% 15% 

Global equities with RI&E 5% 14% 

UK Equities 4% 12% 

GEM Equities 6% 18% 

UK Gilts 2% 10% 

Warning asset return profile for illustrative purposes only (Numbers are not representative) Source: LGPS Central  

The challenge for pension funds/investors is to combine multiple assets in a way that simultaneously 
maximise, returns with an acceptable level of volatility/risk. This is known as portfolio optimisation.  
A combination of asset classes (such as Equities and Gilts in the above table) may improve their risk 
adjusted return. Clearly, Pension Funds may consider an asset mix that improves returns and reduce 
volatility. We at LGPS Central limited are attracted to the idea that in the long run (more than a year) 
volatility is lower, so it matters less.  Therefore, using the above table may encourage investors to be 
too cautious on risk and giving up potentially higher returns. This consideration is reflected in LGPSC 
Limited’s quarterly strategy reports. 

Case Study 2: Using RARAC to decide on ESG factors 

 Many investors are concerned that they might be investing in ESG/ RI&E factors to the detriment of 
investment returns. It is one of LGPS Central Limited’s stated beliefs that returns can be enhanced 
by engaging with companies over ESG issues, though many investors still question this. We do not 
believe this conflicts with fiduciary responsibility. However, LGPSC Limited is far more certain that 
integrating RI&E improves the risk profile of portfolios. Investing in firms with good or improving 
governance for example will reduce the Risk (volatility of returns).   

41



LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION: ISSUE 5 
 

  18 
Please read important information at the end of the report                                         For professional clients only 

 

 LGPSC Limited believes that if the fiduciary responsibility is to improve risk adjusted returns, that it 
is much easier to make the case for incorporating Responsible investment and engagement into 
investment portfolios.  

Case Study 3: RARAC in Manager selection 

In the selection of investment managers these risks adjusted return ratios such as (Sharpe and 
Traynor ratios and others) can be used to compare managers so money should be placed with the 
manager with the highest ratios. However, these ratios like historic performance are rather blunt 
instruments and investors should be wary as past performance or indeed volatility are moving feasts 
and are not necessarily a predictor of future performance.  

Adding risk metrics and Investment process analysis to the decision-making process, allows 
investment manager selection to differentiate between luck and the skill of an investment manager. 
It also allows the manager selector to gauge the consistency of the fund manager. Measuring risk, 
gives LGPSC Limited a much more complete picture of what an investment manager does and what 
their investment process is, which LGPSC Limited believes can be very helpful in selecting managers.  

To conclude LGPS Central Limited is wary of falling into the classic trap that investment managers 

fall into when speaking with clients regarding risk i.e. the excuse that- 

 “We’ve got some good news and bad news. Bad news is we have underperformed your benchmark, 
but I’m delighted to say we’ve managed it with a very low level of risk!”. 

Clearly long-term investment returns through the cycle and different risk environments are what 
matters most.  Risk should be treated cautiously and really ought to be a case of measuring and 
managing risk rather than focusing a few ratios.  

LGPSC Limited hopes that this helps the Pension Funds to better understand the idea of RARAC and 
its importance in selecting managers and managing pension assets.  

42



LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION: ISSUE 5 
 

                                

 

Significant changes have been observed since the last quarter, with 
the EU and UK yield curve higher and Japan lower. Only the US 
yield curve is barely changed compared to the last quarter. 

….. with initial jobless claims providing a similar positive picture 
b below long-term average. 

-1

-0.5

0

0.5

1

1.5

2

2.5

3

3.5

3M 6M 1Y 2Y 3Y 4Y 5Y 6Y 7Y 8Y 9Y 10Y12Y15Y20Y25Y30Y40Y

Sovereign Yield Curves

US UK EU JPY

0.75

0.85

0.95

1.05

1.15

1.25

1.35

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Sc
al

ed
 to

 1
00

%

FX - Trade Weighted Indices

TWI USD TWI EUR TWI JPY TWI GBP

0

0.5

1

1.5

2

2.5

3

US EU UK JP

CPI and Forecast

2018 2019 2020 2021

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

19
70

19
71

19
73

19
75

19
77

19
78

19
80

19
82

19
84

19
85

19
87

19
89

19
91

19
92

19
94

19
96

19
98

19
99

20
01

20
03

20
05

20
06

20
08

20
10

20
12

20
13

20
15

20
17

20
19

Initial Jobless Claims

45

70

95

120

20
00

20
01

20
03

20
04

20
06

20
07

20
09

20
11

20
12

20
14

20
15

20
17

20
19

Confidence and Optimism

Michigan Consumer Sentiment Small Business Optimisim

Consumer confidence remains well above average, showing a 
positive outlook … 

APPENDIX 1: ECONOMIC OUTLOOK  

  

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

0

0.5

1

1.5

2

2.5

3

3.5

US EU UK JP

Real GDP Growth and Forcast

2017 2018 2019 2020

Since last quarter the World Economy forecasts have remained 
relatively stable, after a downward trend between Q3 and Q4 
2018.  

The trade-weighted strength of the Dollar has stabilised its gap 
compared to other currencies over the last quarter. 

Source: Bloomberg, OECD, data as of 19/03/2019 

Inflation forecasts have further flattened since last quarter 
and suggest not too much of a surprise for 2019  

Average: 362 

Please read important information at the end of the report For professional clients only 19 

Average: 83 

43



LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION: ISSUE 5 
 

                                

 

The US has significantly outperformed the rest of the world since 
2009, however Q4 2018 saw a sharp market decline caused by 
the Technology sector, which has started to recover in Q1 2019.  

US equities start to look stable in relation to the EU and UK. 
The current S&P P/E is 18.13, increased from 17.11 in Q4 2018 
and now below its long-term average. 

This is accompanied by a spike in implied volatility, indicating a 
general increased nervousness in the market. Historically this 
has tended to be a good buy signal. 

Dividend yields show a slight upwards trend.  M&A activity paints a similar picture to IPO deals and has seen 
an increase in deal activity compared to Q4 2018, in particular 
in the UK. 

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

30,000

35,000

1,000,000

1,500,000

2,000,000

2,500,000

3,000,000

3,500,000

4,000,000

4,500,000

5,000,000

5,500,000

De
al

 C
ou

nt

Vo
lu

m
e 

$m

Gobal M & A Activity

Deal Count Volume

0.3

0.8

1.3

1.8

2.3

20
06

20
07

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

20
18

20
19

Equity market performance

S&P 500 Eurostoxx FTSE 100 Nikkei

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

3,500

5

10

15

20

25

30

S&P 500 P/E against S&P Performance

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

20
07

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

20
18

20
19

VIX Volatilty

Real Vol VIX

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

2002 2004 2006 2008 2010 2013 2015 2017

Historical Dividend Yield

S&P 500 Eurostoxx 50 FTSE 100 Hang Seng

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

Performance of Asset Classes - Annualised 
Returns %

Three years Five Years Ten Years Twenty Years

APPENDIX 2: MARKET OUTLOOK 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Average: 19.5 

Source: Bloomberg, OECD, data as of 19/03/2019 

Recent negative equity market performance corrected back 
to positive territory, but over the long-term good returns 
can be observed across asset classes. 

For professional clients only Please read important information at the end of the report 
20 

2019 

44



LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION: ISSUE 5 
 

                                

 

Gordon Ross 
Deputy CIO, 
ID Fixed Income 
Gordon.Ross@lgpscentral.co.uk 

Phone: 01902 916 167 
 
 

Jason Fletcher 
CIO 
 
Jason.Fletcher@lgpscentral.co.uk 

Phone: 01902 916 170 
 
 

Colin Pratt 
ID Manager of 
Managers 
 
Colin.Pratt@lgpscentral.co.uk 

Phone: 01902 916 209 
 

 

David Evans 
ID Passive Equities 
 
David.Evans@lgpscentral.co.uk 

Phone: 01902 916 199 

 
 

Michael Marshall 
Director of Responsible 
Investing & Engagement 
 
Michael.Marshall@lgpscentral.co.uk 

Phone: 01902 916 193 
 

Omar Ghafur 
ID Private Equity 
 
 
Omar.Ghafur@lgpscentral.co.uk 

Phone: 01902 916 177 

 
 

David Searle 
Communications Officer 
 
 
david.searle@lgpscentral.co.uk 

Phone: 01902 916 201 

 
 

 1.5% nominal yield on UK 10yr Gilt is not a sufficient return to meet future liabilities 
which are inflation-linked 

 Rising inflation is bad for Gilt returns 
 Yields to turn upwards as multi-year lows are reversed 

 Expensive historically but good value versus bonds 
 Opportunities may arise from some global investors paring back interest in UK 
 Maturing pension schemes and better funding levels should support demand 
 Fears of nationalisation of infrastructure assets under a future Labour government 

could impact investment returns especially in light of political instability emanating 
from Brexit deal rejection 

 

 Heightened sensitivity to Brexit deterring some investors and slowing investment 
activity 

 Continued pressure on Retail valuations likely to accelerate as valuation 
departments assert their independence 

 Retail will present value at some point, just not yet 
 Occupational demand a mixed bag but slowing even in strongest sectors 
 Yield still attractive versus other asset classes 

 Fund raising environment remains robust, with substantial “dry powder” for 
investments; 

 Possibility of PE Managers overpaying for assets due to increased competition; 
 Favour PE downside protection (e.g. private debt) and high quality/low risk 
 Direct investment in defensive companies/sectors and/or upper quartile managers 
 Sell unattractive and legacy assets 

Mike Hardwick 
ID Property &  
Infrastructure 
 

Mike.Hardwick@lgpscentral.co.uk 

Phone: 01902 552 089 
 

Vania Clayton 
Senior Portfolio Manager 
(Equity, Fixed Income, Derivatives) 
 
Vania.clayton@lgpscentral.co.uk 

Phone: 01902 916 206 
 
 

Callum Campbell 
Head of Client Services & 
Stakeholder Relations 
 
Callum.Campbell@lgpccentral.co.uk 

Phone: 01902 916 204 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 3: INVESTMENT IDEAS – MEET THE TEAM  

 

 
  

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Please contact Callum Campbell, Head of Client Services and Stakeholder Relations, if you would like to discuss the 
views outlined in this report with LGPS Central’s Investment Directors  

Selective Overweight Private Equity (O. Ghafur) 1
. 

Neutral property – Negative Outlook (M. Hardwick) Overweight infrastructure (M. Hardwick) 3
2

4
. 

Underweight Fixed Income (G. Ross) 2

For professional clients only Please read important information at the end of the report 

21 

45



LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION: ISSUE 5 
 

22 
 

 

GLOSSARY: 

GEMs   Global Emerging Markets 

ESG   Environmental, social and governance 

LTM   Last twelve months 

IG   Investment Grade 

VIX   S&P Implied Volatility Index 

IPO   Initial Public Offering 

OPEC   Organisation of Petroleum Exporting Countries 

FAANG   Facebook, Apple, Amazon, Netflix & Google 

UNPRI   Principles for Responsible Investment 

YTD   Year to date 

PE    Private Equity 

 

 

 

 

For professional clients only 
Please read important information at the end of the report 

46



23 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This document has been produced by LGPS Central Limited and is intended solely for information purposes. 
Any opinions, forecasts or estimates herein constitute a judgement, as at the date of this report, that is subject 
to change without notice. It does not constitute an offer or an invitation by or on behalf of LGPS Central 
Limited to any person to buy or sell any security. Any reference to past performance is not a guide to the 
future. The information and analysis contained in this 
publication have been compiled or arrived at from sources believed to be reliable, but LGPS Central Limited 
does not make any representation as to their accuracy or completeness and does not accept any liability from 
loss arising from the use thereof. The opinions and conclusions expressed in this document are solely those of 
the author. This document may not be produced, either in whole or part, without the written permission of 
LGPS Central Limited. 
 
All information is prepared as of 03.04.2019, if not stated otherwise. 
 
This document is intended for PROFESSIONAL CLIENTS only. 
 
LGPS Central Limited is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. 
Registered in England Registered No: 10425159. 
Registered Office: Mander House, Mander Centre, Wolverhampton, WV1 3NB 

For professional clients only 

47



This page is intentionally left blank



 

     
                                         
 
 
 

Leicestershire County Council 
Pension Fund 

Funding and risk report as at 31 March 2019 
_____ 
 

 

Summary  

This funding update is provided to illustrate the estimated development of the funding position from 31 

March 2016 to 31 March 2019, for the Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund (“the Fund”).  It is 

addressed to Leicestershire County Council in its capacity as the Administering Authority of the Fund and 

has been prepared in my capacity as your actuarial adviser. 

At the last formal valuation the Fund assets were £3,164m and the liabilities were £4,153m.  This 

represents a deficit of £989m and equates to a funding level of 76.2%.  Since the valuation the funding 

level has increased by c0.3% to 76.5% as detailed in the table above. 

This report has been produced exclusively for the Administering Authority.  This report must not be copied 

to any third party without our prior written consent. 

Should you have any queries please contact me. 

 

 

Anne Cranston AFA 

H
E

A
D

L
IN

E
 

 

49



 

     
                                         
 
 
 

 

What’s happened since the 2016 formal valuation? 

The main drivers of change since the latest formal valuation are: 

 The outlook for future returns from investment classes has fallen since the triennial valuation. This 

has increased the value placed on the past service liabilities;  

 The outlook for future inflation has also risen which increases the value placed on the past service 

liabilities, as benefits increases are linked to the Consumer Price Index; 

 The impact of these changes in market conditions is an increase in deficit of £736m; and 

 Investment performance was better than expected (35.2% vs 12.5%) leading to a gain of £602m. 

The above changes have contributed to the increase in the overall funding level of approximately 0.3% 

and an increase in the deficit of around £334m. 

What’s happened over the last quarter? 

 The funding level has fallen by approximately 0.6% over the last quarter. 

 This is due to a combination of worsening market conditions being mostly offset by better than 

expected investment returns. 

Other points to note 

 This report has been prepared using a single set of market-related assumptions derived in line 

with your Funding Strategy Statement and market yields at the calculation date, as per the table 

overleaf. 

 Contributions will be re-assessed following the 2019 formal valuation. Contributions are set 

allowing for many future economic scenarios, rather than relying on a single set of market-related 

assumptions. The assumptions underlying your funding target will also be reviewed at that time. 

 

50



 

     
                                         
 
 
 

C
U

R
R

E
N

T
 P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

51



 

     
                                         
 
 
 

P
R

O
G

R
E

S
S

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

52



 

     
                                         
 
 
 

 
 
 

A
S

S
E

T
S

 A
N

D
 R

IS
K

S
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

53



 

     
                                         
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Notes 
The most recent actuarial Funding and risk (“Navigator”) report shows an estimated funding level at 31 March 2019 that is marginally above the 2016 

published funding level.  

It is worth emphasising that this assessment of the health of the whole Fund is a crude one - produced by a single, simple, mechanical projection of the 

2016 position allowing only for market changes (asset returns, market yields) and estimated contributions and benefits paid. 

As part of the Fund’s triennial 31 March 2019 valuation, the actuaries will not only collect new membership data to refresh their analysis, but are also 

revisiting the actuarial assumptions that are to be used in their calculations.   It should be noted that, after a positive 3 years for asset returns, the 

actuary’s expectation is that the relative and absolute position of the Fund (and most of the employers underneath) at the 2019 valuation will continue to 

be a healthy one.   

One interesting aspect of the 2019 valuation will be the impact of increasing scrutiny.  Whilst setting contributions continues to be the key output from 

the valuations, there will be continuing interest in the “health of the Fund” and how that it is presented to the various different scrutineers – the existing 

declaration of the health via a single funding level will be reviewed and may change from the current approach. 

As such, the funding level that will be reported as at 31 March 2019 in the 2019 formal valuation is likely to differ from that stated within this Navigator 

report. 

Please also note that our calculations currently make no allowance for possible benefit improvements in respect of the McCloud ruling and GMP 

equalisation. 

Reliances and limitations 
This report was commissioned by and is addressed to Leicestershire County Council in their capacity as the Administering Authority and is provided to 

assist in monitoring certain funding and investment metrics. It should not be used for any other purpose. It should not be released or otherwise disclosed 

to any third party except as required by law or with our prior written consent, in which case it should be released in its entirety. Decisions should not be 

taken based on the information herein without written advice from your consultant. Neither I nor Hymans Robertson LLP accept any liability to 

any other party unless we have expressly accepted such liability in writing. 

The method and assumptions used to calculate the updated funding position are consistent with those disclosed in the documents associated with the 

last formal actuarial valuation, although the financial assumptions have been updated to reflect known changes in market conditions. The calculations 

contain approximations and the accuracy of this type of funding update declines with time from the valuation; differences between the position shown in 

this report and the position which a new valuation would show can be significant. It is not possible to assess its accuracy without carrying out a full 

actuarial valuation. This update complies with Technical Actuarial Standard 100. 

54



 

 
 

LOCAL PENSION COMMITTEE – 5 JULY 2019   
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES 
 

LGPS CENTRAL UPDATE – PENSION FUND POOLING 
 
 
Purpose of the Report 
 

1. The purpose of this report is to update the Committee on progress towards pooling 
of the Pension Fund. 

  
Background 

 
2. LGPS Central has been operating since 1st April 2018, providing asset 

management services to the Leicestershire Pension Fund (the Fund) and eight 
other schemes within the LGPS Central Pension Pool. 
 

3. The Fund transitioned its first assets to Central, as part of the Global Equity Active 
Multi-Manager Fund, at the end of February. The Fund contributed approximately 
15% of the overall £2.1 billion assets managed in the Global Equity fund.  
 

4. Pooling will take several years to fully implement, due to the need to set-up sub-
funds by Central and then amalgamate the existing holdings for the 9 partner 
schemes. The Fund has entered into three advisory and execution mandates with 
LGPS Central. Under the mandates LGPS Central will undertake the monitoring of 
the investment managers and advise on actions required. The mandates are for 
Emerging Markets Debt, Property and Targeted Return. The rationale for selecting 
these mandates is the extended period of time before an alternative LGPS Central 
offer is expected to be ready. 
 

5. Local management of investments will be required in the medium term for closed-
ended funds, whereby an investment manager is appointed to fulfil a specific 
purpose via a pooled fund which is set up to run for a specified period of time. 
These investments will be managed locally until the capital is repaid, due to the lack 
of a natural ability to exit the investment in the event of issues arising.  
 
 

LGPS Central Update 
 

Global Equities Active Multi-Manager Fund 
 

6. The Fund transitioned £331m of assets to this product. The transition completed 
successfully, with the product launching with the new managers on the 12th March 
2019. The transition was completed at a cost slightly below the initial estimate and 
no significant issues were encountered. The transition had independent oversight 

 
55 Agenda Item 9



 

by a specialist firm who were generally complimentary of the process, with a 
handful of issues arising the main one being clarity of performance reporting. These 
matters will be taken into account in future transitions. 
  

Global Emerging Markets Fund 
 
7. At its meeting on the 3 April 2019 the Investment Subcommittee (ISC) was asked to 

consider the Fund’s investment in LGPS Central’s Global Emerging Markets Fund. 
At the time of writing the Fund had £182m of actively managed emerging market 
equities. 
 

8. Briefing notes were received from the Fund’s investment advisor, Hymans 
Robertson, to support the decision. LGPS Central attended the meeting and 
provided a presentation covering the aims of the product, the manager selection 
approach, cost benefits, Responsible Investment considerations and the transition 
plan.   
 

9. Following the presentation the ISC decided that, subject to the development of the 
product proceeding satisfactorily, the Fund should progress with an investment in 
LGPS Central’s Emerging Markets Fund. This would maintain the Fund’s strategic 
asset weighting to active emerging market management at 4%.  
 

10. Since the ISC meeting an experienced emerging markets transition manager has 
been appointed. This has allowed a transition plan to be put in place, key features 
are: 
 

a. Four funds committed to the product, combining £700m of assets. 
b. Three managers will be employed to manage the assets. 
c. A split transition provides the lowest cost option, with Leicestershire in the 

first group scheduled. 
d. Fees at launch will be significantly lower than those currently paid, further 

reductions will be possible if another partner fund invests in the product. 
e. Transition costs are not fixed, but estimated to provide a 5 year payback.  
f. The time from transfer of legacy portfolios to the new managers taking over 

is expected to be 24 days.  
 

11. The Director of Corporate Resources, following consultation with the Chairman of 
the Local Pension Committee, has used his delegated powers to commit the Fund 
to invest in LGPS Central’s Emerging Market’s Equity Fund 
 

Private Equity Fund 
 

12. The Fund has a £201 million allocation to Private Equity, this is managed by Adams 
Street Partners (ASP). This is primarily through fund of fund arrangements, i.e. ASP 
select funds to invest in rather than identifying specific companies themselves. The 
Fund has also allocated £10m to LGPS Central who will also engage managers to 
make investments on their behalf. 
 

13. LGPS Central started making commitments to investment in March and have 
allocated 75% of their funding, although the only a small proportion of the cash has 
actually been called at this stage. 
 

56



 

14. Central are expected to launch another private equity vintage this year. It is likely 
that the Fund will need to invest to maintain the target allocation. 

 
Infrastructure 
 
15. The Fund has a £213 million allocation to Infrastructure; this is managed by IFM, 

KKR and JP Morgan. The KKR investment is closed ended with capital not 
expected to be fully returned until 2027. The other funds are open ended so could 
potentially be redeemed or transferred to Central’s management. 
 

16. Central are progressing development of an Infrastructure Fund for launch in Q4 
2019. The structure of the product is still being developed; however, initial 
indications are that it will be a suitable fit for the Fund.  
 
 

Investment Advisory Committee 
 

17. For the Private Equity and Infrastructure product LGPS Central propose to create 
Investment Advisory Committees. Committees of this type are standard industry 
practice and allow efficient management of the portfolio. Examples of the primary 
functions of the committee include: 

 Advise on matters where a conflict of interest may arise, for example 
between management of the product and advisory mandates 

 Consider any changes to investment guidelines that may be proposed 

 Consider key person replacement issues 

 Approve any proposed changes to the product’s investment strategy 

 Provide oversight of redemption process to ensure fairness 
 

18. The Committee would not be a decision making body for individual investments, this 
responsibility remains with LGPS Central. Voting is proposed to consider the 
number of partners and assets under management. 
 

19. The committees would be attended by officers representing each of the partner 
funds invested in the product.  

 
 
Factor Based Investing 

 
20. The Fund currently holds £409m of RAFI funds that use factors (e.g. dividend yield) 

to determine where the investments should be made, rather than being based upon 
market capitalisation. 
 

21. Central are currently developing a Global Factor based fund and have two existing 
products, a Dividend Growth fund and a Global Climate Change Equity fund. One or 
more of these products could act as an alternative investment to the RAFI holding. 
Conversations are continuing to establish the best approach for the Fund. 
 

Targeted Return 
 
22. The Fund currently holds £531m of Targeted Return products with Ruffer, Pictet 

and Aspect.  
  

57



 

23. Central are at a very early stage of developing a product, this will need to take into 
account the concerns that have been raised over the last year regarding the 
performance of this asset class. 
 

Global Multi Asset Credit and Emerging Market Debt 
 

24. The Fund has a small investment (£27m) in Multi-Asset Credit managed by JP 
Morgan and a more significant investment in Emerging Market Debt (£111m), 
through Ashmore. The recent strategy review confirmed the Fund’s commitment to 
Emerging Market Debt and recommended an increase in the Multi-Asset Credit 
allocation, by 2% of the Fund’s assets, using a reduction in the Targeted Return 
allocation.  
 

25. Central are collating partner funds requirements at the moment to develop 
proposals for two separate products. 
 

MHCLG Consultation on asset pooling 
 

26. In February the Committee received a paper outlining the Ministry of Housing, 
Communities and Local Government consultation on draft statutory guidance on 
asset pooling. 
 

27. The draft guidance has received public criticism, particularly from some of the pool 
companies. Pooling can and has been approached in a variety of ways, so it is not 
surprising that new guidance would receive a mixed response. The main issues 
raised were the approach to the consultation and regarding the proposed 
requirement for each pool to establish a Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) 
authorised company.  LGPS Central is already FCA authorised. 
 

28. The Ministry has not yet responded, but it is unlikely that the guidance will be 
implemented unchanged. 
 

Recommendation 
 

29. It is recommended that the Local Pension Committee notes the report. 
 

Equality and Human Rights Implications 
 

30. None. 
 
Background Papers 

 
None 

 
 

Officers to Contact 
 
Mr C Tambini, Director of Corporate Resources 
Tel: 0116 305 6199 Email: Chris.Tambini@leics.gov.uk  
 
Mr D Keegan, Assistant Director Strategic Finance and Property 
Tel: 0116 305 7668 Email: Declan.Keegan@leics.gov.uk  

58



 
 

LOCAL PENSION COMMITTEE – 5th JULY 2019 

 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES 

 
LGPS CENTRAL UPDATE – COMPANY MATTERS 

 
Purpose of Report 
 
1. The purpose of this report is to present to the Committee, an update on company 

matters relating to LGPS Central. 
 
Background  
 
2. LGPS Central is a private limited company that is authorised and regulated by the 

Financial Conduct Authority (FCA).  Central is jointly owned by the eight 
administering authorities who formed the pool, with equal voting rights. 

 
3. The Leicestershire Pension Fund (Fund) is a stakeholder from two different 

perspectives. These are as a co-owner of the company and as a recipient of 
investment services. These interests are managed through the Shareholders Forum 
and the Joint Committee.  
 

4. The supervisory body of the company LGPS Central is the Shareholders' Forum, 
which focuses on shareholder issues. It is comprised of eight members, 
representing each of the partner funds. The members are elected representatives, 
typically the Chair of the Local Pension Committee. The Directors of the company 
are responsible for the day-to-day management and operation of LGPS Central. 
The Shareholders' Forum meets at least twice a year to agree certain reserved 
matters; this provides a greater degree of control than for most private companies. 
Their powers as shareholders are set out in a Shareholder Agreement and include: 

 Amending or adopting new strategic plans 

 Admitting new members to the Pool 

 Appointment and removal of Directors 

 Approve accounts and appoint auditors 

 Approving capital expenditure over £5M 
 

5. The Shareholders’ forum normally precedes general meetings of the company, this 
allows discussion in advance of decisions being made at the meeting. 
 

6. The Joint Committee focuses on investor issues of the authorities and meets twice 
each year. It is comprised of eight members, representing each of the partner funds. 
This provides oversight of the delivery of the objectives of the pool, the delivery of 
client service, the delivery against the LGPS Central business case and to deal with 
common investor issues. The Joint Committee provides assistance, guidance and 
recommendations to the individual councils, taking into consideration the conflicting 
demands and interests of the participants within the pool. The Joint Committee does 
not have delegated authority to make binding decisions on behalf of the 
participating councils. 
 

59 Agenda Item 10



7. To allow LGPS Central access to the authorities in a more frequent and informal 
setting, for example to develop investment products, a Practitioners' Advisory 
Forum was created. This is a working group of officers that meets on a regular 
basis. The forum also provides support to members of the Shareholders’ Forum and 
Joint Committee. LGPS Central will also provide performance reports to individual 
Funds and, periodically, attend meetings with individual pension fund committees 
 

8. Appendix A – provides a diagrammatic breakdown of the Governance structure 
 
 

Shareholders Forum and Company Meeting Update  
 
9. A general meeting was held on 12th February 2019, preceded by a Shareholders’ 

Forum.  The following approvals were made.  
 

10. Strategic Plan and Regulatory Capital Statement. 
 
This includes the: 

                     - Annual budget  
- Profit and loss forecast 

         - Capital expenditure forecast 
- Balance sheet forecast 
 

The total operating budget was increased to £11.2m, an increase of 17.7%. This 
reflected inflationary pressures and growth of the business. Governance costs are 
charged equally to partner funds, reflecting the equal shareholding, and investment 
related costs are charged on the basis of assets under management. The amount 
payable by Leicestershire will be £0.8m.  
 
The £2 million of capital that was provided by partner funds in January 2018 (£1.3m 
equity plus £0.7m debt) remains sufficient to meet regulatory requirements and is 
projected to be sufficient until at least March 2022.   
 
The Cost savings forecast has been revised and remains broadly in line with the 
original estimate at £236 million over 15 years. The benefit to the Fund is £6 million, 
a slight reduction on the original forecast of £6.2 million. However, the first two 
product launches that the Fund has invested in have exceeded the initial cost 
saving estimate, which should improve the benefit to Leicestershire.  

 
11. Increase to the Directors remuneration.  

 
The Shareholders Agreement requires LGPS Central to seek approval of its 
shareholders to increase the Directors remuneration.  The Board recommended that 
each of the Director’s remuneration is increased in line with the general increase 
applicable to all LGPS Central staff.  Some structural changes were made within 
LGPS Central. Where these had an impact upon Director’s responsibilities and 
consequentially their remuneration the impact was separately presented for 
consideration. This matter has little direct impact on the Fund. 
 

12. Re-appointment of John Nestor as Non-Executive Director 
 
The appointment is for a term of three years with effect from July 2019.  John 
Nestor was first appointed in 2017 and is Chair of the Remuneration Committee and 
member of the Audit Risk and Compliance and Nominations Committees. 

60



 
13. Ratify Appointment of the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) 
 

Following a recruitment process, led by the Nominations Committee of LGPS 
Central, Mike Weston was selected for the role of CEO. The CEO is a Board 
member, hence shareholder approval was required.  Mike Weston is an 
experienced Chief Executive of an FCA regulated investment management 
company having recently stepped down as CEO of the Pensions Infrastructure 
Platform (PiP).  He also has extensive knowledge of defined benefit pension 
schemes in his previous role’s as Chief Investment Officer (CIO) at the Daily Mail 
and General Trust Pension Funds. 

 
Joint Committee Update 
  
14. The Joint Committee meeting took place on 21st June and a verbal update will be 

provided at the committee meeting on 5th July 2019.  Topics covered included: 
a. Review of the Joint Committee Terms of Reference 
b. National Picture – briefing on pooling and wider LGPS developments  
c. Report from the Practitioners Advisory Forum 
d. Review of the Pool Risk Register 
e. Presentation of the Assurance Framework 
f. LGPS Central performance/progress update:  

   - Key performance indicators – 14 have been identified  
                            - Assets under stewardship - £17bn 
                           - Investment performance 
                           - Cost savings 
                            - Product Development Protocol  
                              - Responsible Investment & Engagement 
 
15 The papers for the committee meeting can be found on the link below.  
 http://www.cheshirepensionfund.org/governance-of-the-cheshire-pension-fund/lgps-central-committee/ 

 
 

Recommendation 
 
16. The Local Pension Committee is asked to note the report. 
 
Appendix 
 
Appendix - Outline governance structure. 
 
Equality and Human Rights Implications 
 
18.      None. 
 
Officers to Contact 
 
Mr C Tambini, Director of Corporate Resources 
Tel: 0116 305 6199 Email: Chris.Tambini@leics.gov.uk  
 
Mr D Keegan, Assistant Director Strategic Finance and Property 
Tel: 0116 305 7668 Email: Declan.Keegan@leics.gov. 

61

http://www.cheshirepensionfund.org/governance-of-the-cheshire-pension-fund/lgps-central-committee/


Appendix  
 

 

62



  

 
 
 

LOCAL PENSION COMMITTEE – 5th JULY 2019   
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES 
 

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS 
 
 
Purpose 
 

1. The purpose of this report is to inform the Committee of any changes relating to the 
risk management and internal controls of the Pension Fund, as stipulated in the 
Pension Regulator’s Code of Practice. 

 
 

Background 
 

2. In April 2015 The Pension Regulator (TPR) published its code of practise on 
governance and administration of public service pension schemes. This introduced 
a number of areas pension administrators need to record and members be kept 
aware of. 
 

3. One area within the code is risk, more specifically ‘risk management and internal 
controls’, which the code states should be a standing item on each Pension Board 
and Pension Committee agenda. 

 
4. The Leicestershire Fund already manages risk and has a risk register in place that 

is regularly reviewed by officers. Internal and external audit also consider risks 
within Pensions and highlight any risk concerns. However, in order to comply with 
the code the Director of Finance has agreed to have this as a standard item on both 
agendas. 
 
 

Risk Register 
 

5. The updated Risk Register is attached as an appendix to this report. Progress 
updates have been made to risks 1 and 2. The rating of risk 2 has reduced to reflect 
the progress made in implementing the pension administration system. Risk 3 has 
also reduced reflecting the low materiality of this service for the Fund. 
 

  
Identified Risks of Concern 

 
6. There are currently no identified risks of concern. 

 
 

63 Agenda Item 11



  

Assurance framework for the LGPS Central asset pooling 
 

7. At its meeting on 15 February 2019, the Committee was informed that Staffordshire 
County Council Internal Audit Service is leading a co-ordinated and collaborative 
response to providing assurance on the new asset pooling arrangements. This has 
involved consultation with all Partner Fund’s internal audit functions (including 
Leicestershire County Council), External Audit Partners, the Practitioners Advisory 
Forum and LGPS Central. The individual Partner Fund’s Internal Audit (IA) services 
met in March 2019. Since that time the following progress has been made: 
 

8. Since that time: 
a. The Pensions Assurance Framework - (the Framework) has been compiled 

using LGPS Central’s (the Pool) Risk Register. The Framework is based on 
the traditional three lines of defence model focusing on the management 
controls, oversight governance arrangements and independent assurance 
required to provide assurance to Partner Funds that potential risks regarding 
asset pooling have been considered and are mitigated. See attached 
Appendix 2 for further detail. 
 

b. The draft Internal Audit Approach was agreed.  This document outlines the 
work to be undertaken both as collective Partner Fund IA services, as well as 
individual Partner Fund IA services.  Collective work will be undertaken every 
year with Partner Fund IA services taking it in turns to undertake the 
assurance work in each key risk area detailed in the Proposed Cyclical 
Programme of Collective Internal Audit Work which is found in Appendix 3.   
 

c. As part of this approach, a draft four-year cyclical programme of audits 
covering 2019/20 to 2022/23 has been developed outlining work to be 
undertaken by each Partner Fund IA service.  Individual Partner Funds will 
be able to take assurance from work undertaken, and this approach will 
avoid the need for individuals to duplicate work and ensure efficiency in 
approach. 
 

d. The collective work will be supplemented with individual Partner Fund 
Internal Audit work specific to each administering authority.  Work around 
this has been built into Leicestershire’s 2019/20 Pension Fund Internal Audit 
plan.  See attached document for further detail.  
 

e. LGPS Central are in the process of finalising an AAF 01/06 report by the end 
of June 2019.  This is an assurance report which is available to third parties 
and is used to provide comfort on the effectiveness of internal controls within 
an organisation.  A copy of the draft version was reviewed by Partner Fund 
IA services, and it has been agreed that this report will be reviewed annually, 
as a collective, as part of the draft four-year cyclical programme of audits to 
be undertaken  

 
f. Information Sharing Portal - A SharePoint site has been created which will be 

used to store and share relevant pool documents/emails, etc.   
 
 

9. The next steps are to: - 

64



  

a. A further meeting of Partner Fund IA services has been arranged at the end 
of July 2019.  The full AAF01/06 report, if completed by then, will be 
reviewed. 
 

b. Staffordshire County Council are due to lead on the first piece of collective 
work to review Governance/Company & Financial & Operational Risk.  This 
work is due to start September 2019.  This allows sufficient time for LGPS 
Central to complete the AAF01/06 and begin to action any 
recommendations.   

 
c. It is envisaged that Individual Partner Funds will commence audit work after 

the above work has been completed (Quarter 4). 
 
Recommendation 
 

10. The Local Pension Committee is asked to: - 
 

a. approve the revised risk register of the Pension Fund; 
 

b. note the work being done to develop an assurance framework for the LGPS 
Central  . 

 
 
Appendix 
 
Appendix 1 - Risk Register 
 
Appendix 2 - Pensions Assurance Framework 
 
Appendix 3 - Internal Audit Approach 

 
 

Equality and Human Rights Implications 
 
None. 
 
 
Officers to Contact 
 
Mr C Tambini, Director of Corporate Resources 
Tel: 0116 305 6199 Email: Chris.Tambini@leics.gov.uk  
 
Mr D Keegan, Assistant Director Strategic Finance and Property 
Tel: 0116 305 7668 Email: Declan.Keegan@leics.gov.uk  

65



This page is intentionally left blank



Leicestershire Pension Fund Risk Register June 2019             Appendix 1 

Risk 
no 

Service Risk Causes (s) Consequences 
Risk 

Owner 
List of current 

controls 
I L 

 
Current 

Risk 
Score 

Risk 

Response; 

Tolerate 

Treat 

Terminate 

Transfer 

Further Actions / 
Additional Controls 

I L 
Residual 

Risk 
Score 

 
 
Action 
owner 

1 Pens 

 If the Pension Fund  

fails to reconcile HRMC 

Guaranteed Minimum 

Pension (GMP) data 

with the Pension 

Section data there is a 

risk of overpayment of 

Pensions Increase 

 

From 2018 the pensions 

section has had 

responsibility for GMPs 

creating the need to ensure 

that this is accounted for in 

the pensions increases  

 

Overpaying 

pensions (i.e. for 

GMP cases pension 

increases are lower) 

Reputation 

Ian 

Howe 

 

Checking of HMRC 

GMP data to identify 

any discrepancies  

 

Full time person 

recruited to work on 

the project 

3 3 9 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Treat 

Working through cases 

Developed reporting 

tools to assist 

 

3 2 6 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Ian 

Howe 

 
 
 

 

2 Pens 

 

 If the Pension Fund 

fails to implement a 

pension administration 

system, pensioner 

payroll and immediate 

payments system the 

Pension Section will fail 

to deliver its statutory 

duties for both LGPS 

and the 3 Fire 

Authorities. It will also 

be unable to pay 

pensioners and other 

single payments (e.g. 

lump sums) 

A new system has been 
implemented, with several 
features subject to a gradual 
roll-out. 
 

 
Unable to pay 
pensioners 
 
Unable to pay single 
payments 
 
Unable to meet 
statutory 
requirements 
 
Manual calculations 
 
Huge increase in 
administration time 
causing delays 
 
Increased appeals 

Ian 

Howe 

 

Gradual 

implementation of 

member self-service 

functionality  

Working in 

partnership with 

another Fund 

Phased approach to 

implementation, with 

single payment the 

most significant piece 

of functionality 

remaining. 

4 2 8 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Treat 

 

Detailed project 

planning for final phase, 

accounting for other 

pressures in the section 

 

3 1 3 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ian 

Howe 

 

3 Pens 

 If the Pensions section 

fail to meet the  service 

requirements of the 

 

Changes in legislation on the 

 

 

Reputation 

Ian 

Howe 

Quarterly meetings 

take place with the 

Fire Authorities to 

2 3 6 

 
 
 

Continue to monitor and 

develop improvements 

to work processes, 

2 2 4 

 
 

67



three Fire Authorities 

we may lose their 

business 

 

Firefighters pension scheme 

has significantly increased 

the scheme’s complexity. 

Only limited knowledge in 

the Section in this area.  

Outstanding legal challenges 

could significantly impact on 

the Fire scheme rules and 

administration time 

 

 

 

 

Potential loss of 

business  

Increased 

administration  

 

 resolve issues  

 

Membership of the 

Midlands Fire Officer 

Group enables us to 

identify and resolve 

issues early  

Resource on the team 

increased 

SLA and contracts 

produced 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Treat 

guiding all three Fire 

Authorities to similar 

processes and decisions 

(where possible). 

Set up a joint pension 

board for the 3 Fire 

Authorities 

Refresh of contracts in 

progress 

Press the LGA and all 

relevant parties 

nationally  on regulatory 

changes 

 

 

 

Ian 

Howe 

 
 
 
 

 

4 Pens 

If the pensions fund fail 

to receive accurate and 

timely data from 

employers scheme 

members pension 

benefits could be 

incorrect or late  

A continuing increase in 

Fund employers is causing 

administrative pressure in 

the Pension Section. This is 

in terms of receiving 

accurate and timely data 

from these new employers 

who have little or no pension 

knowledge 

Late or inaccurate 

pension benefits to 

scheme members 

Reputation 

Increased appeals 

Greater 

administrative time 

being spent on 

individual 

calculations 

Ian 

Howe 

Training provided for 

new employers 

Guidance notes 

provided for 

employers 

Amended  SLA and 

communication and 

administration guide 

distributed to 

employers making   

IConnect  a statutory 

requirement by 

31/3/2020) 

 

 

3 3 9 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Treat 

Implement IConnect 

with employers so they 

provide monthly data in 

a secure and timely 

manner 

 

3 2 6 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ian 
Howe 

5 

 
 
 
 
Invs 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Employer and employee 

contributions are not 

paid accurately and on 

time 

 

Error on the part of the 

scheme employer 

 

Potentially 

reportable to The 

Pensions Regulator 

as late payment is a 

breach of The 

Pensions Act 

 

Declan 

Keegan 

 

Receipt of 

contributions is 

monitored and late 

payments are chased 

quickly 

 

 

2 4 8 

 
 
 
 
 
Treat 

Late payers will be 

reminded of their legal 

responsibilities. 
2 3 6 

 
 

 
Declan 

Keegan 

 

68



 
 

6 Invs 

Assets held by the Fund 

are ultimately 

insufficient to pay 

benefits due to 

individual members 

Ineffective setting of 

employer contribution rates 

over many consecutive 

actuarial valuations 

 

Significant financial 

impact on scheme 

employers due to 

the need for large 

increases in 

employer 

contribution rates.  

 

Chris 

Tambini 

 

 

Input into actuarial 

valuation, including 

ensuring that actuarial 

assumptions are 

reasonable and the 

manner in which 

employer contribution 

rates are set does not 

bring imprudent 

future financial risk 

 

 

5 2 10 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Treat 

Actuarial assumptions 

need to include an 

element of prudence, 

and Officers need to 

understand the long-

term impact and risks 

involved with taking 

short-term views to 

artificially manage 

employer contribution 

rates.  The 2019 

valuation will assess the 

contribution rates. 

4 2 8 

 
 

 
 
 
Chris 

Tambini 

 

7 
Pens/I
nvs 

Sub-funds of individual 

employers are not 

monitored to ensure 

that there is the correct 

balance between risks 

to the Fund and fair 

treatment of the 

employer 

Changing financial position 

of both sub-fund and the 

employer 

 

 

Significant financial 

impact on 

employing bodies 

due to need for 

large increases in 

employer 

contribution rates. 

Risk to the Fund of 

insolvency of an 

individual employer. 

This will ultimately 

increase the deficit 

of all other 

employers.  

 

Ian 

Howe/ 

Declan 

Keegan 

 

Ensuring, as far as 

possible, that the 

financial position of 

each employer is 

understood. On-going 

dialogue with them to 

ensure that the 

correct balance 

between risks and fair 

treatment continues. 

 

5 2 10 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Treat 

Dialogue with the 

employers, particularly 

in the lead up to the 

setting of new employer 

contribution rates. 

Include employer risk 

profiling as part of the 

Funding Strategy 

Statement update. To 

allow better targeting of 

default risks 

Investigate 

arrangements to de-risk 

funding arrangements 

for individual employers. 

Ensure that the 

implications of the 

independent, non-public 

sector status, of further 

education, sixth form 

colleges, and the 

autonomous, non-public 

sector status of higher 

education corporations 

is fully accounted for in 

the Funding Strategy 

4 2 8 

 
 

 
 
 
Ian 

Howe/ 

Declan 

Keegan 

 

69



 

8 Invs 

 Market investment 

returns are consistently 

poor and this causes 

significant upward 

pressure onto employer 

contribution rates 

Poor market returns, most 

probably caused by poor 

economic conditions 

Significant financial 

impact on 

employing bodies 

due to the need for 

large increases in 

employer 

contribution rates 

Chris 

Tambini 

Ensuring that strategic 

asset allocation is 

considered at least 

annually, and that the 

medium-term outlook 

for different asset 

classes is included as 

part of the 

consideration 

5 2 10 

 
 
 
Treat 

Making sure that the 

investment strategy is 

sufficiently flexible to 

take account of 

opportunities and risks 

that arise, but is still 

based on a reasonable 

medium-term 

assessment of future 

returns 

4 2 8 

 
Chris 

Tambini 

 

9 Invs 

Market returns are 

acceptable but the 

performance achieved 

by the Fund is below 

reasonable 

expectations 

Poor performance of 

individual managers, or poor 

asset allocation policy 

Opportunity cost in 

terms of lost 

investment returns, 

which is possible 

even if actual 

returns are higher 

than those allowed 

for within the 

actuarial valuation 

Chris 

Tambini 

Ensuring that the 

causes of 

underperformance 

are understood and 

acted on where 

appropriate 

3 3 9 

 
 
 
Treat 

After careful 

consideration, take 

decisive action where 

this is deemed 

appropriate. It should be 

recognised that some 

managers have a style-

bias and that poor 

performance will 

happen on occasions. 

2 2 4 

 
Chris 

Tambini 

10 Invs 

Failure to take account 

of ALL risks to future 

investment returns 

within the setting of 

asset allocation policy 

and/or the 

appointment of 

investment managers 

Some assets classes or 

individual investments 

perform poorly as a result of 

incorrect assessment of all 

risks inherent within the 

investment. 

Opportunity cost 

within investment 

returns, and 

potential for actual 

returns to be low. 

This will lead to 

higher employer 

contribution rates 

than would 

otherwise have 

been necessary. 

Chris 

Tambini 

Ensuring that all 

factors that may 

impact onto 

investment returns 

are taken into account 

when setting asset 

allocation policy. Only 

appointing investment 

managers that 

integrate responsible 

investment into their 

processes, and 

ensuring that 

managers take a 

holistic view on the 

risks associated with 

the investments they 

make on behalf of the 

Fund. 

3 3 9 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Treat 

Responsible investment 
aims to incorporate 

environmental, social 

and governance (ESG) 

factors into investment 

decisions, to better 

manage risk and 

generate sustainable, 

long-term returns. 

Annual refresh of the 

Fund’s asset allocation 

allows an up to date 

view of risks to be 

incorporated and avoids 

significant sort term 

changes to the 

allocation. 

2 2 4 

 

 

 

 

Chris 

Tambini 

70



 

 

Risk Impact Measurement Criteria 

11 Invs 

Investment pooling 

within the LGPS fails to 

deliver a higher long 

term net investment 

return 

LGPS Central fails to deliver 

better net investment 

returns than the Fund would 

have expected to achieve it 

investment pooling did not 

occur 

Lower returns will 

ultimately lead to 

higher employer 

contribution rates 

than would 

otherwise have 

been the case 

Chris 

Tambini 

Shareholders’ Forum, 

Joint Committee and 

Practitioners’ Advisory 

Forum will give   

significant influence in 

the event of issues 

arising. 

3 3 9 

 
 
 
 
 
Treat 

The set-up of LGPS 

Central is likely to be the 

most difficult phase. The 

Fund will continue to 

monitor closely how the 

company evolves 

Programme of LGPS 

Central internal activity 

activity, which has been 

designed in 

collaboration with the 

audit functions of the 

partner funds. 

2 2 4 

 

 

Chris 

Tambini 

12 Invs 

Investment decisions 

are made without 

having sufficient 

expertise to properly 

assess the risks and 

potential returns  

The combination of 

knowledge at Committee, 

Officer and Consultant level 

is not sufficiently high 

Poor decisions likely 

to lead to low 

returns and higher 

employer 

contribution rates 

Chris 

Tambini 

Continuing focus on 

ensuring that there is 

sufficient expertise to 

be able to make 

thoughtfully 

considered 

investment decisions  

3 3 9 

 
 
 
 
Treat 

On-going process of 

updating and improving 

the knowledge of 

everybody involved in 

the decision-making 

process 

2 2 4 

 

 

Chris 

Tambini 

13 Invs 

The transition of 

investment assets to 

LGPS Central is not 

successful 

Pooling does not reduce the 

on-going management costs 

of assets 

Transition costs are 

significantly higher, for 

example the cost of selling 

the existing investments and 

buying new ones.  

Savings available do 

not justify the 

transition costs and 

on-going cost of 

running LGPS 

Central 

Chris 

Tambini 

Central maintains the 

flexibility to run funds 

internally. 

Specialist transition 

manager being 

appointed. 

Implementation being 

phased, allowing 

capacity to be 

managed and lessons 

learned 

2 3 6 Treat 

Advisors engaged to 

assess the impact upon 

Leicestershire’s assets. 

Views from 8 partners 

sought throughout the 

transition process.  

Central increasing the 

level of engagement 

with Funds 

LGPS Central’s Internal 

Audit plan includes an 

assessment of the 

governance surrounding 

the transition 

2 2 4 

Chris 

Tambini 

71



 

Scale Description 
Departmental Service 

Plan Internal                   Operations  People Reputation 
Financial                          

per annum / per loss 

1 Negligible 
Little impact to objectives 
in service plan 

Limited disruption to operations and 
service quality satisfactory 

Minor injuries 
Public concern 
restricted to local 
complaints 

Pension Section 
  <£50k 
Investments 

Losses expected to be 
recovered in the short 
term 

 

 

2 Minor 
Minor impact to service as 
objectives in service plan 
are not met 

Short term disruption to operations 
resulting in a minor adverse impact 
on partnerships and minimal 
reduction in service quality. 

Minor Injury to  those 
in the Council’s care 

Minor adverse local / 
public / media 
attention and 
complaints 

Pension Section 
£50k-£250k Minimal 
effect on budget/cost 

Investments 
Some 
underperformance, but 
within the bounds of 
normal market volatility 

3 Moderate 
Considerable fall in 
service as objectives in 
service plan are not met 

Sustained moderate level disruption 
to operations / Relevant partnership 
relationships strained / Service 
quality not satisfactory 

Potential  for minor 
physical injuries / 
Stressful experience 

Adverse local media 
public attention 

Pension Section 
£250k - £500k Small 
increase on 
budget/cost: Handled 
within the team/service 

 
Investment 

Underperformance by a 
manager requiring 
review by the 
Investment Sub-
committee 

72



4 Major 
Major impact to services 
as objectives in service 
plan are not met.  

Serious disruption to operations with 
relationships in major partnerships 
affected / Service quality not 
acceptable with adverse impact on 
front line services. Significant 
disruption of core activities. Key 
targets missed. 

Exposure to 
dangerous conditions 
creating potential for 
serious physical or 
mental harm 

Serious negative 
regional criticism, with 
some national 
coverage 

Pension Section 
£500-£750k. Significant 
increase in budget/cost. 
Service budgets 
exceeded 

 
Investment 

Underperformance of 
significant proportion of 
assets leading to a 
review of the 
Investment or Funding 
strategy 

5 
Very 
High/Critical 

Significant fall/failure in 
service as objectives in 
service plan are not met 

Long term serious interruption to 
operations / Major partnerships under 
threat / Service quality not acceptable 
with impact on front line services 

Exposure to 
dangerous conditions 
leading to potential 
loss of life or 
permanent 
physical/mental 
damage. Life 
threatening or multiple 
serious injuries 

Prolonged regional 
and national 
condemnation, with 
serious damage to the 
reputation of the 
organisation i.e. front-
page headlines, TV. 
Possible criminal, or 
high profile, civil 
action against the 
Council/Fund, 
members or officers 

Pension Section 
>£750k Large increase 
on budget/cost. 

 
Investment 

Employer contributions 
expect to increase  
significantly above 
Funding Strategy 
requirement 

 
 

Risk Likelihood Measurement Criteria 
 
 

Rating Scale Likelihood Example of Loss/Event Frequency Probability % 

1 Very rare/unlikely EXCEPTIONAL event. This will probably 
never happen/recur. 

<20% 

2 Unlikely Event NOT EXPECTED. Do not expect it 
to happen/recur, but it is possible it may do 

so. 

20-40% 

73



3 Possible LITTLE LIKELIHOOD of event occurring. It 
might happen or recur occasionally. 

40-60% 

4 Probable  /Likely Event is MORE THAN LIKELY to occur. 
Will probably happen/recur, but it is not a 

persisting issue. 

60-80% 

5 Almost Certain Reasonable to expect that the event WILL 
undoubtedly happen/recur, possibly 

frequently. 

>80% 

 
 
 

 

Risk Scoring Matrix 
        

          

 
Impact 

        

 

5                                    
   Very High/Critical 5 10 15 20 25 

   

 
4  Major 4 8 12 16 20 

   

 
3  Moderate 3 6 9 12 15 

   

 
2   Minor 2 4 6 8 10 

   

 
1 Negligible 1 2 3 4 5 

   

  
1 2 3 4 5 

   

  
Very Rare/Unlikely Unlikely     Possible/Likely 

        Probable/ 
Likely    Almost certain 

   

      
Likelihood*  

       
 

*(Likelihood of risk occurring  

over lifetime of objective (i.e. 12 mths) 

 
 

 

74



 APPENDIX    1

Control 

Ref

Control Title Control Owner Control Objective Oversight Provided By Frequency of 

Activity

Evidence Required Assurance provided 

by:

Frequency Scope 

(1) Governance Risk 
Pooled governance arrangements are 

established, clearly documented and 

communicated to all Members and 

Officers (including Scheme of Delegations)

1 Governance arrangements for the Pool 

are not established, unclear and not 

known by all partners. 

C.1 Governance 

Arrangements

Practitioners Advisory 

Forum (PAF) (which 

includes S.151, Senior 

Officers) 

There is a clear governance structure which sets out roles and responsibilities of the following partner 

groups; 

- Joint Committee

- Practitioners Advisory Forum

- Shareholders Forum

This governance structure has been approved and is understood and communicated to all relevant 

staff. 

Pensions Committee (Partner 

Funds)/Audit and Standards 

Committee

Annual Regular review/update of; 

- Terms of Reference 

- Schemes of Delegation 

- Articles of Association/Shareholders Agreement/Inter Company Agreement

- Constitution (of Partner Funds) 

Minutes/Agendas of relevant governance groups. (Pension Committee, PAF, Joint 

Committee and Shareholders Forum) 

Internal Audit 

(Individual Partners) 

Annual Work completed to confirm; 

- Appropriate governance arrangements are in place.

- Governance groups are attended by the appropriate Members or Officers. 

- Governance inline with key documentation e.g. Terms of Reference, Scheme of Delegation.  

- Decision making is appropriate and evidenced

- Members and Officers aware of governance arrangements. 

N.B; External Audit review of AAF/0106 report 

Pension Committee

Audit and Standards Committee

Individual Partner Fund Internal 

Audit Functions

Policies and Procedures and have been 

communicated to relevant Members and 

Officers. 

2 Appropriate policies and procedures are 

not in place to support governance 

arrangements.

C.2 Policies and 

Procedures 

Practitioners Advisory 

Forum (PAF) (which 

includes S.151, Senior 

Officers) as 

representatives of 

Partner Funds 

Policies and procedures are in place within administering authorities to support governance 

arrangements. This includes;

 

- Codes of Conduct

- Register of Interest

- Gifts and Hospitality 

- Whistleblowing

- Anti-Fraud, Bribery and Corruption

Individual administering 

authorities committee 

structure 

Within administering 

authorities timetables. 

Regular review/update of following policies within administering authorities; 

- Codes of Conduct

- Register of Interest/declaration of interests

- Gifts and Hospitality 

- Whistleblowing

- Anti-Fraud, Bribery and Corruption

Internal Audit 

(Individual Partners) 

As per audit plan  

cycle

Work completed to confirm; 

- Policies and procedures are in place and regularly reviewed.

- Evidence of compliance with policies and procedures  e.g. Declarations of Interest

Pension Committee

Audit and Standards Committee

Individual Partner Fund Internal 

Audit Functions

Training regarding governance 

arrangements have been received. 

3 Appropriate training has not been 

provided to Members or Officers with 

regard to the governance arrangements 

of the Joint Committee, and Shareholders 

Forum.

C.3 Training Practitioners Advisory 

Forum (PAF) (which 

includes S.151, Senior 

Officers)

LGPS Central Ltd in 

relation to training 

required regarding 

Company and FCA  

matters. 

Officers and Members involved in the governance of the Pensions Pool receive the appropriate 

training, knowledge and skills to effectively understand their role and perform their responsibilities. 

Pensions Committee (Partner 

Funds)

Annual Training and Development Policy and Needs Analysis. Internal Audit 

(Individual Partners) 

Annual Work completed to confirm; 

-Training Programme in place and  reviewed regularly 

-Training logs maintained.

Pension Committee

Audit and Standards Committee

Individual Partner Fund Internal 

Audit Functions

The governance structure in place is 

effective and suitable for the needs of the 

Partner Funds. 

4 Governance structure is not effective C.4 Effective 

Governance 

Practitioners Advisory 

Forum (PAF) (which 

includes S.151, Senior 

Officers)

The governance structure in place is effective and includes the following features:- 

-  Interests of Partners are represented adequately.

- Clear business plan (Company) and set of linked objectives (company, pool and partner fund) which 

are regularly monitored.  

- Effective communication/reporting between the Company, the Pool and Partner Funds

- Effective decision making processes.

- Adequate oversight and control of Company Operations.

- Appropriate legal arrangements in place and  the Pool and Company are compliant with Teckal 

guidance

Pensions Committee (Partner 

Funds)

Annual Effective oversight evidenced through:-  

 - Company Board oversee company strategy and effectiveness of ExCo.

 - Shareholder Forum reviews relevant shareholder matters e.g. budget.

 - Joint Committee oversees effectiveness of Pool e.g. delivery of pool objectives. 

Including  process in place for escalation of requests for information.

 - PAF regularly review progress against key objectives and has resources to address 

any governance/legal issues. 

- Reporting requirements are linked to performance targets and benchmarks.

- Process in place for escalation of requests for information.

 

Evidenced by - Monitoring arrangements, KPIs/Dashboard, meeting minutes and 

committee papers. 

Internal Audit 

(Individual Partners) 

Annual Work completed to confirm; 

- Strategies and business plan are in place

- Coherent link between objectives of the Company, Pool and Partner Funds.

- Appropriateness of Monitoring Arrangements e.g. KPIs/Dashboards, meeting minutes, 

papers).

- Communication between all parties is appropriate.

- Reporting requirements are in place and requirements are adhered to. 

- Transparent and open reporting between all governance groups. 

- Timely reporting arrangements

Pension Committee

Audit and Standards Committee

Individual Partner Fund Internal 

Audit Functions

(2) Company Risk 
The Company has systems and controls in 

place to provide suitable assurance to 

Partner Funds.

5 Partner Funds can not place reliance on 

the Company's systems and controls. 

C.5 Company 

Assurance 

LGPS Central Ltd 

(EXCO)

The company has  effective systems and controls in place and ensures assurance documentation is 

available to LGPS Central. Including the following; 

AAF/0106

Internal Control Reporting

Internal/External Audit Reports

Compliance Monitoring

Depositary SOC Report (Northern Trust operator and depositary)

Evidence of Compliance with FCA Standards and Breach  Reporting Requirements

Access to Policies and Procedures e.g. Cyber security, Financial Regulations, 

Company Controls

ISO 27001 (cyber security)

Proactive monitoring, KPI's SLAs

BCP/DR Plans and appropriate testing 

Breach reporting policy and compliance monitoring 

Active monitoring of regulatory capital, capital position reported monthly to ORCA 

Cost Sharing Agreement 

HR Process -job descriptions, selection panels, training and development, performance appraisal 

Creation of Skills Matrix 

Salary and benefits benchmarking

Succession Planning 

Segregation of Duties 

Authorised Signatories 

Independent review of reconciliations (

Preventative and Detective Controls - Bloomberg Violation Manager 

Due Diligence of Suppliers                                                                 

Strong SLA's/Contract Management/ Supplier Monitoring 

Market Benchmarking 

Assessment of Concentration Risk 

Exit/Resilience Plans

Shareholders Forum 

(supported by PAF) and 

Partner Pension Committees

Annual Shareholders Forum (supported by PAF) ensures company provides assurance that 

systems and controls are operating effectively.

Internal Audit 

(Individual Partners 

and Collective Partner 

Funds) 

Annual Work completed to confirm administering authorities has received assurance that Company 

systems and controls are sufficient. 

Gain assurance from ARCC Report 

GAP Analysis and AAF 01/06 (after year 1)

Recommendation Tracking 

Audit Plan 

Pension Committee

Audit and Standards Committee

Collective Partner Funds Internal 

Audit Function - Provision/ Review 

of LGPS Central Ltd 

Control/Compliance  Reports.

Individual Partner Fund Internal 

Audit Functions - Reporting to 

Pensions Committee

(3) Financial/Operational Risk 
Budget for LGPS Central Ltd is set and 

approved annually and assurance is 

provided that financial management 

systems are robust.

6 An approved annual budget is not in place 

or is insufficient increasing the risk that 

partners will be required to pay additional 

contributions or  services can not be 

provided within agreed timescales.

C.6 Annual Budget LGPS Central (EXCO) LGPS Central Ltd set an Annual Budget which includes the following criteria:- 

I. Cash flow forecast and estimated working capital.

II. a projected profit and loss account.

III. an operating budget (including estimated capital expenditure requirements and balance sheet 

forecast);

IV. a summary of business objectives; and 

V. Variance analysis for previous financial year (Strategic Plan vs Actual Collective Vehicles) 

Throughout the financial year LGPS Central Ltd produce regular financial reporting. 

Company Controls

Budget review process reported to Exco/Board/Partners 

Budget Agreement process

Cost Sharing Agreement 

Shareholders Forum 

(supported by PAF) and 

Partner Pension Committees

Annual PAF review and Shareholders Forum agree  information included in the annual 

budget. Shareholders Forum approve Annual Budget for LGPS Central Ltd. 

Shareholders Forum review financial information supported by due diligence carried 

out by PAF regarding how LGPS Central Ltd is performing. This information will 

include;

• Quarterly management accounts and reports on operational effectiveness including 

any slippage in investments being made to LGPS products and the impact this would 

have on the Business Plan and subsequent  the payback / breakeven points for each 

of the Partners.

• Unaudited annual accounts;

• Audited annual accounts; a medium term Strategic Plan; and

• A report on the company’s progress against objectives/milestones set out in the 

Strategic Plan.

• Annual audit report 

Pension Committee have oversight of Budgets and Financial Reporting.

Internal Audit 

(Individual Partners 

and Collective Partner 

Funds) 

Annual Work completed to confirm Annual budget was approved by Shareholders Forum and 

financial monitoring arrangements are in place and variances reported promptly.

Evidenced through monitoring arrangements e.g. Minutes of Shareholder Forum, Financial 

Reporting. 

Pension Committee

Audit and Standards Committee

Collective Partner Funds Internal 

Audit Function - Provision/ Review 

of LGPS Central Ltd Financial 

Monitoring  Reports.

Individual Partner Fund Internal 

Audit Functions - Reporting to 

Pensions Committee

Assumptions regarding costs and  savings  

are robust and supported by appropriate 

modelling which is regularly reviewed.

7 Assumptions regarding costs and savings  

are not supported by appropriate 

modelling and are not adjusted to account 

for change. 

C.7 Cost Savings PAF Finance Working 

Group

The cost savings model detailing how 40 billion assets will be invested.

Assumptions in the model  have been agreed with all Partners and LGPS  Central and includes  flexible 

and scenario analysis (65 different sub funds). Business Plan relates to the company approved by 

shareholders. 

Joint Committee and Partner 

Pension Committees 

As Required Cost savings model is reported regularly to the Joint Committee and Partner Pension 

Committees

Internal Audit 

(Individual Partners 

and Collective Partner 

Funds) 

Annual Evidence that cost savings model has been completed and is regularly updated and reviewed 

by Joint Committee and Partner Pension Committees

Pension Committee

Audit and Standards Committee

Collective Partner Funds Internal 

Audit Function - Adherence to 

Delivery Plan

Individual Partner Fund Internal 

Audit Functions - Reporting to 

Pensions Committee

(4) Investment Risk 

Management Controls Governance Oversight

LGPS Central - ASSET POOLING ASSURANCE FRAMEWORK MAP (June 2019)  

Objective
Risk 

Ref

Risks - based on LGPS Central 

(the Pool)  risk register.

1st line of Defence Collective/IndividualAssurance Provided to 

Independent Assurance 

3
rd

 line of Defence2
nd

 line of Defence

75

ctuohy
Text Box
Appendix 2



The transition process is monitored and 

progress is regularly reported.

8 Risks associated with the transition 

process  e.g. lack of suitable products are 

not monitored or reported.  

C.8 Product Delivery 

Timescales

PAF Investment 

Working Group

LGPS Central Ltd 

A co-ordinated LGPS Central product delivery plan is in place and progress against this is regularly 

monitored.

Joint Committee and Partner 

Pension Committees 

As required Regular monitoring against the LGPS Central's product delivery  plan is received and 

reviewed by the Joint Committee and Pension Committee.

Internal Audit 

(Individual Partners 

and Collective Partner 

Funds) 

Annual Work completed to confirm transition plan is in place, transitions are being completed in line 

with the plan and the progress of the plan is  regularly reported. 

Pension Committee

Audit and Standards Committee

Collective Partner Funds Internal 

Audit Function - Adherence to 

Delivery Plan

Individual Partner Fund Internal 

Audit Functions - Reporting to 

Pensions Committee

Transition services procured are 

appropriate for the needs of the LGPS 

Central Pool and  estimated transition 

costs are identified and monitored

9 Transition services procured are 

inappropriate for the needs of  LGPS 

Central and costs are not identified or 

monitored.

C.9 Transition costs Product Delivery Liaison 

Group

For each transition a detailed and costed transition plan is in place and regularly reviewed. Consultant/ 

Transition managers are appointed using a National Framework or appropriate procurement route.

Joint Committee and Partner 

Pension Committees 

As required Joint Committee/Pension Committee receive reports in relation to individual 

transitions.

Internal Audit 

(Individual Partners 

and Collective Partner 

Funds) 

Annual Work completed to confirm that transition managers have been appropriately selected and  

costed transition plans are in place and reported retrospectively to relevant committees

N.B - External Audit undertake verification testing of transitions completed. 

Pension Committee

Audit and Standards Committee

External Audit (Individual Partner 

Funds)

Collective Partner Funds Internal 

Audit Function - Collaborative 

Procurement of Transition Manager 

Individual Partner Fund Internal 

Audit Functions -Detailed costings 

of individual transitions and 

reporting transition completions to 

Pension Committee

LGPS Central Ltd delivers against shared 

objective to act as a responsible, long 

term investor 

10 Investments do not adhere to responsible 

investment principles

C.10 Responsible 

Investment

LGPS Central (EXCO) Responsible investment framework and policies are in place and integrated into performance reporting 

Clients are involved in product design 

Product approval process 

Joint Committee (supported 

by the PAF) and Partner 

Pension Committees 

Minimum six monthly Joint Committee/Pension Committee regularly review progress against key objectives 

including Responsible Investment. Evidenced through;

Responsible Investment Policy  

RI Reporting

Internal Audit 

(Individual Partners 

and Collective Partner 

Funds) 

Annual Work completed to review monitoring arrangements and confirm that Joint 

Committee/Pension Committee regularly review progress against shared objectives. 

Pension Committee

Audit and Standards Committee

Local Pension Board

LGPS Central Ltd delivers against shared 

objectives to provide sufficient investment 

choice  for participating Partner Funds.

11 LGPS Central Ltd does not deliver  

sufficient investment choice resulting in 

shared objectives not being met and  

inability of LGPS Central Ltd to deliver the 

Partner Fund Investment Strategy.

C.11 Investment 

Products

LGPS Central (EXCO) LGPS Central Ltd have a strategy in place to ensure investment pooling delivers products / services in 

line with strategic asset allocation requirements and meets the needs of partner fund investment 

strategies. 

Close work with Shareholders to ensure investment in products offered

Company Controls 

(1)Product Approval Process (early identification of client requirements through formal documentation) 

includes timescales to prevent late delivery.

(2) New products reviewed and approved by Investment Committee (IC), New Product Development 

Committee and ORCA.

Joint Committee (supported 

by the PAF) and Partner 

Pension Committees 

Quarterly Joint Committee/Pension Committee regularly review progress against partner fund 

strategic asset allocation.

Internal Audit 

(Individual Partners 

and Collective Partner 

Funds) 

Annual Work completed to confirm:-

- That Joint Committee regularly review progress against shared objectives.

- Choice of investments available are sufficient and in line with the Partner Fund's investment 

strategy 

N.B. External Audit complete work to confirm how strategy is being delivered

Pension Committee

Audit and Standards Committee

Fund Actuaries 

External Audit 

Local Pension Board

Collective Partner Funds Internal 

Audit Function -Achievement of 

strategy and reporting to LGPS 

Central. 

Individual Partner Fund Internal 

Audit Functions - Reporting to 

Pensions Committee and Local 

Pensions Board. 

LGPS Central Ltd has improved the 

performance of investment returns.  

12 Failure to deliver improved performance 

and poor performance is not challenged 

leading to lower investment returns

C.12 Performance 

(Investment 

Returns)

LGPS Central Ltd 

(EXCO)

Investment performance targets are in place and the performance of investment returns (internal and 

external) is regularly monitored and reported.

Monitoring of mandates 

Company Controls; 

(1)Client involved in product design 

(2) Monitoring and oversight of portfolios performance by IC and periodic review by Investment Risk 

team 

(3) Client reporting 

Joint Committee (supported 

by the PAF) and Partner 

Pension Committees 

Quarterly The Joint Committee /Pension Committee regularly review investment performance 

against performance targets and poor investment performance is challenged.

Manager Reports 

Independent Investments Performance Reports

Internal Audit 

(Individual Partners 

and Collective Partner 

Funds) 

Annual Work completed to confirm that investment performance is in line with targets and that the 

Joint Committee /Pension Committee receive regular reporting regarding investments.

N.B Work completed by External Audit to value investments

Pension Committee

Audit and Standards Committee

Fund Actuaries 

External Audit 

Local Pension Board

Collective Partner Funds Internal 

Audit Function -Investment 

Performance Reporting for Pooled 

Assets

Individual Partner Fund Internal 

Audit Functions - Reporting to 

Pensions Committee and Local 

Pensions Board. 

Investment pooling delivers cost saving 

through a reduction in manager fees.

13 Pooled investments fail to deliver 

reduction in manager fees leading to lower 

net returns

C.13 Reduction in 

Manager Costs

LGPS Central Ltd 

(EXCO)

Procurement processes in place ensure value for money and the costs of investment management is 

regularly monitored and reported, including the completion of benchmarking. 

Collaborative partnership investment strategy 

Company Controls; 

(1) Work undertaken with Simplicitum (business analysis firm) re meaningful analysis 

(2) Continued focus on value for money 

(3) Monitoring of actual and forecast cost savings 

Joint Committee (supported 

by the PAF) and Partner 

Pension Committees 

Quarterly The Joint Committee /Pensions Committee regularly receive and review manager 

cost reporting, including benchmarking, to ensure manager costs are inline with cost 

savings model and previously agreed assumptions. 

Mechanisms are in place to challenge manager costs.

Internal Audit 

(Individual Partners 

and Collective Partner 

Funds) 

Annual Work completed to review the costs in comparison with the cost saving model to confirm that 

manager costs are reasonable and that the   Joint Committee/Pensions Committee have 

received regular reporting in relation to manager costs including benchmarking. 

Pension Committee

Audit and Standards Committee

Local Pension Board

Collective Partner Funds Internal 

Audit Function - Investment Cost 

Reporting.

Individual Partner Fund Internal 

Audit Functions - Reporting to 

Pensions Committee and Local 

Pensions Board. 

Assets invested in the pool are as 

expected.

14 Assets invested by the pool are lower than 

expected leading to increased oversight 

and governance costs for Partner Funds  

and resulting in increased management 

fees and extension of the payback period. 

C.14 Investment of 

Assets 

Individual Partner Funds 

(Pension Committees)

A shared  plan is in place and partner funds invest assets as per an agreed plan and in line with 

strategic asset allocation. 

Product delivery timescales 

Product development protocol 

Asset allocation to be a key part of the review meetings 

Company Controls; 

(1) Clients are involved in product design 

(2) Working with Investment Working Group (IWG)  and Partner funds to ensure funds with single 

investors aren't launched.  

(3) Utilise external investment management (where appropriate)

Joint Committee (supported 

by the PAF) 

LGPS Central Ltd 

Six Monthly The Joint Committee monitor the investment of assets against an LGPS Regulatory 

Business Plan/Product Delivery Plan. Regular reporting against breakeven position. 

Progress against the Regulatory Business Plan is reported. 

Internal Audit 

(Individual Partners 

and Collective Partner 

Funds) 

Annual Work completed to confirm that assets have been invested as per agreed plans and that 

changes to plans are documented. 

Pension Committee

Audit and Standards Committee

Local Pension Board

Collective Partner Funds Internal 

Audit Function - Assurance that 

actual investments are in line 

product delivery plan. 

Individual Partner Fund Internal 

Audit Functions - Reporting to 

Pensions Committee and Local 

Pensions Board. 

Company strategy adapts to changes in 

market conditions.

15 Market volatility leads to either:-

- A drop in assets invested which impacts 

on the level of  income; or 

- A significant rise in assets invested 

resulting in over recovery of costs and 

leading to tax implications.

C.15 Market Volatility LGPS Central (EXCO) Cost Sharing Agreement is in place and cost charging mechanisms are regularly reviewed with 

consideration given to market conditions. 

Tiered Management Fees (Ad-valourum) go up and down depending on assets under management

Joint Committee (supported 

by the PAF)

As required Cost charging mechanisms is reviewed by Joint Committee/PAF if relevant criteria 

met. 

Cost Sharing Agreement 

Internal Audit 

(Individual Partners) 

Annual Work completed by Internal Audit to confirm that Joint Committee regularly review cost 

charging mechanisms

Pension Committee

Audit and Standards Committee

Local Pension Board

Collective Partner Funds Internal 

Audit Function - Assurance that 

cost charging mechanism is 

monitored.

Individual Partner Fund Internal 

Audit Functions - Reporting to 

Pensions Committee and Local 

Pensions Board. 

(5) Wider Pooling Risks 

The LGPS Central Pool meets the four 

key criteria stipulated by Central 

Government.

16 The LGPS Central Pool can not 

demonstrate that it meets the four key 

government criteria or regulatory 

requirements  resulting in possible 

intervention from central government, 

sanctions or requirement to join another 

pooling arrangement. Thus  increasing 

costs and potentially reducing savings for 

Partners.

C.16 Pooling Criteria Practitioner Advisory 

Forum (LGPS Central) 

LGPS Central Ltd

The PAF monitor and report progress against four key government criteria - completion of MHCLG 

Returns                                                                                                 

Regulatory intelligence & working collaboratively with Partner Funds and Pools

Project management to ensure delivery of change.

Responding to consultations (from whom) when issued.                                           

Horizon scanning and adopting best practice ahead of any changes                                                   

Embedding the right regulatory culture                                                                                                                                

Participation in industry forums

Pension Committee     

(Partner Funds)

Six Monthly Individual Pension Committee's regularly receive and review reports in regard to 

progress against key government criteria.

Internal Audit 

(Individual Partners) 

Annual Work completed to confirm that Pension Committee's receive and review reports regarding 

progress of key government criteria.

Pension Committee

Audit and Standards Committee

Individual Partner Fund Internal 

Audit Functions - Reporting to 

Pensions Committee and Local 

Pensions Board. 

LGPS Central is aware of developments in 

government policies/reform of the Local 

Government Pension Schemes  

17 The Pool fails to respond to changes and 

challenges to  government policy/LGPS 

reforms. 

C.17 Changes to 

Government 

Policy 

Practitioners Advisory 

Forum (PAF) 

PAF ensure ongoing review of political consequences and effective communication with all partner 

funds, key government departments and associated groups e.g. LGA ,advisors and cross pool working 

group in order to maintain abreast of developments regarding Local Government Pooling and take pre-

emptive actions . Responding to consultations.

                                                                                                                

Company Controls

Lobbying through government work groups                                                                                                                                                                

Review of contracts and arrangements                                                                                                                                                                      

Investment strategy 

Joint Committee

Shareholders Forum and 

Partner Pension Committees

As required Ensure any changes or developments  to Local Government Pooling are 

communicated to relevant partners.

Minutes/Papers produced by PAF

Internal Audit 

(Individual Partners) 

Annual Work completed to confirm that there is monitoring of central government guidelines in 

relation to pooling and that changes are communicated to relevant partners.

Pension Committee

Audit and Standards Committee

Collective Partner Funds Internal 

Audit Function - Reporting of Policy 

Changes. 

Individual Partner Fund Internal 

Audit Functions - Reporting to 

Pensions Committee and Local 

Pensions Board. 

76



Appendix 3 

 

   

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

LGPS Asset Pooling  
Assurance Framework  
Internal Audit Approach  
 
June 2019 

77



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Our Mission 
 

To enhance and protect organisational value 
by providing risk-based and objective 
assurance, advice and insight. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Internal Audit Working Group Members 
 

Partner Fund Authority Internal Audit Representatives 

Staffordshire County Council (Lead) Deborah Harris, Chief Internal Auditor 

Leanne Teece, Auditor 

Derbyshire County Council Melanie Taylor, Principal Auditor 

Nottinghamshire County Council Simon Lacey, Audit Manager 

Leicestershire County Council Niru U Patel, Audit Manager  

Worcestershire County Council Lisa Smith, Principal Auditor 

Shropshire County Council Mark Seddon, Auditor  

Cheshire West and Chester Council Dave Knight, Senior Auditor 

West Midlands Pension Fund and  
City of Wolverhampton Council 

Senior Compliance Officer – Asset 
Management and Regulation 
 

Amanda MacDonald – Audit Business Partner 
 

Jennifer Pearce – Senior Auditor 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

78



LGPS Asset Pooling - Assurance Framework 

Internal Audit Approach 
 

 
 

Table of Contents 

 

1 Executive Summary ............................................................ 4 

1.1 Scope and Background ................................................................................... 4 

2 Internal Audit Approach ..................................................... 6 

2.1 Structure – What Are We Doing? ..................................................................... 6 

2.2 Risk Categories ............................................................................................... 6 

2.3 How Are We Doing It? ................................................................................... 10 

2.4 When Are We Doing it?  ................................................................................ 11 

 

Appendix 1  
Cyclical Proposed Cyclical Programme of Collective Audit Work 2019/20 to 2022/23…12 

 

79



LGPS Asset Pooling - Assurance Framework 

Internal Audit Approach 

 

4 | P a g e  
 

1 Executive Summary 

1.1 Scope and Background 

1.1.1 During 2014, the government explored several options for improving the 
efficiency and sustainability of the LGPS and undertook extensive consultation 
on the potential to deliver savings through greater investment management 
collaboration.  Following this exercise, in the summer of 2015, the government 
announced its intention to introduce a new regulatory framework which would 
facilitate collective investing and issued guidance and criteria to help 
administering authorities to develop proposals for pooling aimed at reducing 
costs and improving efficiency. Initial proposals were required by February 
2016, followed by more detailed business case submissions in July 2016, with 
a target implementation date of 1st April 2018.  

 
1.1.2 Informal links with several Midlands based LGPS Funds became the starting 

point for wider discussions in the context of the formal requirement for pooling. 
This resulted in a joint proposal from Cheshire, Derbyshire, Leicestershire, 
Nottinghamshire, Shropshire, Staffordshire, West Midlands and 
Worcestershire to create ‘LGPS Central’, with combined assets of £35 billion. 
The Minister, Marcus Jones MP provided written confirmation, in November 
2016, that LGPS Central had been formally accepted as a Local Authority 
Pension Fund Pool. 

 
1.1.3 Since this time, the Partner Fund Authorities have entered into both a 

Shareholders Agreement and an Inter-Authority Agreement to establish a joint 
asset pool (LGPS Central), and investment management company (LGPS 
Central Ltd) and Joint Committee. 

 
1.1.4 Following on from the above, the governance structure and arrangements for 

the LGPS Central pool have been established along with an Internal Audit 
Working Group (IAWG).  The IAWG’s main aim is to develop a co-ordinated 
and collaborative Internal Audit response to the new arrangements operating 
within the asset pool which has involved consultation with all Partner Funds 
Internal Audit functions, External Audit Partners, the Practitioners Advisory 
Forum and LGPS Central Ltd.   

1.1.5 A collaborative approach has been favoured in developing assurance over the 
new asset pooling arrangements operating within LGPS Central to: 

 ensure a consistent approach to all Partner Funds when providing 
assurance to their own organisation in relation to Pension Pooling; 

 

 prevent duplication so that LGPS Central and LGPS Central Ltd are not 
having to deal with audit queries from all Partner Funds Internal and 
External Auditors;  

 

 effectively share information between Internal Audit Partners and also 
between Internal Audit Partners and LGPS Central and LGPS Central 
Ltd; and  

80



LGPS Asset Pooling - Assurance Framework 

Internal Audit Approach 

 

5 | P a g e  
 

 

 identify risks and mitigating controls at an earlier stage. 

1.1.6 As part of this collaborative approach, the IAWG has developed an assurance 
framework for the LGPS asset pooling arrangements, applying the three lines 
of defence model, focusing on the management controls, oversight 
governance arrangements and independent assurance required to provide 
assurance to Partner Funds that potential risks regarding asset pooling have 
been considered and are mitigated. The LGPS asset pooling assurance 
framework was finalised and approved by the IAWG in March 2019.  It will be 
kept under review by the IAWG in-year.  

  

81



LGPS Asset Pooling - Assurance Framework 

Internal Audit Approach 

 

6 | P a g e  
 

2 Internal Audit Approach 

This document outlines how the LGPS Asset Pooling Assurance Framework 
should be applied by the collective and individual Partner Fund Internal Audit 
(IA) Functions  

2.1 Structure – What are We Doing? 

2.1.1 The LGPS Asset Pooling Assurance Framework is structured using LGPS 
Central’s (the Pool) own Risk Register.   

 
2.1.2 Assurance is required annually across each of the categories of risk.  

Elements of this assurance will be obtained as a collective of Partner Fund IA 
services whilst other elements will be obtained individually by Partner Fund IA 
services. 

 
2.1.3 For those risks where assurance is to be obtained as a collective, there is a 

need to ‘share the workload’ with no-one Partner Fund IA service covering all 
risks in any one year. 

 
2.1.4 This approach sets out for each of the risk categories, what the approach will 

be i.e. Individual Partner Funds IA Services, Collective Partner Fund IA 
Services or a mixture (see sections 2.2.1 to 2.2.5 below): 

2.2 Risk Categories 

2.2.1 Governance Risks 

1] Governance Risks  

Areas to be covered by the collective 
Partner Fund IA Services 
 

Areas to be covered by 
Individual Partner Fund IA 
Services 

LGPS Central arrangements (the Asset 
Pooling governance arrangements) to 
be reviewed as a collective.   
 
Work to cover scope detailed in the 3rd 
lines of defence within the Asset Pooling 
Assurance Framework e.g. 
 

 ToR for LGPS central governance 
structure; 

 Scheme of delegation for the Pool; 

 Links between Company, the Pool 
and Partner Funds; 

 Pool’s arrangements for having 
adequate oversight of company 
operations including finances (see 
company risk (2) and Financial & 
Operational risks (3) below for links 

Individually, Partner Fund IA 
services will obtain assurance 
over the interactions between the 
Pool and the Administering 
Authority e.g. 
 

 Reporting and communications 
to the Individual Partner 
Fund’s Pensions Committee 
and Audit Committee. 

 Policies and procedures of the 
Administering Authority include 
the operations of the pensions 
pool including Scheme of 
Delegation for the 
administering authority, 
register of interests, codes of 
conduct, constitution etc. 

82



LGPS Asset Pooling - Assurance Framework 

Internal Audit Approach 

 

7 | P a g e  
 

1] Governance Risks  

Areas to be covered by the collective 
Partner Fund IA Services 
 

Areas to be covered by 
Individual Partner Fund IA 
Services 

to this area); 

 Appropriate legal arrangements in 
place for the Pool; 

 Appropriate decision making in 
accordance with Pool’s governance 
structure*; 

 Regular meetings of governance 
groups with appropriately detailed 
and timely agendas and minutes;  

 Pool’s oversight of financial and 
performance management 
information. 

 Pool’s oversight of progress against 
the four key government criteria for 
pooling arrangements (See wider 
pooling risk 5). 

 Pool’s oversight of 
changes/developments in pooling 
arrangements (See wider pooling risk 
5)  

 
n.b This review of governance incorporates 
Teckal Compliance 

 Partner Fund Member 
representatives are adequately 
trained as well as Pensions 
Committee Members as a 
whole (training logs and 
training needs analysis). 

 Reporting to the Pensions 
Committee on assurance over 
the Company’s systems and 
controls (see company risk 
(2)). 

 Financial and performance 
reporting to the Administering 
Authority including the 
cost/savings model (See 
Financial & Operational Risks 
(3); 

 Individual Partner Fund’s 
Pensions Committees 
receive/review reports 
regarding 
progress/achievement of the 
four key government criteria 
for pooling arrangements (See 
wider pooling risk (5)).  

 Individual Partner Fund’s 
Pensions Committees receive 
updates on 
changes/developments in 
pooling arrangements. (see 
wider pooling risk (5)). 

  
 
 
 
 

2.2.2 Company Risks 

2] Company Risks  

Areas to be covered by the collective 
Partner Fund IA Services 
 

Areas to be covered by 
Individual Partner Fund IA 
Services 

Partner Fund IA Services to meet 
annually as a collective to review the 

Through the individual Partner 
Fund IA governance audit, ensure 

83



LGPS Asset Pooling - Assurance Framework 

Internal Audit Approach 

 

8 | P a g e  
 

2] Company Risks  

Areas to be covered by the collective 
Partner Fund IA Services 
 

Areas to be covered by 
Individual Partner Fund IA 
Services 

findings of the AAF/0106 Controls 
Report and actions to be taken in light of 
findings. 
 
Feedback to Practitioners Advisory 
Forum. 
 
Through the collective LGPS Asset 
Pooling governance audit ensure that 
the Pool has received assurance 
throughout the year on areas including: 
 

 AAF/0106 Control report findings 
and actions; 

 Internal Control Report/Compliance 
monitoring; 

 Company IA and EA reports; 

 Depository SOC report; 

 Access to Company policies; and  

 Recommendation tracking relating 
to actions taken in light of AAF/0106 
report and other company IA/EA 
reports.  

that the Partner Fund Pensions 
Committee and/or Audit 
Committee have received 
assurance that the Company’s 
systems and controls are 
sufficient.  Assess whether the 
level of information being 
received is sufficient to obtain 
assurance over company controls 
(see Governance risk 1 above). 
 
 

2.2.3 Financial & Operational Risks 

3] Financial & Operational Risks  

Areas to be covered by the collective 
Partner Fund IA Services 
 

Areas to be covered by 
Individual Partner Fund IA 
Services 

Through the collective LGPS asset 
pooling governance audit ensure that 
the pool has received assurance 
throughout the year on areas including: 
 

 The company’s annual budget 
setting; 

 Approval of the budget; 

 Financial and performance 
management information reports 
including cost/savings model; 

 Progress against 
objectives/milestones in strategic 
business plan; and 

 Annual audit report and audited 

Through the individual Partner 
Fund IA governance audit, ensure 
that the Partner Fund Pensions 
Committee and/or Audit 
Committee have received 
financial reports including the 
cost/savings model and 
performance reports throughout 
the year. 
(see Governance risk 1 above) 

84



LGPS Asset Pooling - Assurance Framework 

Internal Audit Approach 

 

9 | P a g e  
 

accounts. 
 
 
 

2.2.4 Investment Risks 

4] Investment Risks 

Areas to be covered by the collective 
Partner Fund IA Services 
 

Areas to be covered by 
Individual Partner Fund IA 
Services 

As a collective, the Partner Funds IA 
Services will obtain assurance over the 
following areas: 
 

 Product delivery plan is in place by 
the company and adherence to this 
plan, is monitored via the Pool’s 
governance arrangements; 

 Collaborative procurement of 
Transition Manager (where 
appropriate); 

 Transitions and costing information 
is reported to the Joint Committee 
(part of the pool); 

 There is a good level of 
communication between LGPS 
Central, LGPS Central Ltd and the 
Custodian during and after the 
transition process. 

 Company has in place responsible 
investment framework; 

 Company had in place appropriate 
and up to date policies governing 
investment activities; 

 Company strategy is in place to 
ensure that Partner Funds have the 
right products/services to deliver 
individual strategic asset allocation 
requirements; 

 Delivery against shared objectives 
of the pool; 

 Investment reporting for pooled 
assets to the joint committee 
(manager reports/independent 
investment performance reports); 

 Monitoring and reporting on costs 
relating to investments and 
mechanisms to challenge costs as 

Individually, Partner Fund IA 
services will obtain assurance 
that: 
 

 Transition arrangements are 
being reported to the Partner 
Fund Pensions Committee in 
terms of procurement of 
Transition Manager, costings 
associated with transitions 
relating to the administering 
authority and completed 
transitions; 

 Transitions are approved 
appropriately by the Partner 
Fund; 

 Pre and post transition 
reconciliations are carried out; 

 There is a good level of 
communication between LGPS 
Central, LGPS Central Ltd and 
the Custodian during and after 
the transition process. 

 Investments relating to the 
Partner Fund are reported to 
the Pensions Committee; 

 Pensions Committee/Pensions 
Board regularly receive 
monitoring information on 
products available; delivery of 
strategic asset allocation as 
well as meeting shared 
objectives of the Pool; 

 Investment and costs reporting 
is submitted to the Pensions 
Committee/Pensions Board 
including benchmarking of 
costs; 

85



LGPS Asset Pooling - Assurance Framework 

Internal Audit Approach 

 

10 | P a g e  
 

4] Investment Risks 

Areas to be covered by the collective 
Partner Fund IA Services 
 

Areas to be covered by 
Individual Partner Fund IA 
Services 

well as comparisons to cost/savings 
model and benchmarking 
arrangements; 

 The pool receives monitoring 
information on investments 
compared to the product delivery 
plan to ensure that investments are 
being made by Partner Funds in 
accordance with the agreed plan; 

 Arrangements within the Pool for 
reviewing cost sharing agreements 
and cost charging mechanisms for 
the pool. 

 Investments are being made in 
accordance with Partner 
Fund’s investment plan; 

 Cost sharing arrangements 
and charging for the Pool is 
kept under review by the 
Pensions Committee/Pensions 
Board. 

2.2.5 Wider Pooling Risks 

5] Wider Pooling Risks 

Areas to be covered by the collective 
Partner Fund IA Services 
 

Areas to be covered by 
Individual Partner Fund IA 
Services 

Through the collective Pensions Pool 
governance audit ensure that the Pool 
has: 

 Arrangements in place to monitor 
and report progress against the 4 
key government criteria for 
pensions pools; 

 Arrangements in place to identify 
changes to or developments in 
government policy in relation to 
pensions pooling arrangements. 

 

Through the individual Partner 
Fund IA governance audit, ensure 
that the Partner Fund Pensions 
Committee and/or Audit 
Committee have received 
assurance regarding the 
achievement/compliance with the 
four key government criteria for 
pensions pools and that they are 
kept up to date on government 
policy with regards to pensions 
pooling arrangements. 
(see Governance risk 1 above) 

 

2.3 How are We Going to Do it? 

2.3.1 For each collective Internal audit review, a standardised set of working papers 
has been produced.  The library of standardised working papers will be held 
on the LGPS Central’s SharePoint site (the Pool’s SharePoint facility). 

 
2.3.2 All completed collective internal audit work will also be stored on LGPS 

Central’s SharePoint with access granted to all Partner Fund Internal Audit 
Functions.    

 

86



LGPS Asset Pooling - Assurance Framework 

Internal Audit Approach 

 

11 | P a g e  
 

2.4 When Are we Going to Do it? 

2.4.1 It is proposed that the collective Internal Audit work is carried out every year, 
with each Partner Fund Internal Audit Function taking it in turns to undertake 
the assurance work in that area.  A report and completed working papers will 
be produced as part of the collective work.  The final report will be ready no 
later than 31st March each year for all Partner Fund Internal Audit Functions to 
use as part of their assurance to their own individual Audit Committee / 
Pensions Committee. 

 
2.4.2 A four-year cyclical programme covering the period 2019/20 to 2022/23 has 

been developed and agreed by the Partner Funds Internal Audit functions.  
This is to ensure fairness and to ensure that the cost of auditing the LGPS 
Asset Pooling arrangements is spread equally across the Pension Funds over 
a four-year period (Appendix 1 refers). 

 
2.4.3 As detailed in the tables above at 2.2.1 to 2.2.5, the collective audit work will 

be supplemented with individual partner fund internal audit work relating to 
your own administering authority. 

 
 

87



Appendix 1 – Proposed Cyclical Programme of Collective Audit Work 2019/20 to 2022/23 
 

12 | P a g e  
 

Proposed Cyclical Programme of Collective Internal 
Audit Work  
 
 
Partner Pension Fund IA Function/Collective IA Review 

S
ta

ff
o

rd
s
h

ir
e

 

C
o
u

n
ty

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

W
e

s
t 

M
id

la
n

d
s
  

S
h

ro
p

s
h

ir
e

 

C
o
u

n
ty

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

L
e

ic
e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e

 

C
o
u

n
ty

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

W
o

rc
e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e

 

C
o
u

n
ty

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

N
o
tt

in
g
h

a
m

 

C
o
u

n
ty

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

C
h
e

s
h

ir
e

 W
e
s
t 

&
 C

h
e

s
te

r 

D
e
rb

y
s
h

ir
e

 

C
o
u

n
ty

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

2019/20 

Governance/Company & Financial & Operational Risks 

        

Company Risks – Review of AAF/0106 Control Report 
and Feedback         

Investment Risks 
        

2020/21 

Governance/Company & Financial & Operational Risks 
        

Company Risks – Review of AAF/0106 Control Report 
and Feedback         
Investment Risks 

        

2021/22 

Governance/Company & Financial & Operational Risks 
        

Company Risks – Review of AAF/0106 Control Report 
and Feedback         
Investment Risks 

        
 

88

https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg


Appendix 1 – Proposed Cyclical Programme of Collective Audit Work 2019/20 to 2022/23 
 

13 | P a g e  
 

 
 

 
 

Proposed Cyclical Programme of Collective Internal 
Audit Work  
 
 
Partner Pension Fund IA Function/Collective IA Review 

S
ta

ff
o

rd
s
h

ir
e

 C
o
u

n
ty

 

C
o
u

n
c
il 

W
e

s
t 

M
id

la
n

d
s
  

S
h

ro
p

s
h

ir
e

 C
o

u
n

ty
 

C
o
u

n
c
il 

L
e

ic
e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e

 

C
o
u

n
ty

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

W
o

rc
e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e

 

C
o
u

n
ty

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

N
o
tt

in
g
h

a
m

 C
o

u
n

ty
 

C
o
u

n
c
il 

C
h
e

s
h

ir
e

 W
e
s
t 
&

 

C
h
e

s
te

r 

D
e
rb

y
s
h

ir
e

 C
o

u
n

ty
 

C
o
u

n
c
il 

2022/23 

Governance/Company & Financial & Operational Risks 
        

Company Risks – Review of AAF/0106 Control Report 
and Feedback         
Investment Risks 

        

89

https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg
https://sv.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fil:Green_tick.svg


 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

90



 
 

LOCAL PENSION COMMITTEE – 5th July 2019 
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES 
 

INVESTMENT SUBCOMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP 
 
Purpose of the Report 
 

1. The purpose of this report is to inform the Local Pension Committee of the 
membership of the Investment Subcommittee for the period ending with the 
date of the Annual Council meeting in May 2020. 

 
 Background 
 
2. As administering authority, Leicestershire County Council has responsibility 

for managing the Pension Fund. In order that it can fulfil this responsibility 
effectively, the Local Pension Committee (previously known as the Pension 
Fund Management Board) has been given responsibility for all decisions in 
respect of the Fund.  

 
3. In May 2010 the County Council approved the formation of the Investment 

Subcommittee in order to assist the Pension Fund Management Board (now 

the Local Pension Committee) in pro-actively managing the Fund’s assets. 

The increasing complexity of the Fund’s investment structure had the impact 

that the Board found it increasingly difficult to act in a suitably pro-active 

manner within the confines of 5 meetings per annum. 

4. Whilst the move towards Local Government Pension Scheme investment 

pooling in April 2018 removed the requirement for the Subcommittee to 

interview and select investment managers, it is expected that the other parts 

of its role will remain, including deciding how best to implement certain key 

strategies once approved by the Local Pension Committee. Whilst it is 

expected that the Investment Subcommittee will not meet often, it is 

considered sensible that it should remain in operation should the need arise.  

Membership of the Investment Subcommittee 

5. Membership of the Investment Subcommittee is drawn from members of the 
Local Pension Committee.  The Subcommittee will continue to consist of 6 
voting members plus a non-voting staff representative. The membership will 
comprise: 
 

 3 County Councillors based on the proportional representation of the 
Council  

 
Mr. Osborne CC 
Mr. Barkley CC 

91 Agenda Item 12



Dr Hill CC 
 

 1 member representing Leicester City Council  
 

 1 member representing the District Councils  
 

 The member representing De Montfort/Loughborough Universities 
 

 1 staff representative (non-voting) 
 

Future Meeting Dates 

 
6. Below is a list of provisional meeting dates for the Investment Subcommittee 

up until the end of 2019. If there is no business to be transacted the meeting 
will be cancelled. 

 
Wednesday 24th July – 10 am – This meeting has since been cancelled. 
Wednesday 16th October – 10am 
Wednesday 18th December – 10am 
 
Recommendation 

It is recommended that the Local Pension Committee notes the report 

 Equality and Human Rights Implications 
 
None specific 
 
Officers to Contact 
 
Declan Keegan – Assistant Director - Strategic Finance & Property, Corporate 
Resources 
telephone (0116) 305 7688 
 
Chris Tambini – Director – Corporate Resources 
telephone (0116) 305 6199 
 

 

 

 

92



 

 

  

 
LOCAL PENSION COMMITTEE  

 
5 JULY 2019  

 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES 

 
PENSION FUND VALUATION  

 
 
Purpose of the Report 
 

1. The purpose of this report is to seek the Committee’s approval of the 
assumptions and stabilisation approach, for scheme employers with tax 
raising powers, in preparation for the Leicestershire Local Government 
Pension Scheme (LGPS) valuation. 

 
Background 

 
2. Every three years each LGPS administering authority has a statutory 

obligation to have an actuarial valuation (Valuation) of the pension scheme. 
The Leicestershire Pension Fund’s (Fund) assets and liabilities were 
assessed on the 31 March 2019 and the overall funding position calculated.  
 

3. The main aim of the Valuation is to set contribution rates for each employer 
for a three year period that commences one year after the valuation date (i.e. 
for the period 1st April 2020 to 31st March 2023). In order to set these 
contribution rates the actuary must take account of a large number of factors, 
most of which are assumptions of what will happen in the future. These 
assumptions do not impact onto the ultimate cost of paying benefits they 
simply calculate the liability derived from these benefits, which in turn impacts 
the level of contributions set. 
 

4. Throughout the Valuation process the actuary has a professional 
responsibility to certify contribution rates that are considered reasonable. 
There is also a requirement within the LGPS Regulations that there is an 
element of prudence built into the actuarial assumptions and that the actuary 
sets contributions in line with these prudent assumptions and that they are as 
stable as possible. 
 

5. In 2016 the Valuation calculated a 76% funding level; this required the 
majority of employers to increase their contribution rates. The latest estimate 
from Hymans suggests a similar position for this valuation. 
 

93 Agenda Item 13



 

 

Employer Risk Profiling 
 

6. The Valuation will ultimately produce employers’ contribution rates for all 
employing bodies within the Fund. These contribution rates will take account 
of the particular circumstances of each employing body, and the rates will be 
a combination of the cost of paying for future service as it accrues, plus an 
adjustment for paying off the deficit over an appropriate period of time. 
 

7. To protect Fund employers it is essential that the potential for an organisation 
to default on its liabilities is taken into account. To support this it is proposed 
to adopt a more scientific approach to employer risk profiling for this 
Valuation. In preparation, Officers have considered the risk profiles of the 
Fund’s employers.  
 

8. The level of risk, presented to the Fund, is a key determinant in the period of 
time that the deficit can be recovered over. For example tax raising bodies 
tend to be classified as low risk employers; affording them the greatest 
flexibility in repaying the deficit. Conversely private sector companies are 
classified as highest risk; deficits are not permitted to extend beyond the 
length of the contract. Higher risk employers are being reviewed to ensure 
suitable deficit recovery periods and security is in place.  
 
Deficit Recovery 
 

9. The repayment of the historic deficit is usually expressed as a percentage of 
pensionable pay, for active members. This benefits from simplicity in 
application, as it is in line with the contribution for future service, and 
comparability. However, an assumption is required on future pensionable pay. 
This could result in an organisation with a declining membership underpaying, 
hence it is recommended that where practical employers deficit repayments 
are set as cash values. 

 
Stabilisation  

 
10. To avoid large increases or decreases in employer contributions employers, 

who are deemed to be the lowest risk, are offered a stabilisation rate. The 
lowest risk category relates to employers who have tax raising powers and 
are legally required to offer employees membership of LGPS.   The 
stabilisation mechanism works by limiting increases or decreases in 
contributions by a set amount each year. This avoids significant or sudden 
contribution changes and smooths the impact of any short term volatility on 
contributions. It also aids employers budgeting. The downside of stabilisation 
is that the Fund remains in deficit for longer ultimately making paying off the 
deficit more expensive than it otherwise would have been.  

 
11. Hymans has a modelling tool which was used in the previous three 

Valuations, called comPASS, which can assess contribution rate strategies 
over the long-term. This allows a judgement to be made whether the 
strategies are likely to be sufficient to return the sub-fund of an individual 
employer to a fully funded position within the agreed deficit spreading period. 

94



 

 

 
12. ComPASS uses 5,000 separate economic scenarios with different potential 

outcomes (investment returns, inflation etc.), thereby giving a very robust 
result. The Actuary has carried out modelling to allow the Fund to understand 
the long term likelihood of meeting the funding target and assess the 
downside risk. 

 
13. To ensure that the contribution strategies are reasonable the requirement is 

for the modelling to show that: 
 

a. 75% of the outcomes will result in a fully funded position and 
b. The funding level in the worst 5% of outcomes does not fall below 50% 

 
14. All the low risk employers listed below have met the required level, assessed 

on an employer rate increasing by 1.0% per year using a 17 year deficit 
recovery period. The results mean stabilised employers should budget for 
1.0% increases in their current total contribution rate each year. The Actuary 
has indicated that this rate could be justified for five years, not just the 
standard three. 

 Leicestershire County Council  

 Leicester City Council 

 Blaby District Council 

 Charnwood Borough Council 

 Harborough District Council 

 Hinckley & Bosworth Borough Council 

 Melton Borough Council 

 North West Leicestershire District Council 

 Oadby & Wigston Borough Council 

 Rutland County Council 

 Leicestershire Fire Authority  (civilian staff) 

 Leicestershire Police and Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner 
(civilian staff) 

 
15. Full details of the Fund’s stabilisation policy will be set out in the Funding 

Strategy Statement, a draft of which will be presented to the Pensions 
Committee on the 8th November. 
 

16. The actuary will provide draft valuation results in the autumn that will allow 
contribution rates for non-stabilised employers to be released in November.  
 
Agreement of key actuarial assumptions 
 

17. The key financial assumptions required for the valuation are: 
a. Investment returns 

95



 

 

b. Inflation 
c. Salary Growth 
d. Longevity 

 
18. Investment returns are based on two separate assumptions. The first 

assumption is the Fund’s future investment returns for the next 20 years. This 
is derived in a similarway to the comPASS modelling with multiple economic 
projections being created. . These projections are used to calculate the 
expected performance of each of the asset classes the Fund holds. This 
range of expected returns over the 20 year period is applied to the holdings in 
the Fund’s asset allocation strategy. A similar exercise is performed during 
the annual review of the asset allocation strategy; this resulted in an expected 
return of CPI + 3.4%. 
 

19. Beyond a 20 year time horizon uncertainty increases greatly, hence a different 
approach is taken. A single assumption about future investment returns is set, 
this is known as the discount rate. The discount rate is set independently of 
today’s economic conditions. To make a prudent estimate of future investment 
returns the following steps are taken: 

a. Estimate the risk free rate of return – uses long-term UK government 
bonds yields (gilts) 

b. Estimate the expected return in excess of gilt yields, know and the 
asset outperformance assumption (AOA) 

c. Assess the likelihood of the AOA being met based upon the Fund’s 
current strategic asset allocation. 

 
20. The table below shows the outcome of the assessment: 

 

Likelihood of achieving 
this margin from year 20 

Asset outperformance assumption (% p.a.) 

1.8% 2.0% 2.2% 

Current strategy 78% 75% 72% 

 
21. In the 2016 valuation the AOA was 1.8%, hence based upon this assessment 

the recommendation is to maintain the discount rate assumption of Gilts + 
1.8%. A report from the Fund’s actuary, Hymans Robertson, is attached as an 
appendix to this report.  Their report provides a greater explanation of the 
approach adopted in deriving the assumption.    
 

22. The inflation assumption is derived from the difference between yields on 
index-linked and conventional government bonds. This produces an estimate 
of the Retail Prices Index (RPI). However, the Consumer Price Index (CPI) is 
more relevant to the Fund, hence the actuary uses a standard assumption to 
derive the CPI figure (RPI – 1%). 
 

23. The salary growth assumption is required due to the final salary benefits of 
active scheme members. The importance of this assumption is declining. In 
2014 all benefits were final salary, as at March 2019 it is estimated that 60% 
will be final salary, with the balance being based upon career average. Note 
promotional increases are set separately. 
 

96



 

 

24. Based upon the latest national pay award (2%) and the impact of the National 
Living Wage (c.0.5%) three scenarios were modelled: 

 

Increase p.a. CPI CPI + 0.5% CPI + 1.0% 

Approximate change 
to funding level 

2% 1% 0% 

 
25. The 2016 assumption of CPI + 1% (RPI) reflected the more common used 

measure of local government inflation at the time. Subsequently the level of 
CPI has been the main consideration for items such as pay awards and tax 
increases. Hence the recommended assumption is CPI + 0.5%. A report from 
the Fund’s actuary, Hymans Robertson, is attached as an appendix to this 
report.  Their report provides a greater explanation of the approach adopted in 
verifying the assumption.    
 

26. Longevity estimates are based upon modelling performed by Club Vita. This 
information will be available later in the valuation process. 
 
 
Other Factors 
 
 

27. In November 2018 the Committee received a report outlining that the LGPS 
“cost cap” was likely to be breeched. The implication of this would be for 
benefits to be increased or employee contributions reduced. Prior to a 
decision being made on the approach the Government lost an Employment 
Tribunal appeal regarding the transitional provisions for a reduction in 
benefits. This is also applicable to the LGPS. The case is widely referred to as 
McCloud.  
 

28. The implications for LGPS at this stage are uncertain, although both matters 
suggest the cost of the scheme could increase. The impact of these matters 
have not been taken into account in the modelling. If further information is 
available allowing a reliable estimate to be made this will be done. There is 
nothing to suggest that the assumptions set out above are likely to change.  
 
Timeline  
 

29. The timeline for providing information to employers about the valuation is as 
follows:  

 6 June 2019. Officers met with the low risk employers detailing 
stabilisation of their likely employer rates. 

 5 July 2019. Assumptions and stabilised rates to be formalised by the 
Pensions Committee. 

 September/October 2019. Draft results received. 

 8 November 2019. Officers and the Actuary to present the full fund 
results and the draft Funding Strategy Statement to the Local Pension 
Committee. 

97



 

 

 18 November 2019. The Pension Fund Annual General Meeting 
including an employer forum. All employer results will be presented by 
Officers and the Actuary. 

 January 2020. Pensions Committee to formally sign off the Funding 
Strategy Statement after consultation ends and the final valuation 
results.  

 1 April 2020. New employer rates commence.      
 
 

30. The Fund will consult with employers before making changes to contribution 
rates and the Funding Strategy Statement. This process is likely to start 
formally after the AGM. 
 
Recommendation 
 

31. It is recommended that; 
 

a. The following actuarial assumptions be approved for use in the 2019 
valuation of the Fund; 

i. discount rate assumption of Gilts + 1.8% 
ii. salary growth assumption of CPI + 0.5%. 

 
b. the contribution rate increase of 1.0% per year be used for stabilised 

employers from 1st April 2020. 
 
 

Equality and Human Rights Implications 
 
None 

 
Appendices 
 
Appendix A – Hymans Robertson – 2019 Valuation: Setting the discount rate 
Appendix B – Hymans Robertson – 2019 Valuation: Salary growth 
assumption 
 
Officers to Contact 
 
Mr C Tambini, Director of Corporate Resources 
Tel: 0116 305 6199 Email: Chris.Tambini@leics.gov.uk 
 
Mr D Keegan, Assistant Director Strategic Finance and Property 
Tel: 0116 305 7668 Email: Declan.Keegan@leics.gov.uk 
 
Mr I Howe, Pensions Manager 
Tel: 0116 305 6945 Email: Ian.howe@leics.gov.uk 
 
 
 
      

98

mailto:Chris.Tambini@leics.gov.uk
mailto:Declan.Keegan@leics.gov.uk
mailto:Ian.howe@leics.gov.uk


 

 

 

Leicestershire County Council 

Pension Fund 
2019 Valuation: Setting the discount rate 

May 2019 

 

 

 

 

Richard Warden 

 

Fellow of the Institute & Faculty of Actuaries 

For and on behalf of Hymans Robertson LLP 

 

 

99

ctuohy_1
Typewritten Text
Appendix 1



 

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund 

 

May 2019 4 

Contents 

2019 Valuation: Setting the discount rate Page 

 

1 Introduction 5 
2 Background 6 
3 2019 Valuation discount rate 8 
Appendix 1 – Model details 13 
Appendix 2 – Portfolio returns 14 
Appendix 3 – Professional Notes 16 

 

 

  

100



 

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund 

 

May 2019 5 

1 Introduction 

This paper has been commissioned by and is addressed to Leicestershire 

County Council in its capacity as Administering Authority to the 

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund (“the Fund”). It has been 

prepared in my capacity as Actuary to the Fund. 

The next actuarial valuation of the Fund takes place as at 31 March 2019. 

This paper has been prepared to facilitate discussions on funding strategy 

and assumptions for the 2019 valuation. In particular, this paper considers 

the discount rate to use in the 2019 valuation. 

This paper has been prepared solely for the use of the Administering Authority 

to the Fund, to assist in setting the discount rate assumption at the 2019 formal 

valuation.  This document should not be released or otherwise disclosed to any 

third party without our prior consent, in which case it should be released in its 

entirety.  Hymans Robertson LLP accepts no liability to any other party, or for 

any other use, unless we have expressly accepted such liability 

Understanding the importance of the discount rate assumption 

The discount rate assumption is how we allow at the valuation for future 

investment returns on the Fund’s assets.  This is a key element and risk in 

funding and it’s therefore important to develop a good understanding of how 

future investment returns, or the discount rate, have been modelled and 

incorporated into the funding strategy.   

At the 2019 valuation, the Fund will adopt a risk based approach to setting 

contribution rates.  This approach projects the Fund’s future investment returns 

for the next 20 years under a range of different economic scenarios generated 

by Hymans Robertson’s proprietary Economic Scenario Service.  This model 

projects 5,000 different economic scenarios, on a year by year basis, and then 

analyses the expected performance of each of the asset classes the Fund 

holds under each scenario to generate the best possible understanding of the 

range of possible asset returns over the 20 year period.  Therefore, the range of 

investment returns, or discount rate, over the next 20 years is captured in the 

risk based modelling. (More details of the parameters of the ESS modelling will 

be provided as part of the valuation process) 

Beyond a 20 year time horizon, the future becomes even more uncertain and 

we move to valuing future benefit payments by making a single assumption 

about future investment returns, or a long term target discount rate.  The 

process of setting the long term target discount rate should be made 

independently of today’s economic conditions. 

This is discussed in more detail in the rest of this paper. 

101



 

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund 

 

May 2019 6 

2 Background 

The main purpose of the formal valuation is to review funding plans to ensure 

they are still fit for purpose, and set contribution rates payable by participating 

employers.  At the 2019 valuation, the Fund will adopt a three step method to 

setting contribution rates using a risk based approach. 

Three-step method for setting contribution rates 

The following three-step method will be used to calculate contribution rates for 

each employer.  The three steps allow for individual employer circumstances 

(e.g. contract length, covenant strength, nature of participation in the Fund, etc): 

1 Set a funding target – i.e. how much money does the Fund want to hold 

to pay future benefits (see below)? 

2 Choose a time horizon – i.e. how long does the Fund want to give each 

employer to reach its funding target? 

3 Choose a likelihood of success – i.e. how sure does the Fund want to be 

that the funding target will be achieved? 

Further detail will be given in the Fund’s Funding Strategy Statement and in the 

2019 valuation report. 

Risk based methodology 

A risk based approach will be adopted to modelling contribution rates to allow 

the Fund to understand the likelihood of success associated with each funding 

plan i.e. step 3 above.  Under the risk based approach each employer’s future 

benefit payments, contributions and investment returns are projected into the 

future under 5,000 possible economic scenarios.   

Future inflation and investment returns for each asset class are variables in the 

projections: 

• As pensions are index-linked and salary increases are expected to 

broadly move relative to the ‘cost of living’, the projected future benefit 

payments and contributions are sensitive to the level of future inflation.   

• The projected future investment return depends on the investment 

strategy of the Fund and the return generated by each invested asset. 

This approach recognises and reflects that the future is uncertain.  This 

approach differs from previous valuations where a single projection of the future 

was used, based on assumptions linked to market conditions at the valuation 

date alone. 

Setting the funding target 

The individual employer’s circumstances and the risk based approach 

respectively address the second and third steps in the three-step method.  The 

first step, choice of funding target, requires more consideration. 

For many employers it is likely that benefits will be paid many years into the 

future (75 years or more).  In principle we could carry out the full scenario-

based modelling described above for this entire period, allowing us to 

determine if each year’s benefit payments could be met from the projected 

assets available.   

In practice though, when projecting further and further into the future, the 

uncertainty surrounding the projections eventually becomes too high to be 

meaningful. We need to ‘draw a line in the sand’ after a suitable length of time - 

20 years.  Projections beyond this point are based on a single set of 

assumptions. This set of assumptions dictates the funding target, and therefore 

the level of prudence in these assumptions dictates the amount of assets the 

Fund wants to hold to pay for future benefits. 

Each of the projected 5,000 scenarios represents different prevailing economic 

conditions in 20 years.  Choosing a single, fixed value for each assumption 

102



 

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund 

 

May 2019 7 

would not be appropriate for every scenario: e.g. a high discount rate would not 

be prudent in scenarios with a weak outlook for economic growth.   

Therefore, instead of using a fixed value for each assumption, we need to 

reference economic indicators to ensure the assumptions remain appropriate 

for the prevailing economic environment in each future scenario.  For 

convenience, the economic indicators we use are: 

• future inflation expectations (for pension increases and salary growth) 

• the yield on UK government bonds (for the discount rate). 

The chart below illustrates how the investment returns generated by the model 

vary over time, including the transition to a flat set of assumptions after year 20: 

 

Funding target at the 2016 valuation 

The set of financial assumptions used in the funding target at the 2016 

valuation is detailed below. 

Assumption Economic 
parameter 

Factor to consider Value at 2016 
valuation 
(% p.a.) 

Discount rate Fixed interest 
gilt yield  

Level of return above 
UK gilts 

Gilt yield + 1.8% 

Pension 
increases 

RPI inflation Difference between 
CPI and RPI 

RPI less 1.0% 

Salary 
increases 

RPI inflation Level of increases 
relative to RPI 

RPI  

It is good governance to review all actuarial assumptions as part of each 

triennial valuation to ensure they reflect the Fund’s risk appetite and investment 

strategy. 

The rest of this paper considers the discount rate assumption to use in the 

funding target at the 2019 valuation. 

Low inflation, high growth 

High inflation, low growth 

Full scenario modelling Flat set of assumptions for 
each scenario 

103



 

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund 

 

May 2019 8 

3 2019 Valuation discount rate 

Methodology 

To help the Fund consider the discount rate assumption we have used a model 

that generates thousands of possible future investment returns for a given 

investment strategy.  In this case we have modelled returns starting from 20 

years in the future, to fit in with the risk based methodology outlined in Section 

2.  Further detail on the model used to generate the expected returns is given in 

Appendix 1. 

As discussed in Section 2, there is no need to consider the investment return 

for the first 20 years starting from now as this is captured in the risk based 

modelling.  However, we have included some analysis for this time period in 

Appendix 2 for information purposes. 

By analysing the distribution of returns generated by the model over the time 

period we can determine 

• the most likely or ‘best estimate’ return – we expect the portfolio to do 

better than this 50% of the time; and 

• a prudent estimate of returns – prudence is not defined in the 

Regulations; our general ‘rule of thumb’ is to aim for a target where we 

expect the portfolio to do better than this 66% of the time. 

For the purposes of setting the discount rate we use the prudent estimate to be 

consistent with the Fund’s risk appetite and Funding Strategy Statement (and 

as required by the LGPS Regulations). 

The results of this analysis provides a single future investment return 

assumption from year 20 onwards.  However, as discussed in Section 2, at the 

end of the 20 year projection period there are various economic scenarios and 

market conditions in force.  If we simply assumed the same fixed future return 

for all scenarios, then there will be cases where the assumed future investment 

return will be too high and therefore not sufficiently prudent (e.g. in a low growth 

scenario).  Similarly in a high growth scenario, the fixed future return might be 

too low and therefore too prudent for the Fund’s investment and funding plans. 

Therefore, we need some way of translating the prudent return so it is 

appropriate for whichever market condition is in force in 20 years’ time.  

Our preferred approach is to express the future investment return as a margin 

above long-term ‘risk-free’ interest rates.  The yield on long-term UK 

government bonds at year 20 (as generated by our model) is viewed as a 

suitable estimate of the risk-free interest rate at that time.  This approach is 

justified on the basis that the Fund’s investment strategy will include a 

proportion of risky assets whose long-term returns can be expected to exceed 

the ‘risk-free’ rate.  Indeed, the Fund will usually have expectations of what the 

margin is above ‘risk-free’ when investing in these different asset classes. 

The margin is calculated by comparing the prudent overall Fund investment 

return against the best estimate return on long-dated UK government bonds 

generated by the same model, both assessed from year 20. 

Scenarios modelled 

In this paper we have modelled the following asset allocation, which we 

understand corresponds to the Fund’s current long-term strategy: 

104



 

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund 

 

May 2019 9 

 

Results 

The following table shows the best estimate and prudent estimate return for the 

current strategy, based on projections from year 20 to 40.  For comparison, 

the yield on UK government bonds in 20 years’ time is expected to be above its 

current level, with a best estimate of around 4% p.a. (compared to 1.5% as at 

31 March 2019).  The full distribution of returns for each investment strategy is 

shown in the chart in Appendix 2 

 

Note that the nominal values in the above table are from year 20, and therefore 

are not intended to be applied to current market conditions. 

 

As described above, to set the 2019 valuation discount rate assumption we 

need to express these prudent expected returns as a margin above the risk-free 

rate.  This is not as simple as subtracting the best-estimate gilt yield at year 20 

(around 4% p.a.) from the prudent returns above, due to the interaction 

between gilt yields and portfolio returns in the model.  Instead, we analyse the 

margins achieved by each portfolio over years 20 to 40 and calculate the 

likelihood of achieving three possible values: 

Relative to CPI as at 31 March 2019 (2.3%) these margins are +1.0%, 1.2% and 1.4% p.a. 

Based on a likelihood of success of 66%, the current strategy can support all of 

the margins modelled. 

Comparison with 2016 valuation 

The margin used in the discount rate at the 2016 valuation was 1.8% p.a..  This 

assumption was selected based on a model and analytic principles similar to 

that used in this paper.  The results are shown in the table below for 

comparison: 

# AOA Asset split 

(growth/matching) 

Probability of 

success 

1 1.6% Current (80/20) 73% 

2 1.8% Current (80/20) 71% 

3 2.0% Current (80/20) 69% 

 

Further detail can be found in our paper “2016 valuation – Asset 

Outperformance Assumption (AOA)” dated 15 December 2015. 

% allocation Current strategy

UK equities 8%

Overseas equities 36%

Diversified Growth 4.5%

Infrastructure (equity) 9%

Private equity 4%

Total growth assets 61.5%

Index-linked gilts 7.5%

Total protection assets 7.5%

Multi asset credit 4%

Private lending 10%

Emerging Market Debt 2.5%

Fund of hedge funds 4.5%

Property 10%

Total income generating assets 31.0%

Grand total 100%

% p.a.

Best estimate 

return

Prudent return 

(66%)

Current strategy 8.0% 6.7%

1.8% 2.0% 2.2%

Current strategy 78% 75% 72%

Likelihood of achieving 

this margin from year 20

Margin above risk-free rate (% p.a.)

105



 

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund 

 

May 2019 10 

Since the 2016 analysis was carried out, the assumptions in the model used to 

generate future investment returns have been updated to reflect changes in 

long term market expectations.  The analysis has also been updated to provide 

further insight into the distribution of returns. 

Other considerations 

Impact of altering the discount rate 

Although the quantitative part of our analysis is focussed on the likelihood of 

success, it is important to consider other factors when choosing the discount 

rate.  In practice any investment portfolio, especially one containing risky 

assets, will produce a range of returns which are sometimes lower than 

required according to the discount rate. 

If the Fund was to choose a higher discount rate, it would be opting to target a 

less prudent funding position. Therefore: 

• The Fund would gradually hold less money than it otherwise would 

have (all other things being equal). 

• Long term asset liability modelling would show an increased likelihood of 

success under the same contribution strategies (as the funding target is 

lower so it will cost less to get there). 

• For employers not eligible for stabilisation, contributions would be set at a 

lower level as the target funding position is less prudent (and therefore 

lower). 

• There is less chance of investment performance achieving this return 

each and every year in the future. If there is any investment 

underperformance (relative to expectations), all other things being equal, 

higher than expected contributions would be required to compensate for 

the lost return. 

• Where employers leave the Fund and their cessation valuation is 

calculated on an ongoing basis (e.g. some contractors), using a higher 

discount rate will result in less money being retained in the Fund to pay 

for their members’ benefits in future.  This increases the risk that the 

retained funds turn out to be insufficient to pay for these benefits, and 

therefore increases the risk that any guarantor (usually the awarding 

authority) will be required to make up a future shortfall.  This also 

increases the risk of an ‘exit credit’ payment being made to the ceasing 

employer. 

• New academy schools may receive a greater asset share (in % terms) on 

conversion, as the ceding council will hold back a smaller share of assets 

to fully-fund its deferred and pensioner members.  This increases the risk 

that the ceding council will need to make additional contributions in future 

should the retained assets turn out to be insufficient. 

Impact on past service funding position 

By adding the risk-free rate margin to a suitable estimate of the ‘risk-free’ 

interest rate, it can be used to set a discount rate assumption at any date.  The 

same principle of adjusting market related rates by an appropriate amount can 

be used with the other financial assumptions, i.e. applying a fixed margin to the 

market-derived inflation expectation (for RPI) to get the pension increase (CPI) 

and salary increase assumptions.  We can therefore calculate the market-

related value of the past service liabilities on any date, and compare it to the 

market value of the Fund’s assets on the same day.  This provides a high level 

comparison of today’s funding position against the funding target (the ‘funding 

level’). 

It is important to note that the link between the current funding level and the 

contribution rate is weaker under the risk-based approach (discussed in section 

2) than under the traditional approach using a single set of assumptions.  The 

funding level is therefore less significant as a driver of employer contributions 

than it used to be. 

106



 

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund 

 

May 2019 11 

Furthermore, for comparison purposes, all LGPS funds are likely to be required 

by the Scheme Advisory Board to report their 2019 valuation funding position 

on a like-for-like basis i.e. using the same actuarial assumptions.  This will 

reduce the focus, and therefore the importance attached at a national level, 

from the current funding position on the Fund’s own funding basis. 

Next steps 

For the purpose of the 2019 valuation, it is important to set a discount rate that 

reflects likely future experience, with an allowance for prudence.  The Fund 

should adopt an assumption that is appropriate based on the current 

investment strategy, and which will remain appropriate given expected possible 

future changes to the strategy.  The assumption should also reflect the level of 

prudence the Fund wishes to build into funding plans. 

Any concern about the resulting level of employer contribution rates should be 

addressed by the Fund via consideration of the funding plan’s time horizon and 

likelihood of success, not through the choice of discount rate. 

I recommend that the contents of this paper are discussed before any decision 

is made.  Once a decision is made, the reasons for the choice should be 

documented for audit trail purposes and so that all stakeholders are informed. 

Any choice should be reviewed again at the next formal valuation. 

I have only considered the specific scenarios set out in this paper.  I can carry 

out further analysis in order to advise on the effect of alternative scenarios if 

required. 

 

107



 

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund 

 

May 2019 12 

Appendices

108



 

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund 

 

May 2019 13 

Appendix 1 – Model details 

I have used Hymans Robertson’s proprietary financial model, the Economic Scenario Service (“the ESS”) to project a range of possible outcomes for the future 

behaviour of asset returns and economic variables.  Some of the parameters of the ESS are dependent on current market conditions, while other more subjective 

parameters do not usually change.  The key subjective assumptions underlying the ESS are the average level and volatility of equity prices, bond yields, credit spreads 

and inflation.  The model is also affected by other more subtle effects, such as the correlations between asset classes. 

The following figures have been calculated using 5,000 simulations of the ESS, calibrated using market data as at 31 March 2019.  All returns are shown net of fees.  

Percentiles refer to percentiles of the 5,000 simulations and are the annualised total returns over 5, 10 and 20 years, except for the yields which refer to the simulated 

yields at that time horizon.   

 

The current calibration of the model indicates that a period of outward yield movement is expected.  For example, over the next 20 years our model expects the 17 year 

maturity annualised real (nominal) interest rate to rise from -2.1% (1.5%) to 0.8% (4.0%). 

109



 

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund 

 

May 2019 14 

Appendix 2 – Portfolio returns 

Time 20 to 40 years 

The chart below shows the distribution of returns for year 20 to 40 based on the investment strategy outlined in section 3.  The vertical axis in each case is the 

proportion of simulated outcomes achieving the return on the horizontal axis.  The best estimate return is generally at the peak of the distribution, with an equal number 

of outcomes above and below it.  The prudent return lies to the left of this, so that a majority (66%) of outcomes are above it. 

 

The current strategy includes a substantial allocation to riskier growth assets and hence produces a wide range of expected returns.  In general, the lower the growth 
asset allocation, the more predictable the returns so the narrower the distribution.  

110



 

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund 

 

May 2019 15 

Time 0 to 20 years 

The chart below shows the distribution of returns for year 0 to 20 based on the investment strategy outlined in section 3. For comparison, the yield on long-dated UK 

Government bonds at the same date as the projection (31 March 2019) is 1.5% p.a..  These returns will be reflected in the risk based approach to contribution rate 

setting used at the 2019 valuation.  These charts are provided for information purposes only. 

 

111



 

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund 

 

May 2019 16 

Appendix 3 – Professional Notes 

Reliances and limitations 

The distributions of outcomes depend significantly on the Economic Scenario Service (ESS), our (proprietary) stochastic asset model. This type of model is known as 

an economic scenario generator and uses probability distributions to project a range of possible outcomes for the future behaviour of asset returns and economic 

variables. Some of the parameters of the model are dependent on the current state of financial markets and are updated each month (for example, the current level of 

equity market volatility) while other more subjective parameters do not change with different calibrations of the model.  Key subjective assumptions are the average 

excess equity return over risk free assets, the volatility of equity returns and the level and volatility of yields, credit spreads, inflation and expected (breakeven) inflation, 

which affect the projected liability and bond returns. The output of the model is also affected by other more subtle effects, such as the correlations between economic 

and financial variables.  Our expectation (i.e. the average outcome) is that long term real interest rates will gradually rise from their current low levels. The mean 

reversion in yields also affects expected bond returns.  

While the model allows for the possibility of scenarios that would be extreme by historical standards, including very significant downturns in equity markets, large 

systemic and structural dislocations are not captured by the model. Such events are unknowable in effect, magnitude and nature, meaning that the most extreme 

possibilities are not necessarily captured within the distributions of results.  Given the context of this modelling, we have not undertaken any sensitivity analysis to 

assess how different the results might be with alternative calibrations of the economic scenario generator. 

The returns presented here are time weighted returns over the specified period and are unaffected by the timing of any contributions received or pensions paid over that 

period. Such returns are, in general, a poor estimator of money weighted returns, which are sensitive to the timing of cashflows. 

The probability that a specific asset return will be exceeded will not usually equate to the probability that some funding plan based on this return will be sufficient to 

meet all the pension payments. Complex interactions between the assets, yields and cashflow timings can mean that the two probabilities are materially different, 

especially for more mature schemes.  We would be happy to provide fuller information about the scenario generator, and the sensitivities of the results to some of the 

parameters, on request. 

We have not explicitly considered the impact on future economic returns and conditions arising from resource and environment issues.  However, the stochastic 

approach means that an allowance for negative future scenarios is in effect built in to the model details as per Appendix 1. 

Technical Actuarial Standards 

Technical Actuarial Standards (TASs) are issued by the Financial Reporting Council and set standards for certain items of actuarial work, including the information and 

advice contained in this report.  TAS 100 (Principles for Technical Actuarial Work) and TAS 300 (Pensions) are applicable in relation to this report and have been 

complied with where material. 

112



 

 

 

Leicestershire County Council 

Pension Fund 
2019 Valuation: Salary growth assumption 

May 2019 

 

 

 

 

Richard Warden 

 

Fellow of the Institute & Faculty of Actuaries 

For and on behalf of Hymans Robertson LLP 

 

  

113

ctuohy_2
Typewritten Text
Appendix 2



 

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund 

 

May 2019 4 

1 Contents 

2019 Valuation: Salary growth assumption Page 

 

1 Contents 4 
2 Introduction 4 
3 Background 5 
4 2019 salary growth considerations 6 
5 Pay scenarios modelled 8 
6 Results and conclusion 9 
Appendix 1 – Data and assumptions 11 
Appendix 2 – Professional Notes 11 

 

 

2 Introduction 

This paper has been commissioned by and is addressed to Leicestershire 

County Council in its capacity as Administering Authority to the 

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund (“the Fund”). It has been 

prepared in my capacity as an Actuary to the Fund. 

The next actuarial valuation of the Fund takes place as at 31 March 2019. 

This paper has been prepared to facilitate discussions on funding strategy 

for the 2019 valuation. In particular, this paper summarises the factors 

influencing the choice of salary growth assumption at the 2019 valuation. 

This paper has been prepared solely for the use of the Administering Authority 

to the Fund, to assist in setting the salary growth assumption at the 2019 formal 

valuation.  This document should not be released or otherwise disclosed to any 

third party without our prior consent, in which case it should be released in its 

entirety.  Hymans Robertson LLP accepts no liability to any other party, or for 

any other use, unless we have expressly accepted such liability. 

114



 

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund 

 

May 2019 5 

3 Background  

One of the key actuarial assumptions used to estimate the cost of benefits is 

that relating to future salary growth.  This assumption comes in two parts; 

• Annual ‘inflationary’ salary awards, historically set in order for employees’ 

pay to at least keep up with the cost of living 

• Promotional salary awards or those awarded as part of a defined salary 

scale. 

This paper considers the first element of the salary growth assumption only.  

The scale used to determine promotional salary awards will be determined as 

part of the demographic analysis conducted as part of the 2019 valuation.  

At the 2016 valuation, the assumption for ‘inflationary’ increases needed to take 

into account: 

1 A large proportion of the Fund’s overall past service liabilities were still 

linked to final salary i.e. those benefits accrued before 31 March 2014; 

and 

2 The Government’s 2015 Summer Budget announced that funding would 

only be provided to meet public sector salary increases of 1% p.a. up to 

March 2020.  

Therefore the 2016 valuation salary increase was based on an underlying 

assumption of short term restraint (1% p.a.) to 31 March 2020, followed by 

long-term increases in line with Retail Prices Index (RPI) inflation plus 1% p.a..  

The single equivalent rate based on these assumptions, allowing for the 

expected run-off of final salary liabilities, was RPI% p.a..  Please see our report 

on the 2016 pay growth assumption, dated 30 November 2015, for further 

details. 

It is good governance to review all actuarial assumptions as part of each 

triennial valuation to ensure they reflect current expectations of the future.   

115



 

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund 

 

May 2019 6 

4 2019 salary growth considerations 

Run-off of final salary liabilities 

Future pensions in respect of service accrued in the Fund up to 31 March 2014 

will be determined based on members’ eventual final pay at retirement (or 

earlier withdrawal).  Benefits accrued from 1 April 2014 are based on the 

members’ pay over each year of accrual and future Consumer Prices Index 

(CPI) increases (unless protected by the Final Salary underpin).  When 

considering the relevance of future pay growth on the Fund’s past service 

liabilities, only benefits accrued up to 31 March 2014 (“final salary benefits”) 

need be considered. 

The chart below shows the expected run-off of the Fund’s pre-2014 active 

member liabilities from the Fund’s 2016 valuation analysis i.e. the proportion of 

final salary liabilities remaining at each future year. The chart starts at 100% 

and falls eventually to zero as current active members with final salary benefits 

leave active status (due to retirement, withdrawal or death). 

 

The declining proportion of active liabilities with a link to salary increases 

means that the importance of the salary growth assumption decreases over 

time, at least as far as the liability value is concerned.  By 2019, around half of 

the pre-2014 active liability will no longer be active. Furthermore, from 2019 

onwards the run-off becomes more gradual. 

The chart below shows the run off from 2019 onwards based on the 2016 

valuation membership data. 

The more gradual run-off means that the importance of short term salary growth 

expectation is less than it was at 2016. Therefore, whilst it is important to allow 

for any short term restraint in the assumption adopted at the 2019 valuation, 

more weight should be placed on longer term pay expectations compared to the 

2016 valuation. 

 

 

116



 

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund 

 

May 2019 7 

Future pay progression 

Public sector pay increases were suppressed for many years following the 

2008-09 economic crisis and the introduction of austerity policies, and this 

restraint had been expected to continue until at least 2020.  Until 2017, central 

government operated a 1% cap on pay which was broadly mirrored in local 

government.  However, with higher inflation and low unemployment the 

pressure to increase wages has risen markedly in recent years, particularly as 

public sector pay lagged behind the private sector.  The government 

announced in July 20181 that it was awarding the highest pay increases in ten 

years to a range of public sector workers including teachers, NHS workers and 

the armed forces, perhaps signalling a return to ‘normal’ pay increases with a 

closer link to price inflation. 

However, pay increases in local government are determined by local councils 

rather than central government, and the effects of austerity are still being felt in 

strained local authority budgets.  It may therefore be reasonable to expect 

some continued restraint in the short term albeit higher than the 1% previously 

assumed. 

As for long term pay increases, similar arguments apply now as at the previous 

valuation in 2016.  In the long term, increases are likely to fall between two 

extremes: 

• Pay is increased substantially from current levels in order for public 

sector pay to ‘catch-up’ with historic averages (and the private sector). 

• Continued low real pay rises reflecting, for example, higher inflation, 

economic uncertainty, outsourcing to private sector contractors, etc. 

                                                      
1 BBC News, Public sector workers: Pay rises announced for a million people, 24 July 2018 

In practice, long term public sector salary growth beyond 2020 will depend on a 

variety of factors and it is extremely difficult to predict with any certainty what it 

is likely to be.  Some possible scenarios are discussed in section 5. 

117

https://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-44933009


 

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund 

 

May 2019 8 

5 Pay scenarios modelled 

In order to help discussions around the setting of an ‘inflationary’ salary growth 

assumption at the 2019 valuation, we have considered three scenarios.  Note 

that the salary growth assumption should be a best estimate assumption.  

Prudence in funding plans is explicitly allowed for elsewhere: 

1 The first scenario has a short term rate of 2.5% pay growth to 2020 and 

CPI increases per annum thereafter.  

2 As per 1, but allowing for a long term assumption of CPI + 0.5% p.a. 

3 As per 1, but allowing for a long term assumption of CPI + 1% p.a. 

Scenarios 2 and 3 provide some understanding of the sensitivity to changes in 

the longer term assumption to aid discussions around the choice of suitable 

assumption.  

In all cases, we have calculated a single equivalent salary growth assumption 

which allows for the projected run-off of the final salary linked past service 

liabilities.  For each scenario, the equivalent flat assumption gives the same 

overall revaluation over the period when any pre-2014 benefits are expected to 

remain linked to salary growth (approximately 40 years).  This is the same 

approach as used when setting the assumption for the 2016 valuation. 

Summary of scenarios 

The scenarios modelled can be summarised as follows: 

 

*Based on market conditions as at 31 March 2019. See Appendix 1 for further 

details.  CPI at 31 March 2019 is 2.3% p.a. 

% p.a. Scenario 1 Scenario 2 Scenario 3

Short term until 2020 2020 2020

Short term rate 2.5% 2.5% 2.5%

Long term rate CPI CPI plus 0.5% CPI plus 1.0%

Nominal long term rate* 2.3% 2.8% 3.3%

118



 

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund 

 

May 2019 9 

6 Results and conclusion 

Based on the run-off of final salary liabilities in section 4 and the scenarios 

described in section 5, we have calculated the following equivalent flat rate 

assumptions for each scenario.   

The results also show approximately what impact the new assumption will have 

at the 2019 valuation, by showing the approximate impact on the funding 

position.  This allows for the run-off of final salary liabilities as well as the 

change in salary growth assumption, but makes no other allowances (e.g. for 

changes in market conditions).  The actual impact at the 2019 valuation will 

depend on the actual membership data and assumptions at 31 March 2019. 

*compared to 2016 valuation assumption of RPI p.a.(equivalent to CPI plus 1% 

p.a.). 

At the 2016 valuation the salary growth assumption was changed significantly 

to reflect the closure of the final salary scheme and the long period of expected 

pay restraint.  This change led to a relatively large improvement in the funding 

position at the 2016 valuation due to the amount of final salary linked liabilities. 

 

 

Relative to the change between 2013 and 2016, the impact on the overall whole 

fund funding position in 2019 under any of the scenarios will be lower.  

However, for employers with large proportions of active members and/or large 

proportions of final salary linked liabilities, the impact of any change to the 

assumption will be greater than shown above. 

Consideration of the salary growth assumption should go beyond the impact on 

the past service liability value. The salary growth assumption is also an 

important factor in estimating the size of future payroll and contributions.  Given 

the increased gearing (ratio of accrued benefits relative to payroll) in the LGPS, 

a realistic estimate of the future payroll is more important to help assess the 

most appropriate contribution and investment strategy for the Fund and its 

participating employers. 

Assumption for 2019 valuation 

For the purpose of the 2019 valuation it is important to set a future pay growth 

assumption that reflects likely future experience.  Each scenario presented in 

this paper is plausible and we attach no probability to them. 

My recommendation is that the long term single pay growth assumption is 

discussed with Fund officers in the first place. I would be comfortable in 

adopting any of the above three scenarios, provided the eventual rate was 

realistic in the view of those closest to the Fund employers.  Any such agreed 

position would then be presented to the Pensions Committee for formal 

approval. 

I have only considered three specific scenarios in this paper.  I can carry out 

further analysis in order to advise on the effect of alternative scenarios if 

required. 

% p.a. Scenario 1 Scenario 2 Scenario 3

Short term until 2020 2020 2020

Short term rate 2.5% 2.5% 2.5%

Long term rate CPI CPI plus 0.5% CPI plus 1.0%

Flat rate assumption CPI CPI plus 0.5% CPI plus 0.9%

Approximate change to 

2019 funding level*
2% 1% 0%

119



 

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund 

 

May 2019 10 

Appendices

120



 

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund 

 

May 2019 11 

Appendix 1 – Data and assumptions 

Summary of membership data 

The data underlying the results in this paper is a subset of the data used for the 

2016 formal valuation.  A summary is shown below, and further details can be 

found in the 2016 formal valuation report. 

 

The figures above are based only on those members who had any pre-2014 

service at the 2016 valuation. Members who joined after 31 March 2014 and 

who have no final salary benefits are excluded from the analysis. 

Assumptions 

The liability charts shown in this paper are as at 31 March 2016 and use the 

assumptions adopted for the 2016 formal valuation. Please see the formal 

valuation report dated March 2017 for further details. 

Projections of future pay growth were based on the following assumptions, 

derived in the same manner as at the 2016 formal valuation but updated for 

market conditions as at 31 March 2019: 

 

Appendix 2 – Professional Notes 

Reliances and limitations 

I have based my calculations on the data and assumptions used for the 

purposes of the 2016 formal valuation.  For further details please see the 2016 

formal valuation report, dated March 2017. 

The following limitations apply in relation to this advice; 

• No allowance has been made in this analysis for service accrued from 1 

April 2014 for members aged 55 or over on 1 April 2012 and therefore 

entitled to the final salary benefit underpin. Due to the nature of these 

liabilities, (these members are expected to have left active service prior to 

2022) this is expected to have only a negligible impact on the shape of 

the active liability run-off and the outcomes derived from this analysis. 

• No allowance has been made in the analysis for the possible impact of 

the recent McCloud judgement.  At this stage it is too early to say what 

this impact will be and how it will be felt. 

• No allowance is made in the analysis for early retirements (except as 

already allowed for in the 2016 retirement age pattern), ill health 

retirements or any other pre-retirement exits such as death or refund of 

contributions. 

• The analysis is based on the withdrawal assumptions set out in the 2016 

formal valuation report. Although these assumptions are likely to be 

revised at the 2019 valuation, I do not expect this to have a material 

impact on the outcomes from this analysis. 

• The analysis is based on membership data from the 2016 valuation, 

which was validated at the time.  If there are any material errors or 

omissions in the data they could affect the results, particularly if they 

affected how quickly final salary benefits were expected to run off. 

Number of active members

Total full-time equivalent salaries (£000)

Total final salary pensions (£000)

31 March 2016

24,989

£572,826

£75,950

Financial assumptions (% p.a.)

RPI inflation

Gap between RPI and CPI inflation

CPI inflation/Deferred revaluation

(1.0%)

2.3%

31 March 2019

3.3%

121



 

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund 

 

May 2019 12 

• The impact on the funding level is approximate and allows only for the 

change in salary growth assumption and the expected run-off of final 

salary liabilities by 2019.  The actual financial impact of any change in 

the assumption, measured at the 2019 valuation, may be higher or lower 

than given above, depending on finalised active membership details and 

market conditions at 2019. 

Technical Actuarial Standards 

The following Technical Actuarial Standards2 are applicable in relation to this 

report and have been complied with where material: 

• TAS 100 

• TAS 300 

This report should be read along with the Fund’s 2016 formal valuation report, 

dated March 2017. 

 

                                                      

2 Technical Actuarial Standards (TASs) are issued by the Financial Reporting Council and set standards for 

certain items of actuarial work, including the information and advice contained in this report. 

 

122



 

 

  

 
LOCAL PENSION COMMITTEE  

 
5 JULY 2019  

 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES 

 
CONSULTATION – LOCAL VALUATION CYCLE AND MANAGEMENT OF 

EMPLOYER RISK  
 
 
Purpose of the Report  
 

1. The purpose of this report is to update the Local Pension Committee on the 
potential implications of the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local 
Government (MHCLG) consultation “LGPS: Changes to the local valuation 
cycle and the management of employer risk policy”. 

 
 Background 
 
2. In May 2019 MHCLG started a 12 week consultation, which closes on 31 July 

2019. The consultation covers the following areas: 
• Extension from the current 3 year to a 4-year valuation cycle 
• Mitigation to the risks of lengthening the valuation cycle 
• Flexibility on exit payments to reduce risk of employer default 
• proposals for further policy changes to exit credits 
• proposals for changes to the employers required to offer local government 

pension scheme membership 
 
The fund’s response is attached as Appendix A.  

 
3. Changes to the LGPS Valuation Cycle  
 

Every three years the triennial pension scheme valuation takes place. The 
Fund’s assets and liabilities are assessed on the 31 March 2019 and the 
overall funding position is calculated. Each of the Fund’s employer 
contributions rates are calculated and the rates set for three years, 1 April 
2020 to 31 March 2023. 

 
There is a proposal that the LGPS scheme valuation should be moved from 
the current triennial to a quadrennial cycle in line with other public service 
scheme valuations. This could also influence the timing of local fund 
valuations. Discussions with MHCLG and actuarial advisers will take place 
shortly to consider the implications of this change.  
 

123 Agenda Item 14



 

 

Providing the ability to undertake interim valuations is implemented correctly, 
i.e. scheme employers cannot manipulate contribution rates, the Fund is 
supportive of the proposals. 

 
4.  Management of Employer Risk 
 

The consultation proposes some changes to manging employer risk to reduce 
the risk of employers becoming insolvent when they leave the scheme 
 
The consultation questions whether Funds should have the flexibility to 
spread deficit payments, which are made on a full but-out basis, that currently 
become due when the last active member leaves the scheme. 
 
The Fund supports the proposal for regulation changes to allow flexibility on 
spreading repayments from exiting employers. Practically this already exists 
so the regulations changes are welcome. 
 
The implications in not allowing this could be very significant for exiting 
employers. If an exiting employer was financially unstable, being forced to 
make payment of the exit termination valuation could bankrupt the employer. 
This debt would then fall on the remaining scheme employers. Therefore, 
spreading payment over a period of months or years to avoid bankruptcy 
seems eminently sensible. 
 

5. Exit Credits  
 

The consultation questions if the administering authority should take into 
account a scheme employers exposure to risk in calculating the value of an 
exit credit. This follows changes introduced in May 2018 that have had some 
unintended consequences. 
 
In response to the consultation the Fund propose the original employer (the 
letting employer) and the contractor, at the point of transfer, agree what will 
happen to any exit payment when the contract ends. If this takes place, the 
level of concern reduces but the Fund is in agreement that the administering 
authority should take into account of the employers’ exposure to risk when 
calculating the exit credit.     
 
The Fund fully supports not making payment of surpluses back to the 
contractor as standard and believes all payments should be calculated on a 
full buy out basis. 
 
The implications of not making changes to the scheme rules means currently 
exiting contractors in surplus receive payment back of the amount.  
 

6. Employers Required to offer LGPS Membership 
 

The consultation questions if Further Education corporations, sixth form 
college corporations and higher education corporations should be able to 
close the LGPS to new employees. 

124



 

 

 
The Fund recognises the cost of the LGPS scheme for some employers is 
becoming an increasing concern and why the chance for some employers not 
to offer the scheme to new members is attractive. 
 
However, the implications of allowing this would be to create a more mature 
fund with no active members replacing the leavers. This will make employer 
contributions more sensitive to shortfalls. Without new member contributions 
the mature fund will have a negative cash flow meaning that investment 
returns play a diminishing role in reducing any shortfall.  
 
This element of the consultation has arisen due to changes that have taken 
place in the further education and higher education sectors, in recent years. In 
the consultation the Government stresses the financial independence of these 
bodies: 
 

“Reflecting the independent, non-public sector status, of further education, 
sixth form colleges, and the autonomous, non-public sector status of 
higher education corporations, these bodies are responsible for 
determining their own business models and for ensuring that their 
financial positions are sound.” 

  
The consultation goes further reinforcing the risk to other scheme employers: 
 

“The costs associated with meeting the liabilities of a failed organisation 
could therefore fall back on local authorities and other scheme employers, 
meaning there may be a direct impact on the finances of public bodies in 
a particular area if an organisation fails.” 

   
  Government is clearly indicating that they will not rescue these bodies if they 

were to become financially distressed, this will need to be taken into account 
in the actuarial valuation that is currently taking place. 

 
Recommendation 

 
7.  It is recommended that the Local Pension Committee notes the consultation 

response in the appendix. 
 
 The consultation can be found on the following link; 
 
 https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/

attachment_data/file/800321/LGPS_valuation_cycle_reform_consultation.pdf 
 
  Appendix 
 
 Response to MHCLG consultation 
 

Equality and Human Rights Implications 
 
None specific 

125

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/800321/LGPS_valuation_cycle_reform_consultation.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/800321/LGPS_valuation_cycle_reform_consultation.pdf


 

 

 
Officers to Contact 
 
Mr C Tambini, Director of Corporate Resources 
Tel: 0116 305 6199 Email: Chris.Tambini@leics.gov.uk 
 
Mr D Keegan, Assistant Director Strategic Finance and Property 
Tel: 0116 305 7668 Email: Declan.Keegan@leics.gov.uk 
 
Mr I Howe, Pensions Manager 
Tel: 0116 305 6945 Email: Ian.howe@leics.gov.uk 
 
 
      

126

mailto:Chris.Tambini@leics.gov.uk
mailto:Declan.Keegan@leics.gov.uk
mailto:Ian.howe@leics.gov.uk


 

Corporate Resources 
 

Leicestershire County Council, County Hall, Glenfield, Leicestershire LE3 8RB  
Email: resources@leics.gov.uk 
 
Chris Tambini, Director of Corporate Resources 
 

www.leics.gov.uk 

LGF Reform and Pensions Team 
Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local 
Government 
2nd Floor, Fry Building 
2 Marsham Street 
London 
SW1P 4DF  

Date: 18 June 2019 
My Ref: Pen/IH/Leics LGPS 
Your Ref:  
Contact: Ian Howe 
Phone: 0116 3056945 
Fax:  
Email: ian.howe@leics.gov.uk 

 
 
Dear Sirs   
 
Local Government Pension Scheme; Changes to the Local Valuation Cycle and 
Management of Employer Risk 
Policy Consultation  

 

The reply is from the Leicestershire Local Government Pension Fund.  

Question 1 – As the Government has brought the LGPS scheme valuation onto the same 
quadrennial cycle as the other public service schemes, do you agree that LGPS fund 
valuations should also move from a triennial to a quadrennial valuation cycle?  
 
Answer 1 – Yes, the Leicestershire Fund agrees LGPS fund valuations should move to 
quadrennial valuation cycles to align with the national quadrennial cycle. 
 
 
Question 2 - Are there any other risks or matters you think need to be considered, in 
addition to those identified above, before moving funds to a quadrennial cycle?  
 
Answer 2 – The Leicestershire Fund does not feel there are other matters that need to be 
considered before moving to a quadrennial cycle. However, the Fund does question 
whether the outcome of the McCloud case could influence the valuation results as at 31 
March 2019 and may influence the need for a further valuation anyway. 
 
 
Question 3 - Do you agree the local fund valuation should be carried out at the same date 
as the scheme valuation? 
 
Answer 3 – Yes, the Leicestershire Fund agrees local fund valuations should be carried out 
at the same date as the scheme valuation.  
  

Appendix 

127



 

Corporate Resources 
 

Leicestershire County Council, County Hall, Glenfield, Leicestershire LE3 8RB  
Email: resources@leics.gov.uk 
 
Chris Tambini, Director of Corporate Resources 
 

www.leics.gov.uk 

Question 4 - Do you agree with our preferred approach to transition to a new LGPS 
valuation cycle?  
 
Answer 4 – The Leicestershire Fund prefers option B. This being; for the next fund 
valuation to complete as anticipated, using data as at 31 March 2019. Giving rates and 
adjustment certificates for the coming three years (i.e. from 1 April 2020 – 31 March 
2023). The following valuation would be done with fund data as at 31 March 2022 but 
giving new rates and adjustment certificates for only two years. Further fund valuations 
would be done using data as at 31 March 2024 and every four years thereafter. The 
Leicestershire Fund believes this provides continuity and potentially gives LGPS funds 
greater certainty than a five-year cycle (as detailed in option A).  
 
 
Question 5 - Do you agree that funds should have the power to carry out an interim 
valuation in addition to the normal valuation cycle?  
 
Answer 5 – Generally the Leicestershire Fund does not feel Funds should have the power 
to carry out interim valuations in additional to the normal valuation cycle, however the 
fund does recognise it could help with employer specific issues and unforeseen events 
impacting on the entire fund. 
 
 
That said, Fund employers need certainty with financial planning and the valuation 
process currently provides this. The move from three years to four years increases this 
certainty. To introduce interim valuations removes some of the certainty employers have 
in knowing their employer rates in advance. It also means funds could word their Funding 
Strategy Statements subtly to react to positive changes in financial markets, using these 
opportunities to run interim valuations, to potentially reduce their employer rates when 
Pension Fund funding should be looked at with a longer term view. Also, administration 
and actuarial costs should be considered. Valuation years are costlier to administer and 
to introduce interim valuations adds additional unnecessary administrative cost.  
 
However, the Leicestershire Fund does appreciate there may be need for individual 
employer rates to be reassessed outside of the valuation period. The Fund believes this is 
sensible but only in exceptional circumstances. Those circumstances can be detailed in 
each Fund’s Funding Strategy Statement. In these cases, the Fund feels all the work 
relating to this should be charged to that employer. 
 

128



 

Corporate Resources 
 

Leicestershire County Council, County Hall, Glenfield, Leicestershire LE3 8RB  
Email: resources@leics.gov.uk 
 
Chris Tambini, Director of Corporate Resources 
 

www.leics.gov.uk 

The Leicestershire Fund has concern that by allowing interim valuations some Funds will 
do this and others will not. This could create unease among employers, some who are 
already in multiple Funds. 
 
Requests from the Secretary of State should only be necessary if exceptional 
circumstances lead to a change in employer contribution rate supported by the Actuary.  
 
 
Question 6 - Do you agree with the safeguards proposed?  
 
Answer 6 – Yes, the Leicestershire Fund feels by having this detailed in the Funding 
Strategy Statement and in exceptional circumstance being able to apply to the Secretary 
of State provides sufficient safeguards.  
 
The Leicestershire Fund stresses it must be clear employers cannot dictate when this 
process takes place.  
 
 
Question 7 – Do you agree with the proposed changes to allow a more flexible review of 
employer contributions between valuations?  
 
Answer 7 – The Leicestershire Fund generally supports the flexibility to review certain 
employer contributions between valuations but has some concerns with this.  
 
The Leicestershire Fund agrees employers should be grouped and only certain employers 
would be able to request this. However, this should only be used in exceptional 
circumstances and it should not become the norm. The Funding Strategy Statement must 
be very explicit in confirming when this can be used otherwise there is a fear employers 
could request this regularly and the administration and actuarial work will increase 
significantly. The Leicestershire Funds supports the proposal that costs (administrative, 
legal, actuarial and other) can be recharged in full to the employer requesting the work. 
 
There is sense in allowing some employers to reduce their employer rates if they were 
able to make one off payments, increase their covenant or in some other exceptional 
circumstances, for example they are in surplus and the contract is due to end shortly. 
Again, the Funding Strategy Statement must be explicit in detailing when this could be 
used. 
 

129



 

Corporate Resources 
 

Leicestershire County Council, County Hall, Glenfield, Leicestershire LE3 8RB  
Email: resources@leics.gov.uk 
 
Chris Tambini, Director of Corporate Resources 
 

www.leics.gov.uk 

The Leicestershire Fund wishes to make it clear that the Fund is the decision maker and 
not the employer. Employers should only have ability to request a review of their 
contributions and they should pay for the work regardless of the outcome. 
 
The Leicestershire Fund feels there is a benefit to require additional security from existing 
employers where the Fund feels the covenant strength needs improving. 
 
Question 8 – Do you agree that Scheme Advisory Board guidance would be helpful and 
appropriate to provide some consistency of treatment for scheme employers between 
funds in using these new tools?  
 
Answer 8 – The Leicestershire Fund believes non-statutory guidance from the Scheme 
Advisory Board would be helpful and appropriate to provide some consistency of 
treatment for scheme employers between Funds. However, it is essential this is non-
binding as not all future circumstances will be envisaged at the time of writing the 
guidance. 
 
 
Question 9 – Are there other or additional areas on which guidance would be needed? 
Who do you think is best placed to offer that guidance?  
 
Answer 9 – The Leicestershire Fund feels there are no other areas of non-statutory 
guidance needed and Fund’s Actuaries are best placed to offer guidance to their 
individual Funds. 
 
 
Question 10 – Do you agree that funds should have the flexibility to spread repayments 
made on a full buy-out basis and do you consider that further protections are required?  
 
Answer 10 – The Leicestershire Fund supports the proposal for regulation changes to 
allow flexibility on spreading repayments from exiting employers, but these should still be 
calculated on a full buy out basis. However, the Leicestershire Fund feels this method 
should only be used in exceptional circumstances and it should certainly not be treated as 
the norm (e.g. if full payment was made immediately this would bankrupt the employer).  
 
Funds should be able to produce their own rules as to when they will allow this, and it 
should be detailed within their Funding Strategy Statement. Given this will only be used 
in exceptional circumstances we feel there should not be a maximum time limit for 

130



 

Corporate Resources 
 

Leicestershire County Council, County Hall, Glenfield, Leicestershire LE3 8RB  
Email: resources@leics.gov.uk 
 
Chris Tambini, Director of Corporate Resources 
 

www.leics.gov.uk 

making the repayment as this could have a detrimental impact on what is trying to be 
achieved.   
The Leicestershire Fund feels we should be able to charge the employer any additional 
costs incurred for this work, including actuarial and legal. 
 
 
Question 11 – Do you agree with the introduction of deferred employer status into LGPS? 
 
Answer 11 – the Leicestershire Fund supports the proposal for the introduction of 
deferred employer status (effectively what practically happens already, as detailed in 
question/answer 10) but feels this method should only be used in exceptional 
circumstances and it should certainly not be treated as the norm. 
 
Funds should be able to produce their own rules and the “relevant events” should not be 
too prescriptive and Funds should be able to detail this within their Funding Strategy 
Statement.  
 
The Fund is concerned by the increased administration, legal and actuarial work this 
could create and feels the additional costs incurred should be recharged back to the 
employer in full.   
  
 
Question 12 – Do you agree with the approach to deferred employer debt arrangements 
set out above? Are there ways in which it could be improved for the LGPS?  
 
Answer 12 – As in answer 11, the Leicestershire Fund agrees with the approach but feels 
Funds should be able to produce their own rules and the “relevant events” should not be 
too prescriptive. Funds should be able to detail this within their Funding Strategy 
Statement.  
 
The Leicestershire Fund does not believe there are other ways this can be improved for 
the LGPS. 
 
 
Question 13 – Do you agree with the above approach to what matters are most 
appropriate for regulation, which for statutory guidance and which for fund discretion? 
 
Answer 13 – The Leicestershire Fund feels the proposed approach to implementation of 
deferred employer debt arrangements should be available within LGPS regulations. 

131



 

Corporate Resources 
 

Leicestershire County Council, County Hall, Glenfield, Leicestershire LE3 8RB  
Email: resources@leics.gov.uk 
 
Chris Tambini, Director of Corporate Resources 
 

www.leics.gov.uk 

 
How this is then arranged should be for each Fund to decide within their Funding Strategy 
Statement. 
 
 
Question 14 – Do you agree options 2 and 3 should be available as an alternative to 
current rules on exit payments?  
 
Answer 14 – The Leicestershire Funds feels option 2 and 3 should be available but only 
used in exceptional circumstances and these should not be the norm.  
 
 
Question 15 – Do you consider that statutory or Scheme Advisory Board guidance will be 
needed and which type of guidance would be appropriate for which aspects of these 
proposals?  
 
Answer 15 – The Leicestershire Fund feels that statutory guidance is unnecessary and 
guidance from the SAB with work from Fund actuaries, written into the Fund Funding 
Strategy Statement is sufficient.  
 
 
Question 16 – Do you agree that we should amend the LGPS Regulations 2013 to provide 
that administering authorities must take into account a scheme employer’s exposure to 
risk in calculating the value of an exit credit?  
 
Answer 16 – The Leicestershire Fund propose the original employer (the letting 
employer) and the contractor at the point of transfer agree what will happen to any exit 
payment when the contract ends. The administering authority must take into account a 
scheme employer’s exposure to risk in calculating the value of an exit payment, but this 
becomes less of a concern if the letting employer and the contractor agree what happens 
to the exit payment at the offset. The Leicestershire Fund fully supports not making 
payment of any surplus back to the exiting contractor as standard and believes all exit 
payments should be calculated on a full buy out basis. The Leicestershire Fund prefers a 
regulation change to remove the right of any surplus back to the exiting contractor. 
 
The Leicestershire Fund questions how this can be backdated to the 14 May 2018, 
especially for cases where a surplus has already been paid back to the exiting contractor 
as the regulation change require.   
 

132



 

Corporate Resources 
 

Leicestershire County Council, County Hall, Glenfield, Leicestershire LE3 8RB  
Email: resources@leics.gov.uk 
 
Chris Tambini, Director of Corporate Resources 
 

www.leics.gov.uk 

Question 17 – Are there other factors that should be taken into account in considering a 
solution?  
 
Answer 17 – If the change in regulations is backdated to the 14 May 2018 the regulations 
must be explicit in stating any surplus payments made in good faith must be returned 
back to the Pension Fund by the exiting contractor. However, the Fund does have 
concern about the administration and legal issues this could create in chasing 
repayments. 
 
In addition, the Leicestershire Fund does not believe exit payments should be paid 
without also considering the full group of companies that the exiting contractor exists 
within. These should only be for other contracts within the Leicestershire Fund, not the 
wider LGPS Funds. Only when all letting employers in the Leicestershire Fund that have 
contracts with the exiting  contractor have confirmed they have no claim on the payment, 
should an exit payment be made.  
 
 
Question 18 – Do you agree with our proposed approach?  
 
Answer 18 – The Leicestershire Fund understands that funding for some employers is 
becoming an increasing concern and why the chance for some employers not to offer the 
LGPS to new members is attractive.  
 
Removal of the requirement will create a more mature fund with less active members 
replacing the leavers. This will make employer contributions more sensitive to shortfalls. 
Without new members contribution the mature fund will have a negative cash flow 
meaning that investment returns play a diminishing role in reducing any shortfall. 
 
Guidance should be introduced the puts the onus on the organisation that is opting out 
to provide a form of security and use some of the financial saving to increase the rate of 
deficit recovery. 
 
However, as stated above the Fund does appreciate the reason for this proposal. 
Therefore, if this is supported the Fund questions if other employers should also be 
considered in this arrangement, if other existing legislation does not preclude it. 
 
In terms of new admissions, the Leicestershire Fund questions how current eligible 
employees will be tracked in terms of having entitlement to the LGPS. Will legal 

133



 

Corporate Resources 
 

Leicestershire County Council, County Hall, Glenfield, Leicestershire LE3 8RB  
Email: resources@leics.gov.uk 
 
Chris Tambini, Director of Corporate Resources 
 

www.leics.gov.uk 

documents, similar to admission agreements, between these employers and the Funds be 
required.  
 
The proposal supports these members still having entitlement to the LGPS on compulsory 
transfer to a successor body following the merger of two corporations. 
 
 
Question 19 – Are you aware of any other equalities impacts or of any particular  
groups with protected characteristics who would be disadvantaged by the  
proposals contained in this consultation? 
 
Answer 19 – The Leicestershire Fund is not aware of any other equalities impacts or of 
any particular groups with protected characteristics who would be disadvantaged by the 
proposals contained in this consultation. However, the Fund does question why the 
proposal refers to each corporation having the flexibility to offer the LGPS to all or some 
eligible new employees. If this was allowed, does this not automatically create inequality?  
 

 
As requested in the consultation document, my details are as follows; 

 Ian Howe, Pensions Manager Leicestershire County Council. 

 Address; 

Pension Section, Leicestershire County Council, County Hall, Glenfield, 

Leicester, LE38RB 

Email – ian.howe@leics.gov.uk  

Tel 0116 3056945 

 

Yours sincerely  
 
 
Ian Howe 
Pensions Manager 
 
Cc Cllr Jennings – Chair of the Leicestershire Local Pension Board  

134

mailto:ian.howe@leics.gov.uk


 

 
 

LOCAL PENSION COMMITTEE – 5 JULY 2019   
 

JOINT REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES AND 
THE FUND’S INDEPENDENT INVESTMENT CONSULTANT 

 
PENSION FUND TRAINING POLICY 

 
Purpose of the Report 
 

1. The purpose of this report is to seek the Committee’s views on a draft Training 
Policy for members of the Local Pension Committee and Local Pension Board. 

  
Background 

 
2. The Pensions Regulator (TPR) identifies good governance as essential for a 

pension scheme to be successful. The following extract from TPR’s website 
explains the link to training: 
 

“There is a clear link between good governance and good fund performance 
so it is an essential part of effective scheme management. Without good 
governance, you are unlikely to achieve good outcomes for members. Good 
governance is about having motivated, knowledgeable and skilled people 
involved with running the scheme. It’s also about having the right structures 
and processes to enable effective, timely decisions and risk management, 
and to provide clear scheme objectives. It helps you to effectively oversee: 

 administration and record-keeping 

 investment and funding (in local government schemes) 

 communications with members 
 

You should spend time and resources getting your scheme governance right. 
This will help you to minimise risk and maximise opportunities for your 
scheme and your members. Investing in good governance is likely to save 
you in the long run, delivering good value for members and employers, and 
improving member outcomes.” 
 

3. TPR places specific responsibilities on Pension Board members, they must: 
 

 be conversant with (i.e. have a working knowledge of) your scheme rules 
and any document recording policy about the administration of your scheme 

 have knowledge and understanding of the law relating to pensions scheme 
rules and administration policies 

 You must have a working knowledge of your scheme rules and documented 
administration policies in enough detail to know where they are relevant to an 
issue understand and if necessary challenge any advice that you’re given. 

 

 
135 Agenda Item 15



 

4. This paper introduces a draft Training Policy for the Leicestershire County Council 
Pension Fund (attached as Appendix 1) for consideration by the Local Pension 
Committee and Local Pension Board.  
 

Next Steps 
 

5. A Training Needs Assessment questionnaire is attached as Appendix 2 to assess 
the current knowledge of individual members of the Pensions Committee and 
Pension Board. The Local Pension Board will consider the draft Policy and Training 
Needs Assessment questionnaire at its meeting on  The results of the 
questionnaire, together with the current priorities for the Fund, will be used to 
decide on the approach and topics of training offered. A final Training Policy will be 
presented to the Local Pension Committee and Board for approval later in 2019.  
 

6. Officers will, on a regular basis, inform Committee and Board members of relevant 
training opportunities, including:  

 

 Face-to-face sessions provided by external bodies e.g. Local Government 
Association, Pensions and Lifetime Savings Association.  

 Face-to-face sessions held internally, delivered by officers and/or the Fund’s 
providers e.g. actuary, investment advisers, investment managers. Sessions 
may be held jointly with both Committee and Board, or held separately, 
depending on priorities and availability. Some sessions may be held adjacent 
to scheduled meetings and may be linked to specific issues on the agenda.   

 Recommended reading material to keep up-to-date with pensions issues.  
 

7. In addition, induction training will be made available for all new members of the 
Committee and Board, including potential substitute members. 
 

8. The Pension Fund will meet reasonable expenses that are incurred by members of 
the Committee and Board that are incurred as a result of training, having regard to 
the Administering Authority’s Members’ Allowance Scheme.   

 
Recommendation 

 
9. It is recommended that the Local Pension Committee comment on the draft Training 

Policy.  
 

Equality and Human Rights Implications 
 

10. None. 
 
Appendix 
 
Appendix 1 - Training Policy for the Local Pension Committee and the Pension Board 
 
Appendix 2 -Training Needs Assessment 
 
Background Papers 

 
None 

 
 

136



 

Officers to Contact 
 
Mr C Tambini, Director of Corporate Resources 
Tel: 0116 305 6199 Email: Chris.Tambini@leics.gov.uk  
 
Clare Scott, Independent Investment Consultant 
 

137

mailto:Chris.Tambini@leics.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

1 

LEICESTERSHIRE PENSION FUND      APPENDIX 1 
 
TRAINING POLICY FOR THE LOCAL PENSION COMMITTEE AND PENSION BOARD 
 
APPROVED BY THE PENSION COMMITTEE ON [8 NOVEMBER 2019] AND BY THE PENSION 
BOARD ON [16 SEPTEMBER 2019] 
 
 
Introduction 
 
This policy demonstrates to stakeholders the Pension Committee’s and Pension Board’s 
recognition of the importance of knowledge and understanding of pension issues in the 
effective management of the Leicestershire Pension Fund (‘the Fund’). 
 
This policy, and regular training, is deemed necessary due to:  

 the distinction of fiduciary duty owed to the Fund, compared to members and 
officers usual business.  

 the complexity of pension and investment issues.  

 inevitable changes in the membership due to the election cycles. 

 the Fund being treated by investment managers as a professional client.  

 the potential consequences of not administering the Fund in an appropriate manner.   
 
This policy applies to all members and substitute members of the Pension Committee, the 
Pension Board and officers involved in the management of the Fund.  
 
 
Programme of Training 
 
An assessment of the training needs of the members of the Pension Committee and Pension 
Board and relevant officers will be undertaken on a periodic basis to inform the programme 
of training.  Individual training plans will be developed.   
 
All members (including substitutes) of the Pension Committee and Pension Board are 
required to undertake induction training before taking up their role.  
 
Members of the Pension Committee and Pension Board are strongly encouraged to 
complete the Pensions Regulator’s Toolkit for Public Service Schemes.  
 
All members (including substitutes) of the Pension Committee and Pension Board are 
encouraged to undertake training on a regular basis. The Fund’s programme of training will 
have regard to relevant codes of practice and guidelines issued by the Pensions Regulator 
and CIPFA, the training needs of the Committee and Board, and the Fund’s current 
priorities.  
 
  

139



 
 

2 

Key areas for training will include: 
- Governance, including legislation, role of the administering authority, stakeholders, 

Scheme Advisory Board, the Pensions Regulator and investment pooling; 
- Funding including the role of the actuary, the actuarial valuation, employer covenant 

and employers joining/exiting from the Fund; 
- Financial markets and investment strategy; 
- Pension’s administration.   

 
The depth of understanding required will vary depending upon the issues expected to be 
faced by the Fund and whether the individual is involved with the Pension Committee or the 
Pension Board. For Example Financial markets and investment strategy will be most relevant 
to Committee members and Pension’s administration matters most relevant to Board 
members. 
 
Monitoring and Reporting 
 
Officers will maintain records of attendance at training sessions, to support development of 
individual training plans.  
 
Members who attend external events will be required to report back to the 
Committee/Board (as relevant) to share their knowledge with other members.   
 
The Pension Committee and Pension Board will receive an update on progress made against 
this policy at least annually.   
 
A report on training will be included in the Fund’s annual report. 
 

140



 
 

3 

LEICESTERSHIRE CONTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND           APPENDIX 2 
 
TRAINING NEEDS ASSESSMENT FOR THE PENSION COMMITTEE AND PENSION BOARD 
 
 
The aim of this questionnaire is to assess the current understanding of individual members of the Pension Committee and Pension Board in a 
number of relevant areas. While members should have an understanding of all areas, the areas of knowledge most relevant to the Committee 
and Board are highlighted.  
 
The results will be collated used to prioritise training sessions.  Individual assessments will not be made public.  
 
 

 I have no 
knowledge 

I have some, but 
limited, 

knowledge 

I am reasonably 
familiar but 
additional 

training would 
be helpful 

I am fully 
conversant  

General Understanding – for both Committee and Board     

General pensions legislative framework in the UK, for example defined benefit, defined 
contribution, tax treatment and auto-enrolment 

    

The roles and powers of the UK Government in relation to the LGPS     

The main features of the LGPS legislation relating to benefits, administration and investment     

The role of the Council as administering authority in relation to the LGPS in relation to the Fund     

The stakeholders of the pension fund (including members and employers) and the nature of their 
interests 

    

Investment pooling and the role of LGPS Central     

The role of the LGPS Scheme Advisory Board and how it interacts with other bodies in the 
governance structure 

    

The roles and powers of the Pensions Regulator     

Awareness of the Pensions Regulator’s Code of Practice for public sector pension schemes     

141



 
 

4 

 I have no 
knowledge 

I have some, but 
limited, 

knowledge 

I am reasonably 
familiar but 
additional 

training would 
be helpful 

I am fully 
conversant  

The role of the Pension Board     

The roles of the Pensions Advisory Service and the Pensions Ombudsman relate to the workings 
of LGPS 

    

The role and statutory responsibilities of the Administering Authority’s treasurer and monitoring 
officer 

    

Accounting and Audit Regulations and legislative requirements relating to internal controls and 
proper accounting practice 

    

How the Fund communicates with stakeholders and consults with them on changes     

Key risks facing the Fund     

How pension fund management risks are monitored and managed     

Potential conflicts of interest, how they are identified and managed     

An understanding of how breaches in law are reported     

     

Funding – most relevant for Committee     

The role of the fund actuary.     

The actuarial valuation process, including developing the funding strategy in conjunction with the 
fund actuary 

    

The key assumptions in the actuarial valuation     

The types of employer eligible to join the Fund     

The importance of the employer covenant and the relative strengths of the covenant across the 
Fund’s employers 

    

How employers’ contribution rates are set     

Where an employer leaves the Fund, how the promised pensions liabilities are paid for     

How employer outsourcings and bulk transfers are dealt with     

An understanding of the Fund’s Funding Strategy Statement      

     

142



 
 

5 

 I have no 
knowledge 

I have some, but 
limited, 

knowledge 

I am reasonably 
familiar but 
additional 

training would 
be helpful 

I am fully 
conversant  

Investment – most relevant for Committee     

The role of the Fund’s investment in paying future pension payments     

The risk and return characteristics of the main asset classes (equities, bonds, property etc) the 
role of these asset classes in long-term pension fund investing. 

    

Awareness of the Fund’s Statement of Investment Principles      

Awareness of the Fund’s current investment strategy     

Key aspects of investment strategy and investment manager monitoring     

The Fund’s approach to responsible investment      

The Fund’s membership and role of the Local Authority Pension Fund Forum     

     

Pensions Administration – most relevant for Board     

The Fund’s pensions administration strategy and how the service is delivered to the Fund’s 
members and employers  

    

The Fund’s strategy of communicating with key stakeholders including members and employers     

Understanding of the required and adopted scheme policies and procedures relating to:  

 member data maintenance and record-keeping processes  

 internal dispute resolution  

 contributions collection  

 scheme communication and materials.  

    

LGPS discretions and how employers’ discretionary policies impact on the pension fund     

The tax treatment of pensions including pensions, retirement lump sums, annual allowance and 
lifetime allowance 

    

The Fund’s Additional Voluntary Contribution (AVC) arrangements, the choice of investments 
offered to members and the oversight of the provider’s performance 

    

 

143



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

145 Agenda Item 17
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

151 Agenda Item 18
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

185 Agenda Item 19
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

191 Agenda Item 20
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

205 Agenda Item 21
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

219 Agenda Item 22
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

245 Agenda Item 23
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

261 Agenda Item 24
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

267 Agenda Item 25
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

299 Agenda Item 26
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

305 Agenda Item 27
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

329 Agenda Item 28
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

341 Agenda Item 29
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

347 Agenda Item 30
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 15 February 2019.
	8 Summary Valuation of Pension Fund Investments and Performance of Individual Managers.
	Appendix A - Summary Valuation of Funds performance
	Untitled

	Central update - Tactical Asset Allocation Report Q1 19 final
	190613 Leicestershire Funding Update - 31 March 2019

	9 LGPS Central Update - Pension Fund Pooling
	10 LGPS Central Update - Company Matters
	11 Risk Management and Internal Controls.
	Appendix Risk Register June 19 v4
	Appendix 2 - Pensions Assurance Framework
	Appendix 3 - Internal Audit Approach

	12 Investment Subcommittee Membership
	13 Pension Fund Valuation
	190429 Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund 2019 Valuation - Setting the discount rate
	190429 Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund 2019 Valuation - Salary growth assumption paper

	14 Consultation - Local Valuation Cycle and Management of Employer Risk
	Valuation Cycle and Er Risk June 2019 (f)

	15 Pension Fund Training Policy
	Pension Fund Training Policy - Appendix

	17 LGPS Central Limited - Global Equity Active Multi Manager Fund Monthly Report
	18 Ashmore Quarterly Report
	19 Aspect Capital Quarterly Report
	20 IFM Investors Quarterly Report
	21 Kames Capital Quarterly Report
	22 KKR Quarterly Report
	23 LaSalle Quarterly Report
	24 JP Morgan Quarterly Report
	25 Legal and General Investment Manager Quarterly Report
	26 Delaware Investments Quarterly Report
	27 Millennium Global Quarterly Report
	28 Pictet Quarterly Report
	29 Ruffer Quarterly Report
	30 Stafford Timberland Quarterly Report



